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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . ( g a v e . . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for
April the 11, 2008 is now in session. The time is 9:07. Members, good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for your participation in last night's public hearing here in
this Chambers. At this time, I'd like to introduce the Members that are here this morning.
We do have Member Mateo, Baisa, Johnson, Medeiros, Molina, and Member Victorino.
Excused are Member Anderson, Johnson--I'm sorry . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

. . . Anderson--

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and Mr. Hokama
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning, Ms. Johnson. . .(laughter). . .
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm here . . .(laughter). . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I so used to, you know? . . .(laughter).
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .(laughter). . . I know. . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This morning supporting the Committee, we do have our support
Staff. . .we do have Michael Geers, Gayle Revels, as well as Lance Taguchi, they're our
Legislative Analyst; and our Committee Secretary, Yvette Bouthillier. Up front, we do
have Fred Pablo, Fred is the Director of Budget; and we have our First Deputy from
Corporation Counsel, Traci Fujita Villarosa. Before we start our public testimony this
morning, I'd like to have everyone here in these Chambers to either put your cell phone

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 11,2008

on the silent mode or if you could turn it off. The Chair and the Committee would
appreciate that as not to interrupt the people that are testifying this morning.
. . . Thank you. People that are testifying this morning, you have three minutes to testify
and if you need an additional three minutes, you can come back after everyone has
testified the first go around, and then the Chair will allow another three minutes. But this
morning, you have three minutes to testify, after two minutes has gone by the Staff will
notify you that you have one minute to conclude.

For those of you that are testifying, if you can provide us your name and the
organization that you represent, the Committee would appreciate that. So, Members, the
first person to sign up for public testimony at this time, Ms. Tina Thompson. . .followed
by Dr. Clyde Sakamoto.
. . .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. . .
MS. THOMPSON: Aloha kakahiaka, Budget Chair Joseph Pontanilla and Members of the
Budget and Finance Committee. My name is Tina Thompson. Today I'm testifying on
behalf of Aloha Festivals, Island Manager for Molokai. I, first of all, I'd like to thank
Charmaine Tavares for her continued support in having the line item included in the
budget proposal which is before you. Also, I would like to thank the previous
Administration for having it included yearly and, of course, Council Members for their
continued support throughout the years. If I can just provide a brief history on the
creation of Aloha Festivals? What is known today as Aloha Festivals was created in
1946 as Aloha Week. It was a cultural celebration of Hawaii's music, dance and
history. . .intended to preserve our unique traditions. There was a group--the former
Jaycees, known as the Jaycees old-timers of Hawaii--that had a vision to create a public
celebration to honor Hawaii's cosmopolitan heritage, yet create a celebration which has
itself become an island tradition. This year, the 2008 marks Aloha Festivals 62nd year
Statewide celebration. For Molokai, it's very special this year, it's Aloha Festivals 50"'
anniversary.
Aloha Festivals events are throughout the State between August and October. If you go
online to alohafestivals.com, you are able to view the Statewide schedule of events for all
the various islands.
The previous Island Manager before me was the late
Patrick S. Kawano. He served for some 30-plus years, and during his years he was
successful of securing this funding of $40,000 for Aloha Festivals. And we have been
getting it on a yearly basis. These monies are evenly distributed among Molokai, Lanai,
Maui, and Hana. We are also funded through sales of Aloha Festivals' ribbons,
merchandise, corporate sponsorship, private donations, appropriated funds from Hawaii
Tourism. Funding is needed. But also with funding, the volunteers are an important
factor. Without volunteers, we wouldn't be able to put on the various events that are
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scheduled. They are my backbone. The committee staff that I have has been involved
before even my time. I've been involved only 16 years, but as the Island Manager for 6
years. You can say I inherited this position from the past manager, Patrick Kawano.
Maybe some of you were involved in Aloha Festivals in past years. I know
Councilmember Danny Mateo, he was involved, he was the Parade Chair for Aloha
Festivals on Molokai for many of years. He also Co-Chaired. . .he actually Co-Island
managed with me the first year that Pat left it to us. So to close, I ask for your continued
support and I thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier at this time? Seeing
none, thank you very much. Dr. Sakamoto. . .followed by Mr. Mike McCormick.

MR. SAKAMOTO: Clyde Sakamoto, Chancellor of Maui Community College. Good morning
and aloha. I am here representing my colleagues and students, patients of our programs,
clients of our programs. And I'm primarily here to thank Chair Pontanilla, Members of
the County Council, the Mayor, and all of the offices that we've been working with for
the tremendous support that higher education has received in the County of Maui.
Without your support we would not have been able to address some of Maui County's
most critical kinds of challenges, among them as you all are aware, health services. And
you'll hear from my colleagues about health services, about long-term care and about our
contributions to sustainable economic development, renewable energy, sustainable
technologies. All of which without the County's collaboration and cooperation and
especially the Mayor's Office and the leadership from the Office of Economic
Development, Deidre Tegarden, Dr. Victor Reyes have been instrumental in helping us
shape what we believe will be a changed future for the County of Maui. Slowly but
inevitably we must move away from our reliance on oil. Just a few points of critical
information. The County Council and Mayor's support have allowed us to increase our
nursing student population by two-fold. We have with your help increased our student
numbers by serving 80 brand new students, 38 of whom are moving towards, having
completed really their ADN Program, Associate Degree Nursing Program and have
become registered nurses. You're going to see their faces, their pictures and recognize
their names as members of our community and we are working on creating these kinds of
sustainable living wage careers in those professions that will allow our Maui residents to
continue to live on Maui. And so we are being increasingly selective about how we're
allocating our resources. You've also helped us with our Dental Assisting Program, this
Dental Assisting Program has served about 37 students now completing the program and
they are moving towards in many cases our Dental Hygiene Program. Which you've also
helped us invest in, in developing the kind of curriculum that's allowed us to go before
the Board of Regions and get that program through. And this program as you very well
know from our work together with creating the Dental Van and its services for our
community that's continuing to expand. We now have almost 7,000 of our Maui County
residents whom we've helped served with your support. And so I cannot overstate the
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importance of the County and college collaboration. Without our partnership and
relationship the kinds of precious resources that the college has cannot be leveraged in
the way that we need to advance our communities highest interest.

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. SAKAMOTO: And so again I want to thank you for your help and support and look
forward to continuing to strengthen our partnership. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Dr. Sakamoto. Members, questions for Dr. Sakamoto at
this time? Seeing none, thank you again.

MR. SAKAMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mike McCormick, followed by Mr. Mike Morris.

MR. McCORMICK: . . . Aloha, Council Chair Pontanilla and Council Members. My name is
Mike McCormick and I'm here representing Best Buddies International. Best Buddies
was started by Anthony Kennedy Shriver and his parents have started a lot of institutions
in American Society, Special Olympics, the Job Corps, Vista and Head Start. I'm proud
to say that we now have two high school chapters up and running here on Maui County at
Baldwin High School and Maui High School. And with your help and support in the next
months ahead I'll be operating chapters at the high schools throughout Maui County.
Basically in a nutshell what Best Buddies does is it brings the regular students together
with intellectually disabled students and a friendship is created and that friendship will go
on and last many times for a lifetime. I'm also excited to say that I've already got some
excited faculty members and students that will be attending an international leadership
conference at Indiana University this summer. And these students will be mentored from
leaders and educators from around the world in community service volunteerism. One
final note is yesterday I had meetings with the Department of Disabilities over at the
State Capital in the Lieutenant Governor's Office trying to get some State support. And
they've partnered us with Easter Seals, and Easter Seals will be offering our high school
and possibly college students some part-time employment opportunities here on the
island and throughout the State. So once again I can only say thank you to Mayor
Tavares for including us in her line item and ask the County Council to support our
request. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. McCormick this
morning? Seeing none, thank you again for your testimony.

MR. McCORMICK: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mike Morris, followed by Ms. Mabel Lopes.

MR. MORRIS: Good morning, Council Members, Council Chair. I'm Mike Morris with the
Maui Family YMCA. I'm here on behalf of the 3,600 members and 8,000 program
participants and 400 volunteers at the YMCA. I also received a really nice
announcement on Wednesday that our after school programs go from serving 225 every
day to over 1,000 this coming school year. So we're very happy about the progress the
Y has made in the last several years. Last year the Council was kind enough to put half a
million dollars in the budget for the YMCA Capital Improvement Plan. I would hope
that the Council would see fit to do that again this year. Our capital campaign, total
campaign is $10 million and we certainly love to break ground next year but we'll need
the Council's help to make that happen.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for Mr. Morris? Seeing none, thank
you very much for your testimony. Ms. Mabel Lopes, followed by Ms. Nancy Johnson.
MS. LOPES: . . . Good morning. Good morning.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
MS. LOPES: My name is Mabel Lopes and I'm here today representing the North Shore Long
Term Care. When I first got involved with the Long Term Care, we found out that the
greatest need in the north shore area is for caregivers. And so I would like to thank the
County very much for donating, I mean for supporting the Nursing Program at MCC
which is very, very important. And I have here today thank-you-letters from the
graduates from the Long Term Care classes that are now graduated. Can I present this to
you?
. . . Because of the great need for the population that are getting into the aging and we
want a aging place--I mean I'm one of them and I'm very fortunate that my children, I
have a large family so I know my children are gonna take care of me. But we still have
people who don't have that. . .at their own home. So I would like to thank the County
again very, very much for their support of the Nursing Program and how far they have
come through MCC. I would like to give own, personal testimony about what I went
through. Okay. My husband had cancer and the doctors had given him only six months
to live. But he was determined and I was determined. . .so he lived for four and a half
years. And without my training as a caregiver, I could not have done it. And I also have
to thank ME0 because their bus service was the one that got him to his treatments and
back home. . .because we couldn't get him in the car, he was paralyzed. And, you know,
it was a great help. So the house-to-house buses for M E 0 is very, very important for the
senior people. And I also wanted to tell you that I was lucky enough to when I was in
high school I got, I received the Red Cross Home Nursing Program. And that helped me
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a lot. And that's like the, was a six-week program, like how they have the Elder Care
Program at the MCC Nursing Program. And I also was lucky enough to, when I was
working at Kula Hospital, I was fortunate enough to get into the First Responder class,
and there I learned how to take care of a person. I learned first aid, I learned CPR and all
the necessities to take care of a patient. So my husband lived for four and a half years at
home with the help of me and my children. So I'd like to express how important this
program is because a lot of people would like to get into the program, they don't have the
time or the money to go to an extended nursing program. Because it takes a lot to go
through the RN and registered nurses. So we do need this short-term program for the
caregivers because the greatest need is training the caregivers. And so with that I would
like to thank you again. . .very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Lopes. Members, questions for the testifier at this
time? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony. Ms. Nancy Johnson, followed by
Mr. Blair Thorndike.
MS. JOHNSON: Good morning. I'm Nancy Johnson, I'm the Allied Health Department Chair
at Maui Community College. And I'm here to thank you too for supporting the Career
Ladder Nursing Program, the Dental Assisting, Dental Hygiene Program and our Maui
Oral Health Center. I, yeah, you have from us a packet of information that shows you
pictures of the people you supported. The first coversheet is the picture of the first class
of nurses that were admitted only because of the funding you gave us. There were 40
students admitted, 38 are practical nurses, 35 of the 38 are continuing in the RN Program.
Clyde was a little ahead of himself, they will become RNs in December. So those
students would not be nurses without the support of the County. The second page it has a
picture of a few of the nurses in the second class you supported that were admitted this
January along with the Nursing Program Coordinator Marge Kelm. They're in front of
Kula Hospital which I think is symbolic of the fact we not only serve Maui Memorial,
Kula Hospital but all the healthcare facilities on Maui. These students, there are 37 in
this class and they are, they were just beginning but they will graduate in December 10,
010 [sic].
I also have some information about the need, even though the Nursing
Program has doubled the Center on Nursing, and this has doubled throughout the State,
the Center on Nursing projects that in 2020 there will be 2,670 shortfall of nurses in
Hawaii. If you figure Maui County is 11 percent of Hawaii that's, we're a shortfall of
293 nurses even with the doubled program. One part of that is the, the age of nurses in
Hawaii, there's an anticipated large number of nurses who will retire so it impacts those
numbers. I think a really significant information for you is the number of travelers that
are being used. Maui Memorial Medical Center spent $3.4 million for travelers in the
last 12 months. Hale Makua spent $986,000 in 2007 and you'll notice that not, that's,
that's money that's spent for the nurse but also 30 to 35 percent of that money goes to the
agency that hires them. So it doesn't even go for nursing care. If we prepared Maui
nurses they'd be here. Now there's always going to be a need for some specialty nurses
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for travelers but that may be, the Maui Memorial Hospital person I talked to said 5 of 40
that they hire in a month they'd have to hire anyway. But they'd like to hire 35
additional Maui nurses. On the next page, I have the information on dental. We really
appreciate your support and we're very excited about the fact that we have a new
Associate in Science in Dental Hygiene that will begin, we'll be enrolling students in the
Fall and they'll actually start in January '09. The dentists I know have written to you and
testified about their tremendous need for dental hygienists. And on the last page, I put a
graph of the, the demographics. And you see how the majority of Maui's people are over
50 and this, those numbers in that diagram were from 2005.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. JOHNSON: And so you know we're going to need more dental hygienists as well. The last
thing I want to speak about is the Oral Health Center. Seven hundred visits a month,
these are from Maui's neediest people who have no other place to see the dentist.
Dr. Mills from the ER says he sees one to three dental patients a day in the emergency
room because they have no access to dental care. Thank you so much for your support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Members, questions for the testifier this
morning? Seeing none, thank you again. Blair Thorndike?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mr. Chair, Blair had to leave.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Alda St. James? Alda?
MS. ST. JAMES: Good morning, Council Members. Thank you again for hearing about our
programs. Keiki Kokua serves 300 families, foster and adopted families and 500 children
and youth. I'm asking a $35,000 line item in the Mayor's Budget. This morning I
wanted to state emphatically what Keiki Kokua is and what it is not. What it is not is a
nice to have service that is expendable anymore than Maui's foster children and their
foster parents are expendable. What we are is an essential service that exists on Maui
only because Keiki Kokua exists. Right now, I want to list for you our program
outcomes so you can see that what we do has an enormous impact on our children,
families and community. As a result of Keiki Kokua programs, the foster family
environment will become strengthened, more nurturing and more supportive. Foster
children will be moved less often, remaining in one home longer, finding stability,
security and loving care. Foster children will develop better communication skills with
the families raising them. Traditional family values will be demonstrated to children in
youth and care through group activities. Foster children will discover that their unique
cultural values and heritage and their foster parents will honor these values. Former
foster youth will turn to Keiki Kokua for assistance, foster parents will feel supported and
recognized for their valuable contribution to the community. Foster parents will become
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more knowledgeable and gain more parenting skills. Parents will have access to local
and State and resources and agencies more easily. A Respite Care Program will provide
lost cost quality childcare, this will enable parents to take time off, become less stressed
and help prevent instance of foster parent child abuse. A growing venue of free services
to keiki will offer foster parents more goods and services donated by the local
community. A foster parent exchange will benefit foster families in need of children's
clothes, toys and other items donated by the local community. Our programs will relieve
pressure on social workers who cannot always address concerns in a timely manner. As
foster parents needs are met, better communication will occur between social workers
and parents. Recruitment and retention rates of foster homes will increase. More
contended foster families will lead to the strengthening of, of the foster care program of
Maui County as a whole. Partners with like-minded organizations will increase,
partnerships will increase, and Keiki Kokua's effectiveness in the community will be
leveraged by using the resources of each partner. I hope that this brief overview has
convinced you that you, has convinced you that there is an urgent need which must be
addressed sooner or later. If later, the cost to County and State agencies dealing with
disenfranchised youth will be staggering. Please prevent this from happening by funding
Keiki Kokua services now. Please change a lifetime. To help you remember this, I'm
giving you a foster care pin today in recognition of Foster Care month which is coming
up in May. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this morning? Thank
you again.
MS. ST. JAMES: May I give this. . .(inaudible).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You can leave it with the Staff and then we'll deliver that pins. Thank
you. The next testifiers are Mike Yamashiro and Alan Yamamoto.
Gentlemen, you do have three minutes. . .not apiece but total.
MR. YAMASHIRO: Okay.

ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. YAMASHIRO: Good morning, everyone. My name is Mike Yamashiro and I am here on
behalf of the Iao Preschool. We are asking the County to help us with funding a project
to correct the water drainage problem that is damaging our preschool playground area.
We are located on the grounds of the Iao Congregational Church, which is here in
Wailuku. And we're bordered on one side by the Vineyard Street and the other side by
Main Street. On the Main Street side we're located just across the Bailey House
Museum. We have a parking area off of that Main Street area which is often used by our
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preschool parents to drop off and pick up their children. The parking area is not paved at
the moment but it's topped with gravel. Now here's the situation, whenever we have
heavy rainfall, water running down the Main Street flows to our parking area and
continues down through our preschool playground. This typically happens about three or
four times a year. The runoff seriously affects our playground causing ruts and exposing
the tree roots. To correct this problem, the Iao Congregational Church has developed
plans, which has been approved by the County to build a retaining wall along the Main
Street side of our property and to level and improve the parking area on that Main Street
location. We hope to complete this project in 2008. The work will improve the safety of
our preschool children and their parents as well as our staff. Now the project will cost
about $500,000. We are asking the County for assistance in funding the portion of the
work that relates to the preschool. We estimate that 30 percent of the needed repairs can
be attributed to the preschool. The Iao Congregational Church will fund the remaining
70 percent. We greatly appreciate any assistance you can give us and thank you for your
consideration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Yamamoto, you're going to say something?

MR. YAMAMOTO: Thank you.
ALL: . . .(laughter).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifiers? Seeing none, thank you for
your testimony.
The next testifier is Karen, Ms. Karen Fischer, followed by
Ms. Gerri Shapiro.
MS. FISCHER: . . . Good morning, Mr. Chairman, County Council Members, and Staff. I'm
Karen Fischer, President and CEO of the Maui Arts and Cultural Center. First, I'd like to
thank you and the Mayor for your ongoing support of the Maui Arts and Cultural Center
since the very beginning. The County has played a significant role and an important role
in being one of the foundations of the ability of the MACC to succeed. With your help,
we were able to serve over 275,000 people last year, which is a number that surprises us
every time we, we add them up.
I'm here to ask you once again for your support in this coming fiscal year. Maui can be
proud that the MACC is truly the finest comprehensive arts and cultural center in the
State of Hawaii. And we're very much about economic development, about education
and about our community. The MACC is a strong part of Maui's economy, there was last
year Americans for the Arts did a national economic impact study of the arts in various
communities. The MACC was selected as the Hawaii representative in that study and
what came out was a number of huge economic benefits when arts organizations are in
communities including an average spending of $35 above and beyond the tickets sold and
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things like food, baby sitters, gas, Hawaii that's probably a higher number which results
in ancillary spending of over $5 million annually. Having a thriving arts center also
means jobs in this community and as you well know we'll be going into construction,
which again will create jobs.
The corporate groups and the major entertainers that come on island also spend in this
community and just this past year Lexus did a two-week event at the MACC. They had
1,200 people coming, we became essentially a convention center. So the economic
impact was good not only for the MACC but also for the County. And as you know most
of our budget is spent on island, our money stays on island. We're also very committed
to cultural tourism and part of that is an offshoot of our deep commitment to authentic
Hawaiian culture. Hokulani Holt Padilla is on our staff as our Cultural Programs
Director, Hawaiian culture is a keystone of who we are in this community and we're very
proud that this year we were able to send the production of Kahekili which premiered on
Maui. It's actually now touring Statewide but it also went to California and Arizona.
And for people who think of hula as something in Elvis movies, it was a real surprise to
see what real hula and what real kahiko hula looks like. And that's part of our ability to
present a true picture of Hawaiian culture outside of the State.
We're also as you know very much about education, it's been a cornerstone of who we
are since the beginning. It's no surprise that Maui is the first County in the State of
Hawaii to have Pomaikai School, the first arts integrated school, public school in the
State.

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes
MS. FISCHER: It, one thing that our kids learn is that, well, we see better attendance, we see
better attention of material, we see better learning, we see, we see self confidence. And
this is tomorrow's workforce that we're helping train. So we're very much about a
healthy community and the health of this community. We thank you for your support and
we look forward to continuing to serve our community of Maui. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Fischer. Members, questions for the testifier?
MS. FISCHER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you again for being here. Ms. Gerri Shapiro, followed by
Ms. Ann Blyde.
MS. SHAPIRO: . . . Aloha, Members of the Budget Committee. My name is Gerri Shapiro and
I'm here to testify on behalf of the Maui Long Term Care Partnership. But first I want to
talk about the weather. . . .(end of tape IA - 9:38 a.m.). . .tsunamis that hit Indonesia and
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Thailand. But you probably haven't read about the tsunami that's on its way to Maui.
And it's not a tsunami of water, it's a tsunami of kupuna, a tsunami of seniors. It's
predicted that the senior population of the State of Hawaii is going to double in the next
15 years. And even now we don't have enough care workers to take care of our own here
on Maui. The Maui Long Term Care Partnership has spent the last four years providing
training and education for people to care for these seniors. They began by developing a
long-term care curriculum for the high schools which trained over 100 students in the last
four years. First we began at Lahainaluna then Maui High, Kamehameha, and this
coming year Baldwin High is going to institute this curriculum. When we asked the kids
what did they think about working with seniors they said, "E-e-ew, they're old and
wrinkly and they have white hair." But after completing the course and after spending
time with the seniors at Hale Makua and Maui Adult Daycare, here's what they said: "I
did not want to have a group of unsociable, inactive seniors to work with. The ones that
just sit around and do nothing. Guess what, I ended up with those kinds of seniors but
it's okay, it wasn't so bad, I've actually learned a lot from them. From my experience
with all the long-term care visits I think it changed my perspective a bit. When I first
came in, I thought I'd hate it right away. But after these experiences, I think I would be
able to work in a long-term facility. Overall I had a lot of fun but it was too short, I wish
we had more time with those seniors." And then a miraculous thing happened, these kids
went home and they taught their parents how to treat grandma with respect and
compassion. Last year, the Maui Long Term Care Partnership launched a pilot project at
Maui Community College, over 50 students were offered free training in elder care and
there is a flyer that describes it in your packet. At the nurse aid graduation one of the
students read a poem she wrote called L f e is a Circle. Life is a circle. At birth we're
cared for, we're wrapped in a warm fuzzy blanket and we're watched with a cautious eye.
We're told what to do. In the blink of an eye the roles are changed, now we are caring
for those who cared for us.

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes
MS. SHAPIRO: We wrap them in warm fuzzy blankets. We watch them with a cautious eye,
we tell them what to do. If we're lucky, life will always be a circle. The Maui Long
Term Care Partnership wants to continue to offer these types of programs, but they're
going to need your help. Please grant their budget request so we can all age with aloha
on Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Shapiro. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank
you again for testifying. Ms. Ann Blyde. . .followed by Ms. Gail Raikes, Raikes.
MS. BLYDE: Good morning. My name is Ann Blyde. And I thank the Budget Committee for
allowing me to testify. I'm here to testify on behalf of the Maui Long Term Partnership
and their funding request. I moved to my, Hawaii on my own and I have no family here,
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I'm one of the "wrinklees" that Gerri just mentioned. My plan is to live on Maui forever
and ever. . .and that's a long time when you're 69 years old. My primary concern since I
came here has been to try to work out how to take care of myself in these golden years.
And I really didn't have a clue how to do that here on Maui. And thanks to the
partnership and--I was able to attend an educational presentation on Aging with Aloha on
Maui at the Senior Center and this included a vast array of information about senior
services, home and community based service options, retirement planning, and
information tools about such things as long-term care insurance and reverse
mortgages. . .all these things one hears about but doesn't know about in detail and they're
so important. I left that presentation with an arsenal of helpful tools, including a print
directory of senior services which I have used extensively. This directory correlates all
of the available services for seniors, where to go for information that's here on the island.
I found it invaluable. Because I've been given this road map, I was able to spend the last
year taking step-by-step actions that I had learned from the presentation that Gerri gave.
And now I feel much better informed about how to live here on Maui and hopefully how
to contribute a little bit towards this wonderful organization. I urge the Budget
Committee to approve continuing funding for this marvelous organization without which
I would have been lost. Their empathy and insightfulness into the perspective needs of
the elderly is truly remarkable. The amount of detail, the amount of forethought that goes
into one thing leading to another and guidance is just superb. Thank you for allowing me
to testify.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you for your testimony. Ms. Raikes, followed by Ms. Jenny Sheppard.
MS. RAIKES: . . . Good morning, honorable Budget and Finance Chair Pontanilla and
distinguished Members of the Council. Thank you, again, for the opportunity to testify.
My name is Gail Raikes and I am the Program Manager for the Maui Family Support
Services, Early Head Start program. Our program serves expectant mothers and families
with children ages birth through 36 months. We have been fortunate enough to receive
funding from the County for the Fiscal Year 2007 and 2008 and thank you for your
continued support.
The funds received from the County enables our Early Head Start program to provide
services of a clinical psychologist, pediatric nurse practitioner and registered dietitian to
the families who participate in our home based and center based programs. Some
examples of the services provided included oral health screenings, nutrition planning and
assisting with referrals to our Part C providers who provide early intervention services.
These specialists are an integral part of our Early Head Start team working closely with
our parentlchild educators and infantltoddler caregivers to deliver comprehensive
services. The County funds also help our program to maintain a position called the
Parent Involvement Facilitator. One of the duties of this individual is to convene our
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health services advisory committee, which is made up of health professionals such as
pediatricians, dentists, public health nurses, dental brokers and parents all who are
volunteering their time.
Through the efforts of this Committee we have been able to assist families with
strengthening their own advocacy skills enabling them to increase their access to health
care. As you can see the County has played a vital role in ensuring our programs delivery
of comprehensive health services. Thank you again for the opportunity to provide
testimony and on behalf of the families and children receiving services from the Maui
Family Support Services, Early Head Start program we look forward to continued
funding for our program in Fiscal Year 2009. As well as our continued partnership in
providing services for the families of Maui County. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this morning? Seeing
none, thank you very much.
MS. RAKES: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier, Jani Sheppard, followed by Ms. Linda Puppolo.
MS. SHEPPARD: Good morning, Chair, and good morning, Council Members. Thank you for
the opportunity to testify with you this morning. My name is Jani Sheppard and I am the
CEO with Maui Family Support Services. And I'm here to support the program that Gail
just shared a little bit about with you--is our Early Head Start program for infants and
toddlers. In 2007, Maui Family Support Service will be celebrating its, or celebrated its
27th year of providing services to our Maui community. The Early Head Start program
provides services to infants and toddlers through our Early Childhood Development
Center and also through the home-based service option. The program provides free--that
is at no cost to families--quality childcare to income-eligible families who are working or
attending school. And I think that's really important because that is, that program is
helping people to become self sufficient, helping families to provide for their children,
helping families to participate actively in their communities. We provide child
development services and the specialist services that Gail has just described and mental
health child development, nutrition and physical health. Provide weekly socializations
and opportunities for families to be with other families and other children and break some
of the isolation that happens with some of the families that we're working with who are
experiencing some challenges. We have monthly parent education and support groups,
we also work with fathers to encourage fatherhood involvement in the lives of children.
And we have a Fatherhood Specialist, our fatherhood involvement facilitator who works
with all of our teams including our Early Head Start program to help to ensure that
fathers understand the vital role that they play in their child's health development,
physical development, educational development, spiritual development and emotional
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development. And so that's also a large part of the program. Each family must meet
very strict income eligibility guidelines, the eligibility guidelines for 2008 is $20,000 to
$20,204 for a family of three. So the program is serving some of the, the families who
are most in need in our community. MFSS is requesting that the Council continue to
support this program, we thank you and we also thank the Mayor for including this in the
line item budget for the past several years. And your support has been invaluable and we
truly appreciate it. And also that you know that your support leverages over $695,000 in
Federal funds and so you are playing a part in, in the Federal, the State and the Feds in
our community in helping to support this program. We also get support from and seek
support from foundations and community members and so by pulling all of that together
we create together a safety net for these families. Thank you for your attention and your
time and have a wonderhl day.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Sheppard. Members, questions for the testifier at this
time? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony. Ms. Puppolo, followed by Kathleen,
Ms. Kathleen Heid.
MS. PUPPOLO: . . . Aloha and thank you for this opportunity to testify. My name is
LindaPuppolo, I'm the Treasurer of the Maui Flower Growers Association, the
Past-President of the Protea Growers Association, and the Past-Treasurer of the Hawaii
Tropical Flower Council. I've been working in the agricultural community on Maui
since 1986. I am here to testify in support of the Maui Flower Growers OED
development grant. This grant is crucial to the continuing support of the communities
flower growers by providing financial aid to the organization in the following ways.
Promotion and marketing that will make a presence in the local, national and worldwide
market with, through promotional events, collateral materials, advertising, continued
develop and maintenance of flourishing gift box program that sends members direct
orders which also results in repeat orders. The ability to hire a part-time executive
director to coordinate. Aid in the development of new hybrids and promote agritourism
activities for the visitor industry. Promote, perpetuate the beauty of the land and the idea
that Hawaii is an exotic place as a nitch market. Travel to the periodic meetings of the
Hawaii Tropical Flower Council to enable the growers from all over the State to work
together and share costs in all these things. Maui Flower Growers also raises funds
through the product of sales at events and has a commission gift box program. Over the
past two years it's shown a 21 percent increase in commissions and a 25 percent increase
in direct sales to the members and this does not affect, this doesn't even include all the
repeat customers, this is just first time customers. Maui Flower Growers has a part-time
paid executive director and a volunteer board, 150 people on the list and 50 growers that
actually, actively participate in the gift box program. A report was released called the
Demand for Inter-Island Shipping and the Impact of Shipping Costs on Hawaii
Agricultural Production. I'd be happy to share that report any time any of you ask me to.
It just came out on March 27"', it specifically addresses the lessening container load, the
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discontinuing, lessen container load shipments into, into Maui in the year 2010 and the
remainder of the State by 2012. One hundred percent of all the farmers in this survey
said that they use ocean transport for their businesses either to bring supplies in or to
bring, to send supplies out. Rates for this service have increased significantly now
because the competition with the Hawaii Superferry, Young Brothers has also added a
fuel surcharge to all shipments, 63 percent of the growers did not feel shipping on the
Superferry would help their business or save costs. The schedule for Maui is especially
prohibitive and not conducive to growers' needs. Flower growers only use air freight to
ship out supplies due to limited shelf life of the flowers.

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. PUPPOLO: Only 6.5 percent of all the flowers in the State ship in full containers. Post91 1, we threw flowers away on a regular basis and air freight has become prohibitive.
One day. . .I shipped 5,850 pounds of flowers to Amsterdam. That company can no
longer do that due to rising air costs. I'm asking you please, this is the time to support
the flower growers, we need your help to stay viable in the market. Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member Johnson?
MS. PUPPOLO: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, do you have a specific line item that is included in this
budget? And if not what is the amount of funding that you're requesting?
MS. PUPPOLO: Yes. Our grant that we are requesting through OED is for $32,600.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you
MS. PUPPOLO: Thank you
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Members? Seeing none, thank you
very much. Kathleen Heid. . .followed by Ms. Nancy Bulosan-Marvin.
MS. HEID: Good morning. My name is Kathleen Heid and I'm with Hui Malama Learning
Center. I dare say that there are a very few people in this room that have not somehow
been touched by Hui Malama whether you know family, friends or friends of friends that
have gotten services from Hui Malama Learning Center. My big concern right now is my
teachers and keeping quality teachers and being able to pay them enough so that they can
continue to work with an alternative learning center that helps the chain of education on
the, on Maui become stronger. We hope to replace that weak link with a strong link and
complete what needs to be done in education for Maui. I don't want to take any more of

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 11,2008

your time because I appreciate that you've heard this many times over. So thank you
very much for hearing it one more time and please continue to support us. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Questions for the testifier, Members? Seeing none, thank
you very much. Ms. Nancy Bulosan-Marvin. . .followed by Ms. Christine Haskins.
MS. BULOSAN-MARVIN: Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Council Members. I'm
Nancy Bulosan-Marvin and I'm the Finance Director of Maui Economic Development
Board. MEDB encourages its staff to volunteer as a way to keep a pulse on the
community of what's going on and to assist others where we can by sharing our
experiences and, and strengths and assist anyway we can. So this morning, it's my
pleasure to testify as a board member on behalf of Hui Malama Learning Center. I
currently serve as the Treasurer for the Board of Directors, and I'm here to ask for
continued support of the Hui Malama's alternative education for youth in Maui. We
appreciate the funding support in the past two years. Our budget line request for this year
was for level funding. But we understand that with our meetings, our executive director's
meetings with many of you that it would be unlikely that level funding would be
approved. We are appreciative of the amount included in the Mayor's proposed budget,
as we'll be able to continue support to provide the educational services that is essential to
preparing our youth to become contributing members of our local economy. On behalf of
our board and staff, I am here to ask you to support our budget line. While it costs over
$6,000 per year to educate each student in the DOE program, Hui Malama has been able
to address the unique educational needs of students that, that are not met in traditional
systems for a little over $1,100 per student. Of this amount, 39 percent is provided by
County funding. With County funding, we have been able to leverage other funding for
academic services as well as supplemental educational services such as positive youth
activities, teen pregnancy, drug and violence prevention classes, vocational and career
development support and parenting classes. Without County funding near the amount
proposed by the Mayor, we are at risk of losing not only other academic funding but also
the large amount of funding to provide the youth services. With the dedicated staff and
equally passionate board of 13 members, we are committed to continue looking for ways
to diversify our funding streams while staying true to our mission and providing quality
individualized services. I thank you for your time and support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you for your testimony this morning.
Ms. Christine Haskins, followed by
Ms. Alexis Dascoulias.
Go ahead
MS. HASKINS: Aloha. Good morning. Thank you. I'm here, Christine Haskins on behalf of
Hui Malama Learning Center. Over the years, I've come across a particular
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disadvantaged population of families where students are having difficulty getting their
high school diploma. Parents and the students themselves tell me that due to their
families financial challenges they're unable to have the children in school all day. So Hui
Malama offers these families, these families require their children to work to contribute
to the family income and therefore Hui Malama offers them an opportunity to go to
school two mornings a week and get their high school diploma opposed to every day, all
day. And of course their high school diploma offers them future opportunities to become
self sufficient and. . .contributing members of our community. Hui Malama also offers
parent education classes, most parents don't take a class before they become parents and
face many challenges in raising their children in today's society. The parent project,
parenting program offers parents the skills and tools that they need to provide their
children with discipline, structure and supervision so they can be safe and successful. So
we respectfblly request your consideration of this request. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this morning? Seeing
none, thank you again for your testimony.
MS. HASKINS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Alexis Dascoulias, I hope I got it right, followed by Ms. Nancy Halley.
MS. DASCOULIAS: Good morning. My name is Alexis Dascoulias. So it's pretty close
. . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(laughter). . .
MS. DASCOULIAS: I am the newly appointed Executive Director for Maui OnStage. And on
behalf of the staff, the Board of Directors, the volunteers, the artists and the audience
members who all use the historic Iao Theater, I want to thank you for your continued
efforts in the revitalization of Wailuku Town as well as the historic Iao Theater. The past
years have brought together great efforts between Maui OnStage, the community and the
County to repair and maintain the historic Iao Theater. Different grant sources with
matching funds from the County have enabled the continuation of repairing the theater,
which is a cultural and historic landmark for Maui which the community is deeply
gratefbl for. However the Iao Theater continues to have urgent needs and this includes
the need for air conditioning and repairs, which are critical to the structural and financial
survival of the building operation. The lack of air conditioning is limiting the rental
potential of the theater as well as limiting audience and use appeal. The Iao has lost
rentals and lost audience members due to the uncomfortable conditions the auditorium
brings on hot afternoons and evenings. In addition due to the leaks in the roof the Maui
OnStage staff must be on 24 hour alert every time it rains. The staff consistently
monitors the roof and the buckets, which are catching the leaks in the roof. These leaks
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create continuing deterioration of the historic Iao Theater. The purchase and installation
of air conditioning at the Iao Theater is going to cost $300,000. This estimate includes
purchasing an energy efficient air conditioning system for the entire building, the
installation of the system and six months assistance of operating costs. With the
installation of the air conditioning comes the need for the Iao Theater ventilation project,
which will cost an additional $150,000. The justification for this expense is that with the
installation of the new air conditioning the Iao Theater needs to revamp the existing
ventilation system. Because it is a historic registry building, special ventilation materials
and authorized contractors and engineers will need to be used. This will ensure however
that the building stays within the rules and regulations enforced by the National Registry
of Historic Buildings and will also have a properly functioning ventilation system. The
ventilation system will ensure that the use of the air conditioning is as efficient as
possible and will keep operating and electricity costs to a minimum. As described, the
roof of the Iao Theater is also in need of repair and some sections need replacing. The
cost of these interior and exterior repairs will be approximately $40,000. Again, I want to
thank you for supporting the arts, for appreciating the importance of the historic Iao
Theater, and for serving this great community. On behalf of the Board of Directors, the
staff, the volunteers, the artists and community thank you for considering the Iao Theater
improvement line item in the budget and thank you for your time and dedication.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again for your testimony this morning. Ms. Nancy Halley, followed by Ms. Jan Yagi
Buen.
She left. Okay.
MS. HALLEY: Good morning, Council Members. My name is Nancy Halley and I'm here to
testify on behalf of Hui Malama Learning Center. I'm a teacher there, I teach science and
math in a program called High School Foundations. I consider myself on the front lines
down there and I want to thank you for supporting us in the past and I ask for your
continued support. I, I have heard that you possibly won't be funding us on level as you
have in the past and, and it does sadden me because I know that we really do need your
support as best as you can give it.
A lot of the students that I have there have deep issues with anxiety. . .that probably has
happened through years of not getting the services they needed in public school. We
have a large population at the low socioeconomic level, and a lot of our students do have
learning disabilities and challenges. One of the students that I work with currently has
cerebral palsy, he is confined to a wheel chair and is legally blind. And I have a little
letter, well, it's actually a very long letter but I'm just going to read part of it that came to
me from his father, Robert Brito.
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Robert writes to us, "My wife and I and Dan are grateful that an alternative was out there
for Dan in the form of Hui Malama Learning Center and that they found a spot for Dan."
I'm sorry I'm reading it, I need glasses here. "Through Hui Malama Dan has gotten his
confidence back, achieved a level of success far greater than we could have hoped for or
imagined back in 2006. Dan has rediscovered that learning can be fun and he's
absolutely thrived in school." I just want to point out that recently we were able to take
him up to Hookipa and do an inter-tidal science, a field trip up there with our other
students and it was the first time, I was shocked, he had ever held coral in his hand and
looked at invertebrates from the ocean. And we were able to do that and your funding
helps us do special things like that so I appreciate that. His father also writes, "We hope
that everyone, including Dan, can somehow have the same opportunities Dan has had at
Hui Malama and that as long as public schools are open society can say that every student
has the same opportunity to learn. The school is open to them but, but really does every
student have the same opportunity to thrive at learning in a setting where everyone is
treated as though they have the exact same rate of learning and a more tailored brand of
teaching just doesn't exist." Mr. Brito says no and he's very thankful that Dan is able to
come to Hui Malama because he gets tailored education and he gets one-on-one services
that he's not able to get at public schools. Dan recently went to Maui High before he
came to us. Mr. Brito goes on to say that, "Your funding of Hui Malama Learning Center
will help to ensure that an environment will continue to exist that allows children, who
for one reason or another, don't do as well as other students in a traditional school
setting."

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes
MS. HALLEY: Okay. And he says, "With your help and funding and your continued support of
Hui Malama Learning Center, we are fully confident that this is an absolutely worthwhile
goal and it will be achieved." Thank you for your time and your kind consideration of
this matter.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again for your testimony this morning. The next testifier is Ms. Toni Marie Davis,
followed by Ms. Kyoko Kimura.
MS. DAVIS: . . . Aloha. Aloha, Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the Council Committee.
Thank you for the opportunity to testify. My name is Toni Marie Davis, I'm the
Executive Director with the Activities and Attractions Association of Hawaii. We're a
Statewide nonprofit trade organization consisting of 186, all the things to do in Maui or in
Hawaii. But a majority of our members are here in Maui 'cause there is so much to do
here in Maui. And underneath my profession, I'm a Makawao mom--three kids, two
dogs. And I couldn't stand before you here today and say anything that would
compromise the integrity or the quality of life for my children or Maui. I love it, I live
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here. And tourism executed responsibly is the most self-sustaining and lucrative industry
any community could wish for. Other communities are very jealous of what we've done
here, even within our own State the other islands are jealous of what we've done. You
were the first County Council to actually contribute additional money to M U 3 or the
Visitors Bureau in addition to what they get through HTA and HBCB. Other counties
now have followed suit with that because it is the right thing to do. In keeping the
balance with the local community, we need to target that quality visitor which we've
defined as high spending, long staying. And our M U 3 has done an excellent job at doing
that duty. I have some stats in my testimony that I gave you, I'm not going to go through
those. But despite all these Maui successes the tourism industry is still very fragile.
When the terrorists attacked America in September 1lthan abrupt decline in visitors put
our economy into a tail spin from which we have only recently begun to recover. At this
time everyone felt the impact, everyone realized how connected they were to the tourism
industry. It is vital to our economy. It's vital to have that to do all these social services
that are so very important. With that we've witnessed so far this year NCL pulling out
two ships, ATA and Aloha, Molokai Ranch.. .(end of tape I B - I0:09
a.m.). . .uncertainties of increased war expenditures on the economy, fluctuations in oil
prices, real estate sub prime, cash, breakdown of credit markets, expected rise in inflation
and recent declines of consumer confidence. I believe is especially important to support
the marketing of tourism. A competitive world tourism is also getting even more
competitive out there and it's difficult to attract tourists, it's not as easy as it used to be.
And we have been losing some of our long time steadfast visitors to other destinations. I
was pleased to learn that it was level, the, the Mayor's budget to you all was level. It'd
be nice in lieu of these other things if it could increase a little, but I urge you please don't
touch it. It's vital to everything else that you're hearing about today here. Thank you so
much for this time to testify.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this morning? Seeing
none, thank you for your testimony. Ms. Kimura, followed by Ms. Sharon Suzuki.
MS. KIMURA: Aloha. My name is Kyoko Kimura, I'm the General Manager of the Diamond
Resort up in Wailea. I'm not representing the HTA today but I'm also chairing a
marketing committee of the Hawaii Tourism Authority. I'm here today to support two
items--one is Maui Visitors and Convention Bureau. We really appreciate your past
support and it's obvious in the result of our occupancy and our raised room rates on this
island in. . .compared to other counties who don't receive the support that we receive
here. However this year, we're facing crisis, we've been calling emergency meetings at
the HTA. The ATA alone we're going to lose 700,000 air seats annually. And nobody,
so far, has stepped up to the plate to fill this. Unless we create the strong demand here,
no, no other airline is going to fill this vacancy. We, at this, at this time the least you can
do is the level funding of 3.85. We have to really effectively counter this crisis. The, the
other item I want to support is, as a charter advisory board member of Maui. . .Focus
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Maui Nui. . .this, Focus Maui Nui, the result of this, this one, they don't come from the
usual board. It's really a voice of community. Like, they came to my workplace and we
gave extra 30 to an hour break during the work so that all the workers can, can participate
in this discussion. Even, usually very, very shy housekeeping department, they would
never come to a hearing like this to testify. But they did voice their opinion, what they
want for their Maui. So I want this, this plan to be kept on the shelf. This needs to be
kept alive, so I really need your support to this item. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again for your testimony. Ms. Suzuki, followed by Mr. Warren Watanabe.
MS. SUZUKI: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget and Finance
Committee. My name is Sharon Suzuki, I am the Manager of the Renewable Energy
Services Department at Maui Electric or MECo. I am providing testimony in support of
funds that MECo will be requesting from Office of the Economic Development's budget
in the form of a grant that continues our joint efforts to encourage the use of solar water
heating systems. In addition, MECo also supports the fund, which the Office of
Economic Development is requesting, to encourage the development and adoption of
more renewable energy technologies by businesses and residents in Maui County.
MECo's Renewable Energy Services Department is responsible for planning and
implementing strategies to provide reliable electricity and to aggressively pursue
opportunities to generate energy using renewable sources that will sustain our
environments on Maui, Lanai, and Molokai; partnering with organizations like the
County of Maui through the Office of Economic Development to ensure the
implementation of such programs and projects benefits the whole community. Since
2002, the County of Maui and MECo have been working together to promote the use of
renewable energy by increasing the number of solar water heating systems installed on
homes throughout the County through the Maui Solar Roofs Initiative. Grants from the
County established a zero interest revolving loan fund that breakdown the first cost
barrier of installing a solar water heating system. The loan payments are equal to the
expected savings from the use of the solar water heating system so the residents sees little
or no added monthly expense. The population target group is Maui County's year-round
residents with preference given to low-income households. This program was initially
designed as a $1 million revolving fund, and since September 2002 a total of 700,000 has
been designated for the fund through five grants. Those five grants have allowed 425
Maui County families of all income levels to install solar water heating systems,
significantly reducing their electricity bills. Of the 425 recipients, about 53 percent of the
solar water heating systems were installed under the direct grant funding and 47 percent
were installed using the revolving component. The County of Maui provides the
financing and MECo administers the zero interest loans. We believe that the Office of
Economic Development's funding in the area of renewable energy and in particular the
Maui Solar Roofs initiative will support our common goals of encouraging the use of
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renewable energy resources, assisting residents to reduce their energy payments thereby
making their homes and their businesses more affordable and profitable, helping to
support renewable energy technology businesses and lessening our dependence on fossil
fuels.

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. SUZUKI: Thank you for this opportunity to submit testimony in support of the Office of
Maui Economic Development's budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this morning? Seeing
none, thank you very much. Mr. Warren Watanabe, followed by Ms. Jocelyn Perreira.

MR. WATANABE: Good morning, Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the Committee. I'm
Warren Watanabe, Interim Executive Director of Maui County Farm Bureau. First of all,
we really want to thank the Council and the County Administration for all the years of
support we've had from the County of Maui. Basically, I think I did submit to
Chair Pontanilla our requested budget. In addition to the Maui County Farm Bureau
programs, we also represent the five different commodity groups within, within our
budget request. I want to focus on two issues that are, programs that we've, we've, we
really focus on and one is the Grown on Maui. Again, thanks to the County Office of
Economic Development this program was developed several years ago and we are
continuing to work on it. And I think the key to it, to this program is to keep the farmers
viable in Maui County. And again we all talk about helping agriculture, preserving ag
lands and this is very critical, if the farmers are not making a living you won't have
agriculture. The other thing I want to talk about is our Ag in the Classroom program.
We are in our third year. Each year is expanded to more schools. This year, we'll be
again hosting a field day at one of two locations thanks to CTHAR, one of their
experiment stations on Maui. This year, we'll be holding the program on May 14~"and
15~".And of course you're all invited if you can make it. I know you'll still be probably
hammering out our budget, but anyway it'll be. . .on the first day we'll have 180 students.
On the second day, we'll host 150 students which is a big increase from previous years.
And again, you know, without the help of the County of Maui, this program would never
have begun. We are looking at this on a Statewide level. I am by, I guess by default
Chairman of the State Committee also for Ag in the Classroom, and so we are embarking
on a State program. And we are making progress; Kauai is also doing this on their island.
And again I just want to express our support. And I think for us in agriculture it's
important that you support, support the industry. And our support from Farm Bureau
extends to and it's not limited to the flower growers as you heard Linda speak to, speak
about it. The College of Tropical Agriculture, soil conservation districts, aquaculture and
the various other aspects included in the Administration's budget. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Warren, I noticed that in the '08 Budget there was
435,000 and the Fiscal Year '09 Budget is for the same amount. Now is that given the
situation that you're facing and a lot of the challenges even from the flower growers and
some of your members and of course with increased costs for shipping, storage, fuel,
everything? Is that still sufficient or was there a specific request that you made to
increase that and if you did what would that amount be if you were to be given that
request?

MR. WATANABE: Well, like anything else I think, you know, for agriculture we would like
support, I mean even on the State level, Federal level, we need support. On the, but
referring to the County I think part of the problem is that we're not reaching out to the
community in general. I mean you look at, you look at a Federal budget, the Farm
Bureau, that Congress still has not passed it. Again President Bush has line, I mean,
zeroed out funding for watershed projects across the nation and, you know, for us that is
critical for our dual line project. But again referring to the County I mean, I mean I'm
not going to deny we couldn't use more but I think we also as an organization we're
recognized the necessities of the County and the restrictions you have your revenue
sources. And for us, even for us it's critical that for us in agriculture that say Planning
Department, Water Department get funded, you, we know the Administration and I'm
sure the Council fully supports additional storage Upcountry. I mean that's going to be a
big part of your budget. So I think it's important but for the farmers viability the
infrastructure is also more, maybe more critical.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So if I understand what you're saying, Warren, is that even
though you have your marketing budget and a lot of the projects that you do the things
that we should support and possibly enhance would be acceleration of the infrastructure
for water delivery, water storage, possibly fire weed eradication. Those kinds of things
that help support your efforts, is that correct?

MR. WATANABE: Yeah. Well, I, I agree because you mentioned the fire weed and I just want
to bring out, I mean, a new invasive species that we're battling is the tumble weed. I
don't know if you, I mean, several months ago they closed Pulehu Road because of the
tumble weed. It is a serious issue and recently it is encroaching on HC&S land so it is
spreading. And those kind of issues all impact agriculture, whether it's large or small.
And I think that's where we need a lot of help also.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. 'Cause I know some of those monies were shifted
around a little bit and then there was one consolidated pot of money, which may not be
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sufficient. And do you know what the cost would be, your projected cost to at least
launch an effort for eradication of the tumble weed?

MR. WATANABE: I have no idea, I mean I, I drive by that road almost every day and I mean
the field is literally covered with the thing so.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And that's the only field there or has it already
spread?

MR. WATANABE: Well, my, yeah, my understanding is, I mean, it's seen on farms on
Omaopio Road on Pulehu Road and the HC&S incident is in Makawao.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I'd be really interested if you could provide us at
some point in time or CTHAR with the information about how serious the problem is and
what kind of money we need for it.

MR. WATANABE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Warren.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you, Warren. Jocelyn Perreira, followed by Ms. Gale McNish.
MS. PERREIRA: Good morning, Budget Chair Pontanilla and Council Members. Aloha, my
name is Jocelyn Perreira. I'm the Executive Director and the Program Coordinator for
the Wailuku Main Street Association Inc./Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. We
thank you for your past support and humbly request your continued support of our
program in Fiscal Year 2009 small town appropriation request for $270,000. We provide
service to seven eligible towns and program affiliates representing the interest of
residents, merchants, professionals, community based nonprofits. And we continue to
interact and collaborate and augment and assist government services working most
especially with Planning, Public Works, Office of Economic Development and others.
Other comprehensive grant proposal that we have been sending to you contains our
program structure, program summary, program project descriptions as we have done in
prior years. The information documents extensive project involvement in support of
long-term revitalization within the context of historic preservation.
These
accomplishments could not happen without the support of the government dollar and
private sector working in partnership to leverage each dollar of government support with
an excellent return on investment. All of these improvements generate increased tax
base, stabilize and attract more meaningful jobs by leveraging that dollar to attract new
opportunities and reinvest it back into the local economy. The vital support of
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government and Main Street's ability to argument government services makes it one of
the most cost effective Economic Development programs within the historic preservation
ethic in the nation. At a time when public dollars are needed to promote and encourage
visitors to come to our islands, Main Street is hard at work along side government to
ensure the product, small towns can retain the integrity of its sense of place and not
compromise its genuine attraction.
Through appropriate new development the mass influx of visitors or rapid response to
unexpected challenges of significant concern in these changing times. All of our towns
are heavily invested in the general plan process and also preparing for subsequent
community plan updates. We are focused on the implementation of important Capital
Improvement Projects in Wailuku, Paia, Makawao, Haiku and other small towns in Maui
County. In closing I testified before and gave you folks a few comments from the other
small towns and I will to small degree. But I do want to put out a special SOS for the
people who live on Lanai and Molokai. Because they are in fact very, and Hana, they are
really in a position where they need as much help as they can. I'm dealing with a family
crisis this morning as a matter of fact and not being able to get from Lanai to Maui and
having the services that we all take for granted here on Maui is something that I really do
want to put across so please help these people in these particular areas in particular.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. PERREIRA: If. . .one minute, can I conclude, no?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If you can conclude.
MS. PERREIRA: Okay. In closing, I'll just say a few comments from the other towns. The
changes on Maui in recent years have been swift, dramatic and far-reaching. While some
growth is inevitable and necessary, the small towns of Maui County recall a different era
and values that are in danger of being lost. They give us a sense of place and remind us
of who we are. These towns are not empty museum pieces; they are vibrant, viable,
energetic and important to the local economy. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for Ms. Perreira? Seeing none, thank
you again for your testimony this morning.
MS. PERREIRA: Mahalo for all of your hard work and support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Ms. Gale McNish, followed by Mr. Keahi Bustamente.
MS. MCNISH: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, and to the Members of the Finance Committee,
Budget and Finance Committee. My name is Gale McNish and I'm here representing the
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Good Beginnings Maui Community Council. First, I want to thank the County Council
and the County of Maui for all that they have, for the many ways that they help young
children and their families in the County. They're renowned throughout the State, our
County is renowned as being particularly sensitive to families needs and for these, their
commitment to the early childhood programs and services in our County. And in fact it
was the County Council's concern and leadership over ten years ago that the County
subsidy was initiated.
Back in 1997, the County Council's Human Services Committee convened a special
subcommittee on childcare. Many families came and expressed their need for help to pay
for their childcare costs. The County Council responded by creating the Good
Beginnings subsidy program in the amount of $75,000. And this has been operating
over, consistently over that ten year period. The target for these funds was then, as it is
now, assistance to families who are part of a gap group. What do we mean by a gap
group? Who are they and why do they deserve our support? Well they are working
families who do not qualify for any other type of subsidy. They work full-time or attend
school full-time and earn just slightly too much to qualify for Federal childcare subsidies
that exist. Although they don't qualify for those subsidies, they still don't have enough
income to allow them to find quality childcare that they would like to have for their
children. And because they can't pay for the quality childcare, parents resort to other
solutions such as spouses arranging work hours so that one, one parent can stay home
with the child while the other one works. Or they may create a patchwork of childcare
among family members who are available to help out. Or they may just drop out of the
workforce all together.
Studies show time and again the importance of quality care and education for children in
the years before they enter kindergarten. The early years are critical for learning and for
future success. And parents want access to this type of quality care. The original
$75,000, which was allocated for the County subsidy has not been increased since 1997.
The number of families requesting assistance has grown of course and in addition the cost
of childcare has increased. Ten years ago, the average cost of licensed care was about
$325 a month, today it's about $450 and that's just an average. For infants and toddlers
being cared for in a center the cost can go as high as $800 a month. So we are asking the
County Council now to increase the County subsidy from 75,000 to 95,000 so that Good
Beginnings can provide assistance to a greater number of families who qualify for that
subsidy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again. The next testifier is Keahi Bustamente.

MR. BUSTAMENTE: Aloha ka kou.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aloha.

MR. BUSTAMENTE: My name is Keahi Bustamente and we are here on behalf of the Leeward
Haleakala Watershed Restoration Partnership or LHWRP. We'd like to thank you for
being so supportive of our watershed partnership as well as the four other partnerships in
Maui nui. The funding you provide not only goes to the protecting and restoring of
cultural and natural resources, it provides jobs and career opportunities for local people
like myself and our crew who stands behind me. With matches of up to $3 to every $1
you provide we believe that through watershed protection the County receives the biggest
bang for their buck. Again, mahalo for your support, being environmental leaders among
Hawaii's counties and investing in Maui's future. And as a reminder, for you and
everyone in the audience, water does not come from the faucet, it comes from the
watershed. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier at this time?
Thank you again for being here. Members, the Chair is aware of the time. We're going
to take Mr. Sandy Baz. And once Mr. Baz is completed with his testimony, we'll take
our mid morning break. Mr. Baz?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Where did he go?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Sandy, you're here? . . .(laughter). . .
I guess we're going to take our-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: There he is. He's here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just in the nick of time . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(laughter).

MR. BAZ: . . . I apologize, I was waiting for my named to be called as the next and I didn't hear
that. So anyway my name is Sandy Baz, I'm the Executive Director for Maui Economic
Opportunity. And I appreciate the opportunity to come testify in front of you this
morning and your commitment to the nonprofits in having this opportunity, taking out a
day specifically to review the grants that you guys give and the contracts that you guys
give to nonprofits. As far as M E 0 services are concerned, I mentioned the other day
about our transportation service request and additional funds. I'm sorry, catch my breath
for a second. Enlace Hispano, we are requesting an additional $8,750 and we'd ask that
you put that into the budget. For Head Start, an additional $49,689. For Kahi Kamalii,
$3,775. For MEO's Business Development Corporation $15,000 and for the Youth
Services an additional $65,000 as compared to what the Mayor put in.
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Now as you have gone, this Budget Committee has gone to the different communities,
you've heard many details about the programs and from the clients the different support
that they've received and the opportunities. And I can answer any questions you have
about the additional funds that we've requested. But I think you've heard enough about
the programs, and I appreciate you taking this time today to review all of these.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for Mr. Baz at this time? Seeing
none, thank you again. I hope you had a wonderhl run.

MR. BAZ: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(laughter). . .

MR. BAZ: I got some exercise.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, we're going to take a 15-minute break, we'll return
to the Chamber at. . .10:50. This meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:35 p.m.
10:53 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Continuing on, on our public testimony, we do have Michael Coulich.

MR. COULICH, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Coulich.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Coulich, followed by Mr. Jordan Jokiel

MR. COULICH: Thank you letting, for letting me up here before you and speak today. My
name is Michael Coulich, and represent the Vietnam Veterans of Maui County. We have
several concerns, one of our main concerns presently is to support Maui Long Term Care
in their grant. The reasoning behind this is. . .quite a few, manifold, actually. The
veterans for awhile from the State and the Federal government--particularly under this
Administration has not, and I don't mean the County Administration, I mean the State
and the Federal Administration--has not necessarily been doing what's right for the
veterans. What I do know is--about long-term care here so far or. . .caring with aloha is-it's necessary to cover from cradle to grave. I sat around, I, we. . .on a few of the Maui
Task Force meetings. I agree with most of their findings. What I see lacking is a
coordinated effort to get the County what it needs, particularly in some of the issues of
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long-term care for veterans. Rita Barreras gets it in the sense that she understands the
need, she understands the comprehensive need, she understands what the Task Force tried
to accomplish. Now it's up, since we're basically abandoned by the State, now it's up for
the County Council to support long-term care so they can continue to lobby for the funds.
I'll give you an example of one issue, well, two issues. One issue where things fell
through. There's a program available through the Federal government that was used to
build the State Veterans Home in Hilo. This is a program where 65 percent from the
Feds, 35 percent from the State. Hawaii has been granted, under this program, 212 beds.
Awhile ago when we were getting the primary care clinics going and stuff, we kind of
made a deal, we let the Big Island have it first because we were told that they needed the
most help economically and I have to agree with that. But now it's Maui's turn. But the
sad part is our County Council is not helping us achieve this and the State sat on this.
Those, our Legislators did not take advantage of this. . .issue. All they had to do was
pass the bond issue. They didn't even have to fund it until the money came. We lost one
years of work. So why I'm in favor of Rita Barreras is that this County needs to have a
strong voice lobbying for not only the veterans issues and the veterans care needs but
for the community as a whole. The island population is approximately 12 percent
veterans. When you count spouses in each family, you're talking about a large block of
people. Now some veterans have money. Some don't. But the real need is caring, look.
. .living at home for as long as you can is. . .a great idea. But as veterans. . .there are a lot
of veterans that have post-traumatic stress issues, they have trouble blending in to the rest
of the community.

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes
MR. COULICH: We need a 60 bed long-term care facility. Actually, we could occupy 120
beds. It brings money to the community, construction money and long-term jobs. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
Member Johnson?

Members, questions for the testifier this morning?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Michael, with regard to the money that the County, I
guess what you're saying is it would have been leveraged funding so that if we had
provided some seed money for some type of either facility or if we'd been able to I guess
provide to, is it the Veterans Administration?

MR. COULICH: No. What we really need is, I mean it would be nice. Vietnam Veterans of
Maui County have never come asking for money before. And I'm not sure that we really
should be the lead organization in this, but you have to have somebody that's lobbying
effectively for the community. I know this money you're talking about helping Maui
Long Term Care with, that includes us.
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. . . What we have to do is lobby the State. We have to make, just as we have to make
Council Members aware of certain issues, some of the things I just said I don't think
you're aware of. We had State legislators go. . .seed money is always a factor. We'd like
to have seed money to find a new piece of land to build a primary care clinic and change
that stuff, make it all in one spot. But basically the veterans here have the ideas, what's
lacking at the community and State level is help. Do something, get it together, organize
yourselves so--you, these particular healthcare projects you're looking at it as one of the
whole for the good of the whole. And forget individual priorities, you know, because
what really counts is the whole.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and, so I understand what you're saying. You're saying
that the presence of the voice at the State Legislature or at the Federal level to actually
lobby on behalf of people who need long-term care services and related services is really
what we should be funding.
MR. COULICH: In essence that's what I'm saying. In, in part I'm saying if, if Maui uses its
stuff right 'cause it's an island, it can become an example for the nation of what to do
with these kinds of situations. We have a big advantage here because we're an island.
That means they can study us. We should be going after as money, Federal, as many
Federal funds as we can to accomplish this purpose.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thanks very much, Michael, appreciate it
MR. COULICH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Member Johnson. The next testifier is
Mr. Jokiel, followed by Mr. Wesley Nohara.
MR. JOKIEL: Aloha and good morning. My name is Jordan Jokiel and I am the
Coordinator of the East Maui Watershed Partnership. . .(end of tape 2A - 11:OO
a.m.). . .several times in the last week and I'm here again to thank this Council as well as
the, the Office of Economic Development, Deidre and Department of Water Supply for
your continued support of watershed protection on East Maui as well as your support to
the other four watershed partnerships Countywide, three on this island, one on Lanai and
one on Molokai. Real briefly, by protecting our, by providing watershed protection you
protect our water supplies which are something, water is something that we depend on,
everyone in this room every single day. You also protect our native forests and their
unique bio diversity which in turn helps to perpetuate Hawaiian and local culture. And
that's something as simple as having something like Palapalai available for leipoo, for the
different hula halau that are here in the islands; or going out with the family and catching
opai for your baby luau. Those are things that are really important and very unique to, I
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think, Hawaii. Also by protecting or by, by supporting watershed protection you help to
stabilize upland areas by preventing erosion and that in turn protects our, all of our
communities where we live down slope as well as our near shore reefs and, and ocean
resources. Through our PR program which you guys very generously support we've
helped to create an educated community which some day will become decision makers
with a conservation ethic. And then finally you help to create employment opportunities
which lead to a sense of pride, ownership and professionalism in our local people. And I
think that point was very well made by, by Keahi and his crew that spoke just before the
break. I'm so encouraged by seeing people like that, you know, I got into conservation
back in '93 and there really wasn't that many young local people involved in this. And
it's really nice to see not only local people involved but see them move from just being
field technicians to really developing professional skills. It takes a lot for a guy like
Keahi to come up, and those local guys to come up and speak in front of you. And that is
very encouraging 'cause I hoping that those people eventually will occupy seats here and
become decision makers in this County and in this State. And I think that process has
been put in place by your support. And I'd just like to conclude by saying that I have
worked and I've said this before, I have worked in pretty much all the islands in
conversation. And Maui County really is a leader in conservation. The, the East Maui
Watershed Partnership is the first partnership that was ever formed in the State of Hawaii,
back in 1993. It was formed to protect 100,000 acres--basically from Kula all the way to
Kipahulu. There are now nine partnerships Statewide that are protecting over a million
acres. And I think that has built off of this model and just, just the synergy that's been
developed here on Maui County. Also the Invasive Species Committee started here, and
now there's invasive species committees in each County throughout the State. So I'd just
like to conclude by saying mahalo for your time and attention and the support you
provide us is very, very important.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this morning? Seeing
none--

MR. JOKIEL: Thank you
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
--thank you very much, Mr. Jokiel.
Mr. Wesley Nohara, followed by Ms. Terry1 Vencl.

The next testifier is

MR. NOHARA: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and fellow Members of the County Council.
Aloha, my name is Wes Nohara and I am the Vice-Chair of the West Maui Soil and
Water Conservation District. I'm testifying today in support of the grant funding for the
Soil and Water Conservation Districts of Maui County, as well as a Conservation
Specialist position which is important for our work.
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Being a little bit late is good, I've got to hear a lot of other testimonies and it's very
encouraging to see so many worthy organizations that do so much for our community.
And I have learned a lot. And I can see that we're in this boat together and it's important.
Truly working together makes Maui no ka oi. I'd like to take this time to explain a little
bit about the Soil and Water Conservation Districts. Most people don't know who we are
and what we do. The Soil and Water Conservation Districts was empowered through the
Legislature through Chapter 180 and there are 16 districts throughout the State of Hawaii
representing every island and every community within the State. Maui County has five
districts. That, those would be Molokai-Lanai, West Maui, Central Maui, Olinda-Kula,
and Hana. These districts are represented through volunteers, five board members who
donate their time and effort, as well as some of their own monies to, to do this work. We
are. . .locally led and we are born and raised within our district. We know our lands very
well, and the issues. And we want to learn more. The Soil and Water Conservation
Districts are really made up of partnerships. We are locally led, however, we work
closely with the NRCS which is the USDA Federal government. We are funded partially
through the State DLNR, we are funded through the County of Maui, and we work
closely with the Farm Bureau, U.H. Cooperative Extension Service and the Tri-Isle
RC&D and many other organizations.
. . .

We have done many projects as well as programs that we support and, as well as
administer. . .ranging from flood control, public safety, education and nonpoint source
pollution. We do the review, part of the review for the County Grading Ordinance, as
well as State conservation plans for agriculture. We have done many things. I represent
West Maui. And in the last 20-30 years, we have brought in over $16 million of Federal
monies for flood control projects, and we have matched it with County monies and
private monies to make West Maui one of the premier districts in the State in terms of
protecting our marine coastal environment.
We have throughout the State as well as many of the, the

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes
MR. NOHARA: . . . coral reefs, invasive species, drought mitigation and watershed
management. The funding that we're asking for is truly important and I'm hoping that
you will share your support as we are dedicated to improve our environment, our
economy and the community as a whole. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for Mr. Nohara? Seeing none, thank
you for being here this morning.

MR. NOHARA: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Terryl Vencl, followed by Ms. Stacey Moniz.
MS. VENCL: . . . Aloha. Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Council Members. My name is
Terryl Vencl, I'm the Executive Director of the Maui Visitors Bureau. Over the last
decade, numerous, comprehensive marketing efforts and programs have been
spearheaded by MVB and have contributed to the success and status of Maui which is
envied by destinations worldwide. Over the years, we have implemented the mission and
the vision set forth by the County when funding was first initiated for MVB.
Thanks. . .thanks to you and to the Administration for the vision and for the support. It is
our business to share our message with those who will, in turn, bring business to Maui
nui. Sometimes, that requires advertising. Sometimes, it requires hosting and educating
travel agents, meeting planners and hosting writers and editors from publications across
the globe. Sometimes, it means a dinner. Sometimes, it means a reception. Sometimes,
it means trade shows. But the results, in the end, are that planners bring meetings, travel
agents bring clients, and the media shares the Maui wonders with more and more readers.
MVBs funding and expending does not take place in a vacuum. MVB provides the
Mayor and the County Council a budget every year that includes a comprehensive
marketing plan that shares the plans for advertising, sales, public relations, convention
and international markets. Our expenditures are reviewed by the Office of Economic
Development and Finance before we are paid. Additionally, we report to the County the
benefit of our work. The monthly data shows the arrivals and occupancies, as well as
expenditures of the visitors to our local businesses. Reports presented to the County
Office of Economic Development provide details of our program, such as where we
placed ads, how many clicks on the websites, how many writers visited and wrote about
us, and how many travel agents we're training. The return on the 3.85 million investment
for MVB has provided, in the recent years, an over-22-million dollar addition to the
County revenues in the hotel tax alone. Additionally, the lion's share of real property
taxes are paid by the Hotel and Resort category. So, I believe that there is a return on
your investment. The three-plus billion dollars in annual visitor spending over the past
few years is money spent at our island businesses by visitors. These dollars were spent
across the spectrum, hotels, restaurants, retail, activities, transportation, you had grocery
stores, gas stations and more. Maui nui continues to experience the highest expenditures
in the State of Hawaii. Small businesses are then able to pay their bills and keep
residents employed, flower growers and farmers sell their products to our hotels and
restaurants. We hire local entertainers to provide music and dance and we take Maui
products to our media blitzes, trade shows and travel agent training programs.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes
MS. VENCL: If the visitor industry isn't performing well, we will lose jobs, we will lose
business and we will lose revenues. As our population continues to grow, so do our
needs. If not for the visitor industry, our residents would have to pay more in their
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personal real property taxes to meet just the essential needs of the community. We're
currently experiencing a softening in the market. Oil, mortgages, bankruptcies are
already affecting our community. The events of the past week and a half should be a
reminder to all of us that we must be ever vigilant in our efforts to keep the industry
strong and to provide opportunities for our residents. As the economy continues to be a
concern, if we're not there reminding our stakeholders about Maui nui, I can guarantee
you that our competitors will be there to fill the void--and with a lot more dollars than
MVB spends. In return, I'm sorry, in order to retain our market share --

MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
MS. VENCL: --it is imperative that Maui nui remains in the forefront. Mahalo for all of your
past support and your, hopefully, future support. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier this morning?
Seeing none, thank you again for your testimony.
Ms. Moniz, followed by
Ms. Carol Reimann.
MS. MONIZ: Sorry. Good morning. Thank you for your support. My name is Stacey Moniz
and I'm the Executive Director of Women Helping Women, Maui's Domestic Violence
Shelter and Programs for Victims of Domestic Violence. We serve people here on Maui
and also on the island of Lanai. I wanted to thank you for your support for our agency
with our, our line item that we have with the County. We had asked for $190,000 this
year, which was an increase from 165,000 and the Mayor did put the, last year's amount
of 165,000 into the budget and we're grateful for that. However, I'm still going to ask
that if it's possible for you to increase it back to 190,000 which is what we need to
expand our, part of the money would be to expand our Lahaina office to a full-time
program. Right now, we get the money from the State and they pay for three days a
week, like a part-time office so we'd like to bring that up to full-time.
You know, I get to come and speak with you--usually, I just wing it, yeah, because I
know my agency and I appreciate all of your attention. But usually I come and I speak to
you because the people that we represent really won't come and speak--it's hard to be a
survivor and speak about your experience as a survivor. And so, you know, my job is to
be very professional and show you what a good agency we have and how important the
work is and we're fiscally sound and all of that. But yesterday, Kim Compoc from
Mediation Services and I got to go to Lahainaluna High School and speak to a business
class and, and so I wrote this down because I was really blown away. Because I was
being the professional that I am, I was speaking about nonprofits as a business and how
you can get into the business of nonprofits and we need accountants and we need, you
know, business-minded and even architects and what not.
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So we were talking about business and I was really moved by several students who
shared their own personal stories of domestic violence. Even. . .they were brought to
tears by their own personal struggles. I forgot how powerful domestic violence is and
how deeply it effects people, all members of the family.
. . .

. . . Even to a point where they could be moved to speak out at their business class. So I
was moved because they said they knew people who needed our services, they knew
people who had used our services and one young man said that his, he had helped his
friends get to the "secret house", which is our shelter, which I thought that was so
amazing. So in the last 24 hours, I've been really. . .obviously, emotional about that
because I forgot. You know, I'm a survivor myself, and yet I forgot how critical our
work is and how many people are affected by domestic violence. And I just wanted to
take this moment to, 'cause I know that we all know somebody, we all do, every one of
us here knows somebody. And it's really important --

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. MONIZ: --the work that we do. And so I just wanted to share that with you because I was
so, it was an eye-opening experience for me.
And I. . .usually am very,
like. . .professional but I. . .am still kind of choked up by that. So I wanted to thank you
all for your support because we are. . .working together, saving families, saving lives.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this morning? Thank
you very much.
. . . Ms.

Carol Reimann, followed by Ms. Barbara Long.

MS. REIMANN: . . . Aloha, Council Chair and Council Members. My name is Carol Reimann.
I am the Executive Director at the Maui Hotel and Lodging Association. I'm here on
behalf of my association to ask full support of the 3.85 million proposed for the Maui
Visitors Bureau. The Maui Hotel and Lodging Association is comprised of members
from our visitor accommodations industry and allied businesses in the County of Maui.
Our members collectively employ over 10,000 Maui County residents. As a global
leader in tourism marketing, we strongly believe in the value that M U 3 brings to our
community, and we urge you to support the important work that they do. The marketing
and promotions of Maui as a destination is crucial to the future of tourism for Maui
County. With the economic down turn on the horizon and the recent shutdown of Aloha
and ATA airlines, it's imperative that we continue funding M U 3 so that Maui residents
and the, so that Maui remains top of mind in the marketplace. In times of economic
hardship, it is not the time to decrease marketing funds. On the contrary, we should be
increasing our efforts to be a major player in a highly competitive market. The results of
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MVBs hard work have positively affected the economic health of Maui County. Their
success is tangible, resulting in a significant number of tourism related jobs for residents,
supplemental business for local vendors and support of local agriculture for food and
beverage operations, as well as TAT and property taxes to support a myriad of
government functions. In addition, the visitor industry also contributes considerable
community support to Maui's charitable organizations such as the visitor industry charity
walk, which last year brought in $360,000; donations from individual hotels and
businesses to a broad spectrum of fund raisers; financial contributions from various
events supported by tourism-related businesses such as the Mercedes Benz Championship
supported by Kapalua. In 2007, they brought in over $500,000 and the Senior Skins
sponsored by Wailea in 2007 brought in over $50,000. Intense global competition
for. . .within the various travel markets has been increasingly daunting. The marketing of
Maui as a destination needs to be strong and consistent so that we can maintain our
competitive edge and continue to be a presence. While we realize that the budget request
for MVB represents significant dollars, it's a relatively small amount when you consider
the tremendous return on investment that our County reaps as a result. We humbly ask
that you vote in favor of full funding for MVB. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again for testifying this morning. The next testifier is Ms. Barbara Long, followed
by John Andersen.
MS. LONG: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Budget Committee Members. I'm
Barbara Long and I am as you know President of Friends of Old Maui High School. On
behalf of the Friends of Old Maui High and more than 4,000 alumni, some of whom are
here, thank you all for your continuing support for the preservation and revitalization of
the historic Maui High campus at Hamakuapoko. We're pleased to be under the OEDs
wing for this next budget phase and I especially appreciate Deidre Tegarden's helpful
attitude and generous assistance with funding for Friends. The OED line item as
proposed by Mayor Tavares is $100,000. It will cover Friends' basic maintenance,
safety, and security operations at the 23 acre site. It represents a 55 percent reduction in
County support from the previous two years when we received grants of $275,000 each
year. Just yesterday I learned of a new maintenance problem, the band room roof is
leaking into this otherwise useable building. And I've circulated photographs to you now
to show you the damage. And, obviously, this needs to be repaired immediately before
this very functional building is destroyed like so many others at the campus. Friends is
proud to be a steward of this valuable site, working with alumni; our partner, Community
Work Day; and hundreds of volunteers to maintain its safety and security and plan for its
future as the Patsy Mink Center for Environmental Education. We value Maui High for
its architecture, its history, its past and its potential future. We are committed to that
mission but after all it is County property. We need your commitment, too, to make sure
this historic campus does not disintegrate piece by piece as it did in the past; that it has
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enough support to move forward into its next new inspiring life. Please consider the
present needs of Old Maui High School, and hopefully you can give a small increase to
the OED line item to cover the inevitable repairs, emergencies, break-ins, whatever is
going to be happening out there in the next year. I appreciate any help you can give.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Johnson?

Thank you.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Barbara, you said that the previous funding was 275?
MS. LONG: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And it's reduced to?
MS. LONG: One hundred thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: One hundred thousand. Okay.
MS. LONG: Yeah. Now, Deidre was able to find us another 25,000, but that's pretty specific to
developing some programs. . .at the site.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and so do you have any estimates for the roof
repair as . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. LONG: I just found out yesterday.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay
MS. LONG: And, hopefully, we can "repair" and not "replace"
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And if you can get that to us as soon as possible, I'd
really appreciate it.
MS. LONG: Sure. But, you know, that's not going to be the only one. Those, those buildings
are -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh. Oh. I know.
MS. LONG: --pretty old . . .(laughter).
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But at least so that if that's a serviceable building right
now -MS. LONG: Yeah
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --to not allow that to deteriorate further
MS. LONG: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.

MS. LONG: Thanks for your help.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 1 can't let Ms. Long leave without thanking her as an alumna, a
proud one, of Old Maui High. Thank you for all the work you do.
MS. LONG: Thank you. Go Sabers!
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER B AISA: Go Sabers!
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Molina, how about you?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go Sabers.
ALL: . . .(laughter).
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Go Sabers . . .(inaudible). .
ALL: . . .(laughter).
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank
by. . .Ms. Sally Black-Barron.

you,

Barbara.

Mr. Andersen,

followed
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MR. ANDERSEN: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Council Members. My name is
John Andersen. I'm the Executive Director of Na Hale 0 Maui, our community land
trust for affordable housing. I'd like to begin by thanking you for your investment with
the start-up funding that has allowed Na Hale 0 Maui to become fully operational and
now is working on proposals to develop the affordable housing that our mission brings us
to do. But I'd also like to thank Mayor Tavares for including us in her proposed budget
once again this year to allow us to continue. I distributed a packet of information earlier
this week and I don't want to repeat that, but I want to talk about two very important
words this morning. And those are self sufficiency and sustainability. In order for us as
a community land trust to meet our mission of providing affordability in perpetuity, we
have to build an organization that will last in perpetuity and that will be sustainable to be
there as the stewards of the land for this generation and the next generation and the
generation after that. In order to build that type of organization we know, we have to
become self sufficient. We also paid attention, close attention to Chair Hokama's
warning last year about being dependent on grant money year after year. To that end, our
board of directors brought Michael Brown a consultant with Burlington Associates who
facilitated our first strategic planning retreat a couple years ago. We brought him back in
September of last year to focus on a five-year business plan for self sufficiency and
sustainability. We did modeling using computer programs to project a budget for the
next ten years, and we had Michael bring us budgets from community land trusts around
the country who have achieved the level of self sufficiency that we are after. What we
learned was the key is to build an inventory of approximately 300 homes in order to
establish the threshold for self sufficiency. Having an inventory of 300 plus homes
allows the generation of lease fees, marketing fees paid by developers, membership dues
paid by our members, private donations and ultimately when we are undertaking our own
development, developer fees that can be collected as well. So we projected those out and
we do now have a five year business plan with a ten year projected budget and annual
work plans that we are working from to get to that point of self sufficiency and
sustainability for our organization. It's going to take approximately three to five years to
reach that point, but we appreciate the investment, and we want you to know that your
investment in Na Hale 0 Maui is one to allow us to get to that point, to bring to the
community our mission of affordable housing that stays affordable in perpetuity. So
mahalo for your continued support, and we request help from the Council and the
Administration in helping us achieve that threshold level of 300 affordable homes so that
we can be self sufficient and continue to provide more affordable homes in the future to
the residents of our County. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again, Mr. Andersen.

MR. ANDERSEN: Thank you
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Sally Black-Barron, followed by Rita Barreras.
MS. BLACK-BARRON: . . . Chairman Pontanilla, County Council Members. My name is
Sally Barron, Sally Black-Barron, and I am the Maui Director of the National Kidney
Foundation office here on Maui. I'm here to, to ask for your kind consideration of the
third year request. This is the third time we've come to you in regard to our Maui CKD
prevention, intervention and dialysis patient support services program. Our line item
request for this year is, for the Fiscal 2009, is in the reduced amount of $45,000.
Interesting to hear about self sufficiency, I know when I first came to you three years ago,
two years ago I had mentioned that we would be working very diligently to not depend
on County funding forever. And we have been very lucky with the County's partnership
to be able to use that as a springboard to actually bring in some additional funding. Even
though it's small grants, enough where we have been able to reduce our request from the
previous two years by 10 percent. So we're very proud of that but that wouldn't be
possible if it hadn't been for the County Council's original designation of grant funds for
our program. As you are aware, there is a major, major epidemic of kidney disease and
kidney failure throughout Hawaii. It affects one in seven residents of our State. Those
numbers are supposed to double by 2010. And I have to thank you so much for the
vision and the guts it took two years ago to say you wanted to participate in this venture
of trying to provide a very comprehensive, cost effective program on behalf of the
citizens of Maui County. We're writing the, the major wave of this epidemic, but the
good news is we are really making a lot of progress. With the funding that we asked for
and again this year all of the funding this year is, is just for the salary of a Program
Coordinator. Originally, I was doing this program by myself plus trying to raise funds
and I was getting nowhere and, and watching people die on dialysis every, you know,
every month somebody was passing away. And that is why I came to you in the first
place and having that position to help me in this fight against this epidemic has been so
phenomenal. We have, working together, my full-time Program Coordinator and I have
been able to recruit over 200 medical and lay volunteers to help us initiate our programs.

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes
MS. BLACK-BARRON: We do the organization and with the help of our, our army of
volunteers we can keep our costs down and we have served in the last two years over
7,000 Maui residents. And it continues to grow and at the, in the very beginning when
people would hear about this epidemic, they'd go huh, what's that? And now when we
say are you aware and they go, oh yeah, yeah, you know, why is that in Hawaii? So
we've really been able to make a difference and you all have led the entire State in this
effort by establishing a neighbor island demonstration project for this effort. So I just
want to thank you so much and I hope that you still have $45,000 in the budget for us so
we can keep this momentum going, we've literally tripled the number of people we were
able to serve previously. So thank you again.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(end of tape 2B - 11:OO p.m.). . .for the testifier this morning?
Seeing none, thank you for being here.
MS. BLACK-B ARRON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Rita Barreras. Members, Rita is going to speak on
two different items. One is the Maui Long Term Care, and the second one is MEO. I'd
just like to caution you, you've got three minutes to do both.
MS. BARRERAS: Oh, dear. Well, then I'll try and sum up real quickly. Good morning. My
name is Rita Barreras, I'm the Director of the Maui Long-Term Care Partnership. Thank
you for the support over the years for the partnerships efforts. Back in Fiscal Year 2003
you gave us a grant that helped us with strategic planning and then from there we
received in kind support including Kaunoa Senior Center, Maui Community . . . Maui
Office on Aging and than the Office of Economic Development is now overseeing a
couple of grants that we receive. The Volunteer Caregiver Pilot Project and one that we
call Maui Community Care Corps. We submitted our request to Mayor Tavares for
300,000 and to consolidate both of those lines. In your proposed budget it shows that the
lines are consolidated and there's $275,000 request. So if you could consider us for any
higher, we'd appreciate it. And Maui Community College has become our fiscal agent
for the Maui Community Care Corps grant. We're gratefbl for this investment, I cannot
tell you, you know, our initiatives focus on increasing the workforce both paid and
unpaid. Strengthening home and community based services to respond to the needs of
elders and people with disabilities and developing new approaches to address their needs.
Our coalition is a cross section of Maui County community organizations, consumers,
volunteers, and businesses. We are organizing the system so that it works when people
need home and community based services so that's why we call it the Maui Community
Care Corps. We're striving for excellence in service delivery, at the same time we're
moving in a new direction that encompasses a holistic model of preventive health to
encourage people to age with aloha at all ages. The grant will allow us to continue to
tackle the worker shortage, worker retention, infrastructure challenges and information
needs. And some examples of our initiatives include the Volunteer Caregiver Pilot
Project, the High School Career Shadowing Program, the Long Term Care Curriculum
Pilot Project at Maui Community College, the Compassionate Caring Training Program
at Maui Community College VITEC, maintaining a services directory and website for the
community, developing a new Center for Excellence on Aging with Aloha. And also
advocating for change in systems at all levels. And so I'll do a quick advocacy, I guess,
for M E 0 in my three minutes. I've been impressed with M E 0 ever since I moved here
from Colorado--that was a little, almost six years ago. And I used to work at a state
office of economic opportunity in Colorado. I saw it from a state level. And when I
came here and actually saw how M E 0 worked at the local level, especially its
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transportation services, I was most impressed. I cannot tell there's nothing like it that I
ever saw in the mainland. And so when I saw in the newspaper recently about the new
center that they're planning and the foresight that went into that, I said that was real
planning. That's being visionary. And so anything you can consider -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes

MS. BARRERAS: --to put into that center, I would really encourage you to do so.
Transportation services, as you know, is a major service for people with disabilities and
older people. So I just want to say thanks for the investment that you've given to the
partnership, and as you look forward to the future, we hope you'll continue to consider
us. We think we're doing some cutting edge work. And we know it because we're
getting feedback from the national level that what we're doing in Maui County is cutting
edge. So thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you -MS. BARRERAS : Thank you
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --very much.
Ms. Leslie Wilkins.
MS. SKOG:

. . . Good

The next testifier is Jeanne Skog, followed by

morning --

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MS. SKOG: --Chair Pontanilla and Council Members. Thank you very much for this
opportunity. I'm Jeanne Skog, President and CEO of the Maui Economic Development
Board. I want to first start off by saying thank you very much for your partnership over
the past 25 years. I can't believe it's been 25 years. . .since I've been with it since 24
years ago . . .(laughter). . . So anyway, it's gone by very, very quickly. You've heard
from many people that we've worked with over the past couple of weeks. And I just
want to take the time today to put some of their testimony in context. First of all, in the
whole area of business attraction and expansion assistance, basically following that 80120
concept that your growth will come 20 percent from new business and 80 percent from
existing business, we look at our work along those lines. And so, yes, with your help and
with the State's help we do go out and exhibit at selected conferences on the mainland.
And the keyword there is selected. The other keyword is that we follow up to make sure
that we're milking this as much as we can from those touches. We also pay a lot of
attention to existing businesses and you heard a lot from existing businesses here. If
they're startups, we work on how they can survive. If they're established businesses that
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want to expand, we work to help them do that. So the question is how do we go about
working with these businesses? First of all, certainly we meet with them and we try to
figure out what are their goals, what are they all about, what stage are they at, what are
the impediments that they're coming up against, what are the opportunities that they
present and what kind of partnerships could we help network them with, how can MEDB
help or is this somebody that we should refer out to our rolodex if you will of people that
can support them. And then, we also look at the fit. And this becomes very important in
terms of the overall Focus Maui Nui lens, if you will, on what makes sense here, how
they're respecting our community's cultural environmental values. And we really do steer
them if we see that there's a problem there. So in terms of taking action, we definitely
look at connecting them up, we look at networking, we look at policies and try to have
that voice at the State level, for instance. We look at venture capital possibilities,
teaming agreements that can connect them up with each other to make the most of it.
And most recently, looking at some workshops to get them to understand the Federal
picture a bit better. So the result is that the investment that you made and we're making
is actually working, it's creating steady manageable growth in tech related businesses and
jobs. And some of you, I know, heard Paul Brubaker a few weeks ago when he talked
about the knowledge-based industries being the fastest growing segment in Hawaii. And
that is certainly true on Maui. So it's very, very encouraging. The second set of
comments I have really have to do with Focus Maui Nui and --

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. SKOG: --it's unbelievable but its, it's been five years since we launched that project. And,
you know, the question is why do we persevere. And very simply put--because we said
we would. To the 1,700 people and the people that came after that, we said we would
not, this would not stop with the report, that we would carry this out into planning
processes and thinking within our community and that it would guide our community. So
we have been focused on that--everything from the general plan, the Youth Alliance, Ka
Ipu Kukui, collaborating with the Farm Bureau, and most recently developing the
Benchmark project that will actually help us measure those things that tie into the
priorities of Focus Maui Nui. So we thank you for the partnership and the opportunity
that this has created within Focus Maui Nui for us to bring our community together
anchored around shared values. And I think that's really, really important that we have
this common base from which to bring the diverse elements in our community together.
So thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for Ms. Skog? Seeing none, thank
you again for your testimony. Ms. Leslie Wilkins, followed by Mr. Andrew Carson.
MS. WILKINS: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Council. I'm
Leslie Wilkins, and I serve as Vice-President of Maui Economic Development Board.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 11,2008

I'm responsible for directing our education and workforce development initiatives. You
just heard our CEO speak about MEDB's steadfast dedication for 25 years to diversify
the economy, to work to strive to find a balance and to build expanded career
opportunities for our young people to help stop the brain drain that many rural
communities like ourselves are challenged with. Concurrently with these efforts to grow
a desired and targeted new economic sectors, we are working in partnership to ensure that
our Maui residents and our young people are trained with the skills to compete to win and
fill this emerging jobs. Jobs that are both high skilled and high wage paying. You, the
Council, have been visionary and progressive in your investment in building the
education to workforce pipeline. You have provided leadership in implementing the
number one strategy for action identified in Focus Maui Nui, the action to improve
education, and you have said unequivocally that education is an issue worthy of our
entire community investment, it is just not a State issue. We have been honored and
humbled by the many students and program participants that have come forward these
past two weeks in the testimony process. Our science, technology and engineering
pipeline initiatives really touch about 5,000 participants each year. They span the entire
spectrum from working with our very young students to help them participate in job
shadowing programs and truly understand tech career pathways through engaging hands
on fun activities. We work very diligently at the middle school level to let these students
understand about sophisticated science by native Hawaiian ancestors and put that in
context with the current career pathways that are available today in science at home on
Maui. We work hard in investing in educating our educators because we know that has a
multiplier effect, we've been teaching and training our teachers on how to put engaging
teaching formats into the classroom, particularly in math and science. Project EAST,
which every year you continue to invest in,, we have now reached more than 2,400
students. We are pleased to bring Molokai High School and Middle School online this
year with this impressive hands-on community-based program that is teaching the value
of service learning. We're demonstrated that when given the tools, high-tech tools, our
children can compete with anyone in a national arena. We're also bridging our industry
investment in education by providing mentoring opportunities and internships. And
finally at the end of that pipeline, we thank you for your investment in our Kamaaina
Come Home initiative. This past year, our program partners reached 2,500 former
Hawaii residents, whether they're on the mainland attending college or they're seasoned
professionals in helping recruit them and show them that there are pathways home to live
and work on Maui and raise their children in the culture of which they grew up in. We're
very pleased to be a part of bringing Hawaii's talent back home.

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. WILKINS: And in closing, I'd like to say that we take very seriously our responsibility to
be stewards of the County's taxpayer money. We work very hard to leverage that
investment. In fact, this past year we're leveraging it with eight different Federal
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programs. We're pleased to have Federal funding from the US Departments of Labor,
Education, Agriculture, Commerce, National Science Foundation, HRSA and HUD. We
also have increased State and private sector investment in our education and workforce
efforts. So even though the County's investment is less than 10 percent of the funding
we expend in our STEM initiative, it is the key, it's critical because it helps us make the
case that we're a great place to invest in pilot and demonstration programs for
progressive learning because our local community supports it, too. So thank you for your
continued support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you very much for your testimony. Mr. Harold, Andrew Carson, followed by
Mr. Harold Keyser.
MR. CARSON: Good morning, Chairman Pontanilla and Council Members. My name is
Andrew Carson, I'm an instructor at Maui Community College in the Sustainable
Construction Technology program. And I'm here today to speak on part in behalf of
three-part budget request for Maui Community College, and specifically the request for
Sustainable Science and Renewable Energy projects. I know there's a lot of support at
Maui Community College for a partnership between Maui County and the college. I
know there is as well in the County and probably in the community. We have shared
goals, the County and the college, workforce development, the college can teach green
technology to residents and bring this information to the community. We, energy
independence, we can teach people about alternative energy systems and renewable
energy like photovoltaics, solar hot water, wind energy, biomass, waste to energy, bio
fuels, these kind of technologies. And island sustainability, we teach people how to
better manage our renewable resources and specifically we're going to address
monitoring of green house gases and implementing measures to reduce our emissions.

The sustainable technology, Sustainable Construction Technology program that I'm a
part of. . .these funds will be used directly for curriculum development. And we'd be
following the United State Green Building Council LEED criteria to try and develop that
kind of curriculum at the college and also to have the facility LEED accredited. Some of
the lead goals, the LEED program goals are the reduction of energy in construction
projects, a reduction of building energy loads through efficient lighting systems and
climate control systems, recycled and low energy and low impact building products. And
the ultimate goal would be lower cost, longer lasting buildings that use less energy and
create a healthier interior environment for the occupants.
I teach an environmental internship class which gives a hands-on opportunity for students
to work with renewable and alternative energy technologies such as. . .photovoltaic
energies, solar hot water, small wind turbine development and we are also running an
anemometer loan program to assess wind resources on the island. I also teach for the
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Construction Academy, which is an outreach program to Maui County high schools. We
teach professional construction skills. I teach in Hana through, with a program with
Rick Rutiz. And we have students involved in community projects there. And we're
trying to bring renewable and alternative energy projects into that community. I know
when I talk to my students about stuff like energy can neither be created nor destroyed,
they kind of glaze over. But when I talk to them about things like photovoltaics and solar
hot water and vertical windmills and bamboo construction, they listen. And I want to
encourage you to, to help us do more of this. In closing, I'd like to say that Maui has a
unique opportunity to demonstrate sustainability to the global community.

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. CARSON: I know there's a commitment on behalf of the college and my colleagues to do
this. And on behalf of myself, I'm personally committed to this. I will stay up late at
night and I will go the extra mile if you're willing to give us this funding. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Are you included in the Mayor's budget?

MR. CARSON: We are included, Maui County has a three-part request. And we have requested
300,000 for sustainable sciences and alternative renewable energy projects.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And is it under Economic Development or don't you
know?

MR. CARSON: That's a good question. I don't know that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I was just looking for it and I, because it wasn't
specifically identified I'll, I'll find it. Thank you.

MR. CARSON: Yep. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Members? Thank you very much
for your testimony. Mr. Keyser, followed by Ms. Keri Kalilikane.

MR. KEYSER: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, Council Members. I'm Harold Keyser and I'm
here this morning, I represent the College of Tropical Agriculture and Human Resources
of the University of Hawaii here in Maui County. And I want to begin by thanking you
again for all of your past and present support for our programs in Maui County, which we
deliver through the Cooperative Extension Services here in Kahului, in Hoolehua, and
through the Kula Agriculture Experiment Station. The, the college invests about one and
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a half million dollars through facility salaries and facilities in Maui County. And the
support that the County gives us for delivering our programs complements that very well
and it really helps us deliver the benefits to all of our clients in, in the County. I've
submitted to you and hope you have in front of you a two-page summary of the details of
our request for this Fiscal Year 2009 for our extension in Applied Research programs.
And these were developed through requests to our faculty and this is what they came up
with their priorities covering agriculture, environmental management, renewable energy
resources, nutrition food safety and youth and family.
I did also I want to alert to the, that we just got approved for another fairly significant
investment in Maui County and that is a research position for invasive plant specie
specialist. These are, these are hard positions to get within the college and with
collaboration with the chair of the environmental sciences department that position is
going to be based here at our Kula Agricultural Experiment Station. So this will
strengthen quite significantly our ability to address and do research and solve some
problems on invasive species. We are also working currently with the Office of
Economic Development with Victor Reyes on looking at bio fuel crops, we're going to
be very shortly putting in a long-term trial on Jatropha to look at this, to evaluate its
potential as a biofuel crop. We would also like to encourage the Council's support for
many of our collaborators, there's many worthy organizations that we collaborate and
partner with including the Farm Bureau, the flower growers, the Soil and Water
Conservation Districts, many of the groups you've heard from this morning. The
watershed partnerships, certainly our educational cooperators at Maui Community
College and many others, and of course the Office of Economic Development. If you
have any questions about the, any of the requests you have in front of you, I'd be glad to
answer them now or at another time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you very much for your testimony this morning. The next testifier is Ms. Kalilikane,
followed by Mr. Alexander DeRoode.
MS. KALILIKANE: Aloha, Committee Chair and Members. My name is Keri Kalilikane and I
am here on behalf of Hale Mahaolu's Homeownership and Housing Counseling program.
Our executive director, Roy Katsuda, apologizes for not being able to be here today. He
has just returned from the East Coast and brought a cold back with him. Hale Mahaolu's
Homebuyers Education and Counseling program, Housing Counseling program has been
a HUD approved housing counseling program since 1988 providing a variety of
counseling services at no cost to the clients. Our program provides education and
direction to those who are in need of assistance on a variety of housing related issues.
We provide the required reverse mortgage counseling to homeowners 62 and older
seeking a reverse mortgage loan. Mortgage delinquency and foreclosure prevention
counseling to those who are facing foreclosure on their home or financial difficulty. Our
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homebuyers education and pre-purchase counseling to potential first time homebuyers
provides both group and individual counseling to those who plan to purchase a home in
the near future. We also provide counseling on other housing related issues. Over the
next year we, and years to come we plan to continue to provide quality counseling
services to our clients.
On an additional note, I'd also like to ask that you give favorable consideration to MEOs
transportation request. They provide a wonderful and much needed service to all of Hale
Mahaolu's residents and seniors. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again for your testimony. Mr. Roode, DeRoode, followed by Kili Namau'u.

MR. DEROODE: Aloha and good morning, Council Chair and Council Members. My name is
Alex DeRoode, I'm the Executive Director of the Sustainable Living Institute of Maui at
Maui Community College. I'm here today to testify on behalf of, support for County
funds for the Sustainable Sciences and Renewable Energy project. This request is for
$300,000 to support curriculum development which my colleague, Andy Carson, also
shared with you in our Sustainable Construction Technology program, as well as our
Emerging Sustainable Sciences four-year program. I'd also like to thank the Office of
Economic Development for their support. And Deidre Tegarden, Victor Reyes, and
Clark Hashimoto have been very supportive of our initiatives at the college with regards
to sustainability.
We, we see, you know, a sense of urgency both at, in our community here at the County
through Focus Maui Nui and also at the State level with our Hawaii 2050 initiative for
sustainability. Also at the Federal level Hawaii has been designated as a testing site for
renewable energies. So we have an opportunity here to have Maui serve as a model for
renewable energies and sustainable agriculture. I'd just like to say I graduated from high
school here on Maui in 1994 and it's taken me 14 years to come back here and be able to
earn enough, a sustainable living wage as we call it. So I would like to urge the Council
to approve this $300,000 of support for our program. This will enable the college as well
to serve as a beta testing site for sustainable technologies and a demonstration site for
how these technologies can work to secure a sustainable future for us here on our island.
I'd also like to, I am a Ka Ipu Kukui Fellow and this is the, we are the first class of the Ka
Ipu Kukui Fellowship program. So I'd also like to testify on behalf of that program and
urge the County to continue its support of that fellowship program. Am I forgetting
anything? Oh. I'd also like to testify in support of County funding for the CTHAR
Renewable Energy project and particularly for its Jatropha testing project, exploring ways
for us to grow our own biofuel crops here on island and finding ways to reduce our
dependency on imported oil here on our island. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again. Ms. Namau'u, followed by Mr. Tony Krieg.
MS. NAMAU'U: Aloha awakea, Chairman Pontanilla, and the Budget and Finance Committee.
Aloha to all of you. Thank you for allowing me to speak in support for funding for the
Maui County childcare subsidy. I am Kili Namau'u, and I'm the Director of Punanaleo
Maui Hawaiian Emersion Preschool. I want to share how important the subsidy is for
families to seek early education for their children. Many of these families are not able to
qualify for State funding programs such as Childcare Connection and Open Doors. These
are the gap families that Gale McNish had testified earlier to. The middle income
families who make just enough money to disqualify them for major subsidies with the
State as well as private funding such as Kamehameha Schools, Keiki Pauahi scholarships.
In order for them to pay for tuition, they need to take on additional jobs. We were
fortunate to have one family this past year that received this critical funding, in fact it
was, it was the make or break decision for them to allow their keiki to come to our
preschool. And they had shared with me that it really made a great difference on being
able to educate their child in a licensed preschool center versus sending their child to a
babysitter. And the husband is already working two jobs and it allowed the mother to
stay with the one job that she does have and not seek an additional position. And because
of the Maui County Childcare subsidy they were able to spend quality time with their
children and participate in extra curricular activities and they did not have to limit their
educational options due to financial constraints.
This family also understood the need to share this subsidy with other families, in their
first year they received a specified amount and the next year they were asked to reduce
that amount in order that other families could be assisted and they were willing to make
that small sacrifice and commitment so that other families could participate. And most
families recognize the significance of the subsidy and want others to have the same
opportunity. Please support an increase in funding for this very viable and worthwhile
purpose. It will allow children to enjoy quality education in a licensed private daycare or
center based schools. It's less pressure on families to seek additional employment and it
offers families valuable family time together and an overall social support. And we also
want to thank the County Council for being very innovative in the State of Hawaii in
terms of early education. You've been very supportive and we in the early childcare
community really appreciate all that you've done. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again for your testimony. Mr. Krieg, followed by Mr. Terry Applegate.
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MR. KRIEG: Good afternoon. It's 12 o'clock. Councilman Pontanilla, Chairman Pontanilla,
and Members of the Committee. My name is Tony Krieg, I'm CEO of Hale Makua. I'm
also the Chair of the Maui Long Term Care Partnership a consortium of organizations
and individuals dedicated to establish and sustain a comprehensive coordinated home and
community based model of services for all that will foster quality of life and death with
dignity. I'm writing to, I'm testifying to request your continued support of funding of the
partnership and its community care core initiative. Much of what my written testimony is
echoes Rita Barreras' presentation as well as some of the other community members that
have been here. So I kind of wanted to depart from that for the next couple of minutes
and just say, kind of give you some personal thoughts.
You know, five years ago the, the hospital was, there were probably 100 people in the
hospital and in the community waiting for a long-term care bed and the hospital was
angry at Hale Makua that we, we didn't have enough beds, we weren't taking people et
cetera. And so we got our two organizations together and started some planning and then
with the help of Robert Wood Johnson we started a community planning process five
years ago. And we convened MEO. . .(end of tape 3A - 12:01 p.m.). . .Hospice, we were
sort of the founders of it and then that has since spread too. And there have been many,
many people in the community who have learned what care in the long-term care means,
who funds it, how it's not funded and what new kinds of models can be created. And
what we got from that was that people want to stay and live at home, everybody wants to
do that. But as families are changing that's becoming more and more difficult for
families. And so the focus has been on the need to look at the workforce, you know, I'm
flying, I flew 20 nurses in last year just to keep the beds open at Hale Makua. But when
you think of care in the long term it's not just nurses, actually for every nurse you need
four or five basically para-professionals. And this, as you heard, you know, school kids
are not necessarily looking at care, care of elders as a career path.
And so we've begun to change that with, with the training and the schools that have
worked with the partnership and worked with Maui Adult Daycare and Hale Makua in
Kula to see what, what a fulfilling career it might be for para-professionals as well as
professional nurses. We have a website that you can search, it's the only website in the
State that will tell you if you're looking for personal care, daycare or what have you, you
can search either by word or by check off and all of the services in Maui County will pop
up for you. And I think the other thing that we've really done is to provide people with
planning for their, and awareness for their own personal situation.

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes
MR. KRIEG: So I, we're really excited that Maui Community College is now moving on to be
the fiscal agent and that we're going to work on new models so that Maui can truly say
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that, or continue to say that we have services and are supporting aging with aloha. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again for being here this afternoon. Next testifier is Mr. Applegate, followed by
Ms. Ann Trygstad. I hope I got that right. You're after Mr. Applegate.

MR. APPLEGATE: Good afternoon now. I would like to thank the Chairman and the Council
Members for the opportunity to testify today. I'm Terry Applegate and I'm with Hale
Mahaolu's Homebuyer and Homeownership Counseling program. I definitely want to
thank Mayor Tavares for her generously including our program as a line item. It's great
to see that. I want to address one of the aspects of homeownership that's a little bit on the
dark side and that's mortgage foreclosure. I don't think there's anyone in this building
that hasn't heard about foreclosure, foreclosure, foreclosure. This is probably one of the
more significant emotional events in a person's lifetime when they're facing foreclosure
it not only affects the individual it affects the entire family. It's paralyzing, absolutely
paralyzing. People stop answering phones, they stop opening mail, they're, they're
panicky and what our counseling program offers is information and dispelling myths
about foreclosure and letting them know things like the lender doesn't not really want
your home.
It's going to cost between $45,000 and $65,000 for them to proceed with a foreclosure.
They want you to keep your home. We're going to be doing things with in depth analysis
of their own financial situation. An independent analysis of where their finances are right
now, how they can reprioritize, how they can address their situation and we're arming
them with options. We give them a variety of different options to choose from, what they
think may work for them. For some people they do need to go through and get rid of the
property okay. We're going to assist them with these workout options, we're going to do
an action plan and we're going to do a budget that is going to prepare them to speak with
their lender, giving them the vocabulary to speak with their lender about foreclosures.
We're going to assist in calling the lenders. It, you know, it, we'll hold their hand if you
will and make the call with them. We write letters for them and really try to do a good
job of giving them an option to say this is where I am, this is what I have, how can we fit
my mortgage payment with this budget? And we're also going to provide them with
various community resources that are available to them. So that's what I'd like to put out
there today and thanks again for getting us in on that line item.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you very
much and thank you for that piece of information in regards to foreclosures. Bad word.
Next testifier, Ms. Trygstad, followed by Ms. Kim Compoc.
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MS. TRYGSTAD: Good afternoon, Chair, and County Council Members. My name is
Anne Trygstad, I am a nurse at Kula Hospital and I'm here as a concerned citizen. This
is in support of the funding for the Maui Long Term Care Partnership to continue its
innovative and important work. I would like to read some comments from the testimony
that you should receive from Jan Yagi Buen and representative Mele Carroll. I won't
read all of the language in their testimony but there's some parts that were even startling
to me. Representative Mele Carroll points out in her testimony that Maui's population is
shifting because life expectancy is increasing, the birth rate is declining and baby
boomers are aging. There are more and more people living longer lives than ever before.
While the nursing shortage has just begun to arrive in Hawaii it hasn't yet hit at the levels
that the mainland has experienced. According to the Joint Commission on Accreditation
of Healthcare Organizations there are currently 126,000 nursing vacancies unfilled in
hospitals nationwide. That took me by surprise. It is suggested that Hawaii is about five
years behind that trend and that it will also happen here. In a lecture which Nancy
Johnson gave a while back she indicated due to the aging of the nursing workforce it's
anticipated that within the next five to eight years Hawaii will lose 7,000 of its currently
working RNs. How will we regenerate those healthcare providers? JCAHO says by the
year 2020 that amount will have tripled and there will be 400,000 nursing vacancies
nationwide, that's triple the current rate of vacancies. So we will be impacted severely
by healthcare workforce shortages.
The Maui Long Term Care Partnership in collaboration with several organizations and
now with the support of Maui Community College is creating innovative solutions that
are helping solve our workforce shortage which is current and help create an influx of
new workers for the future. I very much strongly support growing our own nurses and
ancillary caregivers. I would rather have our own residents employed in these very
satisfying and well paid jobs than to be flying in agency nurses at one and a half times the
cost per position. So I'd like to provide the educational opportunities to attract and
educate people interested in healthcare. The Maui Long Term Care Partnership created a
pilot class, these classes for certified nursing assistants and home health aids, they're
non-licensed personnel but there's a great shortage for them.

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes
MS. TRYGSTAD: We, within a five week class there were 60 applicants for nursing aid class
and within five weeks a ten person class graduated, ten people. And for the nursing aid
class for home health there were 20 applicants and 11 were graduated and certified within
a five week period we have increased workforce then by 20 people approximately, in a
five week period of critically needed jobs that are currently unfilled. So I certainly
support the work of the Maui Long Term Care Partnership and strongly encourage our
Council to continue its support. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you for your testimony. Next testifier is Ms. Compoc, followed by Mr. Mike White.
MS. COMPOC: Good afternoon, Council Members. My name's Kim Compoc, I'm the
Executive Director of Mediation Services of Maui. And I have a handout, can I--do I
give 'em to you? First of all I just want to thank you for all the support over the years,
we've been on this island for 26 years, last year was our 25" anniversary. The County
has been a partner with us in doing a million different kinds of conflicts all over this
island and on Lanai as well. We serve 1,600 people, we have six staff, only two of us are
full-time and we have 55 adult volunteer mediators who are professionally trained to do a
myriad of conflicts. And most of you probably know us as the place that divorcing
couples go or when there's conflict between neighbors or when there's an automobile
accident or landlordltenant conflicts and all of those because we are your community
based mediation center. The only one on the island committed to low cost, everyone,
anyone can come to us for lack of ability to pay and we will serve them.
I want to focus a little bit on two areas in our current proposal that you may not know
about and that's our youth program and our elder mediation program. As Stacy said just
yesterday we were at Lahainaluna School and I can't emphasize enough how exciting it is
to see young people learn that there's another way to resolve conflicts besides coming to
blows or cutting off the friendship all together. And they don't see enough examples of
that in the adult community to really believe it so. But then once they become mediators
they're so excited about any conflict because they can go out there and be a mediator and
be a peace maker in this community and be a leader in a brand new way that they never
knew before. Right now we have programs at Hawaii Job Corps, at Kihei Charter
School, Kamehameha School, Kalama Intermediate, we're developing right now at Maui
High and hopefully at Lahainaluna if yesterday was any indicator about how much
enthusiasm there is at that school. So that's a little bit about our youth program, it has
been shown in studies to reduce suspensions and make for a more peaceful community at
the school and put a focus back on learning. We're very proud to have used County
money to support that program last year.
But what is elder mediation? We've heard a lot about seniors today and last night. How
do mediators help with the silver tsunami with what's happening there. As you can
imagine when someone gets sick in the family it can be really debilitating for everyone
there. What happens for the caregiver, who's going to pay for it, what, how can the
seniors still stay in control of, of his or her choices and not get lost in the conflict that
happens within families. So we have been trying to get ahead of the tsunami and helping
families to come together when there's a long-term care or another issue and make sure
that families don't get torn apart by conflict when these kind of challenges emerge.
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If it's okay, I would like to also touch on another program that a lot of people may know
about, our facilitation program. This is.. .

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes
MS. COMPOC: Well, there we go. Well, anyway we're there, think of us as a resource for
public conflicts as well, the Solid Waste Resource Advisory Committee, the Molokai
Water Working Group, also we're there for any number of issues from Ahihi-Kinau to
the solar telescope. We are your community based mediation center. Thank you for your
support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again, Kim. Next testifier is Mr. Mike White, followed by Mr. Robert Howerton.

MR. WHITE: Good afternoon, Chair Pontanilla and Council Members. Thank you for the
opportunity to testify. My name is Mike White, I'm the Chair of the Maui Visitors
Bureau this year and have been the General Manager of the Kaanapali Beach Hotel for
the past 22 years. I'm here to testify that the funding that you all provide to Maui
Visitors Bureau is critical to Maui's continued success. For many years, the leadership
that the County has shown in combination with those individuals from the visitor industry
have created a really winning formula for Maui.
Over the years, I know my, my colleagues have testified to other, other issues but I'd like
to address a couple of questions that come up from the community and from this body
from time to time. One is where does the money for MVB come from or the County
money that's given to MVB? Well, since 1988 the hotels and resorts have shouldered the
added burden of the transient accommodation tax, the room tax, in order to create a
source of funding to enhance our product, to fund marketing efforts and to provide
revenues to the County to enhance visitor and resident programs. This is not a burden
placed on any other businesses in the State, many of which benefit significantly from
visitor spending. Additionally, hotels and resorts pay significantly higher property taxes
than other businesses and as you, many of you will recall even after the passage of the
transient accommodations tax we didn't ask for or receive a reduction in our, our tax
rates.
Does the County contribution result in the hotels reducing their marketing expense?
Absolutely not. I know it has not been the case in our hotel. Our marketing expenses
have continued to go up every year regardless of what the County expenditure has been.
And I'm not aware of any of the hotels that have reduced their marketing expense. And,
you know, we all understand the critical nature of marketing through good times and
slow periods, the County's contribution is seen as a really critical and important catalyst
to make all of our marketing expenditures more effective. Just as one figure, 2006 is the
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most recent figure for which I have the, or most recent year for which I have the figures
but from 2003 to 2006 a four year period hotel marketing expenses for the majority of the
hotels that report their operating statistics increased by 19 percent. So we're not shying
away from marketing, in fact this year we had planned for about a 6 percent increase in
our marketing at the hotel. With the recent effects of ATA and Aloha we will probably,
well, we're in the process of evaluating --

MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes
MR. WHITE: --what we need to do. Thank you. Who shoulders the cost and responsibility for
marketing Maui nui to assure that Maui County continues the, or businesses of Maui
County continue to have the opportunity for success? Well basically hotels and resorts
shoulder 90 percent of the cost of marketing all of Maui. Business, businesses such as
retail outlets, restaurants and activities and other visitor related businesses do very little to
support our marketing efforts to the mainland. They wait and do their marketing locally.
Should hotels take on more of the burden themselves? Well it would not seem fair for us
to have to do so because we contribute more than $100 million annually to the Maui
County's budget through our TAT and property tax collections. As an example our.. .
MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes
MR. WHITE: Our mid-sized hotel generates six and a half million dollars in marketing each
year and $3.7 million in State and County taxes. So we certainly appreciate the funding
that, and support that the County gives us and I hope that you will see fit to keeping it,
keeping it steady in the year to come because of the added challenges that we now face.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again for being here. Mr. Robert Howerton, followed by Ms. Debbi Amaral.

MR. HOWERTON: Good afternoon, County Council. My name is Bob Howerton, I'm with the
University of Hawaii Sea Grant Extension Service and I'm the aquaculture specialist for
Maui County. And I'm here to testify for continued support for the Aquaculture Marine
Science program and appreciate the support in the past from the County Council and also
from the Mayor's Office of Economic Development. We continue to get help from Clark
and Victor and Deidre. I'm also here to testify in support of the Renewable Energy
program from the Office of Economic Development. They've been supportive in the
collaborative effort with Sea Grant and CTHAR in the program that Harold had talked
about, the Jatropha program. So we'll be working on, on that shortly. I'd also want to
testify in support of the MCC Sustainable Sciences program. That's something that's
very exciting and hopefully will continue and grow in the near future. And I think that's
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all, I'll keep this short and if you all have any questions I'd be happy to answer them now
or you know how to contact me as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. HOWERTON: Thank you.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you again for
your testimony. Members, the Chair is aware of the time and we just have a few more
testimony to, to complete. Debbi Amaral, followed by Brian McCafferty.
MS. AMARAL: Good afternoon, excuse me. Good afternoon, Chair Pontanilla and the
Members of the Budget Committee. Thank you again for this opportunity and I will keep
this very brief. My name is Debbi Amaral and I'm representing MEO, Maui Economic
Opportunity. I'm the Director of the Early Childhood Services program which is
inclusive of Head Start and Kahi Kamalii. Head Start program I know you have heard
numerous testimony throughout the weeks that you've been doing the budget hearings in
the various communities. I want to thank you for giving our families the opportunity as
well as our families from Kahi Kamalii which serves children 12 months through 3 years
of age. The funding that you provide for us is essential for our working families. I am
very, very thankful. As a director in doing budgets, I understand the difficulty that you
are under in trying to juggle and fulfill the many needs of our community. I want to
thank you for the funding that you provided to us for the summer program. Last week,
we had advocated for eight weeks of summer and I'm happy to announce that this year
our program, when the Head Start program ends the next day the summer program picks
up and on the last day of the summer program the DOE schools pick up. So those
families will have seamless services throughout the summer months and that is because
of your generosity. I want to echo and, and also testify that the, within the State as I
collaborate with others Maui County is in the forefront thanks to your, your insight,
thanks to your commitment and thanks to your generosity for helping families in our
community. And I know speak on behalf of everyone in the galley, we are very, very
fortunate to have the support from the County of Maui. I ask for your continued support
for MEO, I ask also for your consideration with the request that M E 0 is doing and also of
others, my partners within the community that serve early childhood which is so essential
for our young children, our future leaders. I know that our intent is to keep families
working, keep families here on Maui and thanks to you with our Head Start families and
our Kahi Kamalii families we are able to do that successfully. So in closing, again, I'd
like to give you my most sincere mahalo. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier at this time?
Seeing none, thank you very much for your testimony today.
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MS. AMARAL: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Brian McCafferty, followed by Mr. Jason Medeiros.
MR. McCAFFERTY: Good afternoon, Council Members. Thank you for allowing us to testify.
I just wanted to testify in support of the Aquaculture and Marine Sciences program. And
I'm glad that I've been more or less towards the end of the pack here because I've been
hearing a lot of good, good nonprofit programs here that really benefit our County. And
I'd like to point out how so many of these programs, a lot of these people are, are people
who, with whom we collaborate. The MCC Sustainable Sciences program, the Maui
County Office of Economic Development, they're involved with the Renewable Energy
program. And in today's news, we're all very aware of sustainable technologies and
sustainable concepts, which we really need to support here in Hawaii since our islands
are so geographically isolated. We need sustainable energy and sustainable food, food
production. I dropped a couple of picture handouts with Mr. Medeiros over there and
they've been passing them back and forth and these are actually examples of a
sustainable food, food production system that we, I'm sorry I didn't introduce myself.
I'm Brian McCafferty, Teens-On-Call and we have a Paia Training Center project which
is a vocational training center. It's a 21St Century vocational training center which
emphasizes sustainable food and energy production and this is a sustainable food
production system that we started with working in partnership with Bob Howerton, the
Aquaculture Extension agent we started a couple of years ago. And Mr. Howerton,
because of his, his relationship with the and. . .with University of Hawaii, the Sea Grant
program, we, the County of Maui, are able to enjoy the collaboration with the University
of Arizona who comes to Hawaii and works with the University of Hawaii setting up
these, they actually taught us how to set up this recirculating aquaculture system where
you're growing leafy green vegetables in nutrient rich fish water. And then you
recirculate the water back up to the fish. The vegetables clean the water, it's called
aquaponics. The vegetables clean the water and the water is recirculated back to the fish.
And there's no weeding required, you don't have to weed the vegetables, you don't have
to fertilize them, you just feed the fish. And we've been doing this for two years. And
we've set up 12 systems with Mr. Howerton's assistance. And believe me, folks, this is
sustainable food production and it's working. We haven't allowed The Maui News to do
any big deal on it because we've been setting up small systems in our students family's-MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes
MR. MCCAFFERTY: --backyards. So each, each, each system becomes an incubator for that
group of people to experiment with vegetables and experiment. But we're, yeah we set
up a system at Kamehameha Schools also. So this is about to expand greatly and it all
ties in with Maui Community College, with University of Hawaii Sea Grant program,
with Hui Malama Learning Center. Hui Malama came and visited our site a few months
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ago and they were pretty stunned by what we've got going on. We've been keeping this
thing under the radar a little because we want to perfect it a little more before it hits
everyone's awareness. But we're planting a lot of seeds out there and it's because of
your support to Office of Economic Development and the Marine Sciences program, the
Aquaculture Extension agent, the County of Maui pays the salary of the extension agent
and he's really been doing a lot in the community to help make our community food self
sustainable. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Mr. McCafferty,
you can come my house and you can do it in my backyard.
MR. McCAFFERTY: Love to, thank you.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Sounds like a great idea. Mr. Medeiros,
Jason Medeiros, followed by Mr. Stephen West.
MR. MEDEIROS: Aloha, Chairman Pontanilla. Aloha, Members of the Council. I'm here
today to testify on behalf of the ILWU in support of the funding for Maui Visitors
Bureau. As you are all aware the closures of the airlines recently and of course Molokai
Ranch it's going to make it a tough market out there. The visitor industry is going to
need as much help as they can get. You know, it's really important to our members, the
working community, it's not limited to our members that tourism will be allowed to
thrive. Yes I know that it's looking pretty bad right now and, you know, at my hotel
people, people's hours are starting to be cut. You know, we're looking for support, we
want to keep our people working. And you've been really good in helping Maui Visitors
Bureau and I'd like to see continued support, you know. Thank you for the
consideration.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for Mr. Medeiros? Seeing none,
thank you, Jason, for being here. Mr. Stephen West, followed by Ms. Ailina Laborte.
MR. WEST: Aloha, Budget Chair Pontanilla and Council Members. It's a pleasure to be with
you and thank you for your time. I'm going to be testifying as, on behalf of the ILWU
and also as member of MEO. First off as the ILWU. . .(end of tape 3B - 12:33
p.m.). . .islands have actually dropped off, I think Kauai has maybe had a better run than
say Oahu and the Big Island. But we got to keep our people working and we have to be
competitive, we have to be out there getting the tourists here. So I just strongly urge that
you continue the funding and if not even booster it a little bit more for Maui Visitors
Bureau because they're doing a heck of a job and it's not just going to benefit our
members, it's going to benefit the whole community.
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And then secondly on MEOs behalf, I'm a board member and it's directly related, if we
come in to a downturn, M E 0 is really going to get hit. The Head Start, they're doing a
terrific job helping people out, getting kids taken care of. And in the B.E.S.T. Program,
they're doing a great job too. And just everything that M E 0 does I'm just truly honored
to be a part of that organization as well. So, you know, I've heard so many wonderful
groups come in here today and, you know, I just, you guys have a heck of a job and I just
wish we had more funding for everybody. But I know it's very difficult for you so I
really appreciate your time and consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this morning. . .this
afternoon? Thank you, Mr. West. Ailina Laborte, followed by Melissa Ross.
MS. LABORTE: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Ailina Laborte and I'm Maui County's
PATCH Coordinator. And we are the Hawaii only Statewide resource and referral
agency in the State and we're the only one here on Maui. PATCH would like to thank
you and our providers would like to thank you for all that you do for Maui's children and
your continued support of our Maui Family Childcare Recruitment program grant. We
help parents take the guesswork out of choosing childcare with referrals that we give
them on our referral line and we also provide information on how to become a licensed
childcare provider. And any information they might need for available subsidies as well
as any other information that pertains to childcare.
The Maui Family Childcare Recruitment program grant supported and funded by you,
Maui County Council, helps ensure our proactive way of obtaining quality childcare
providers in our community. Our recruiter assists those interested, potential providers in
becoming licensed childcare providers and guides our potential providers in setting up
their businesses and gives them and empowers them the ability to be, well, non-center
based providers the parents may want to choose. Our provider recruiter also gives them
technical assistance on a daily basis with whatever comes their way that they may need.
With your continued funding we can assure Maui's young children have a right to be
cared for both in and outside of their homes in a safe, healthy and nurturing environment.
And that all children would have access to early learning experiences that help them
arrive at kindergarten ready to succeed.
That all families must have access to high quality, affordable, accessible childcare for
their children and that they, and that all parents must have a choice of appropriate
learning and care giving environments for their children as well. We feel that your
continued funding will, that will support our program, our providers and our parents and
our children. You really make a difference and we thank you for your continued support.
And I'd also like to testify on behalf of Good Beginnings at Makawao School and Early
Head Start. I do collaborate with them quite often. So any support to our early childhood
community in Maui County is greatly, greatly appreciated. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again for being here. Melissa Ross, followed by Ms. Paula Ambre. And, Members,
Ms. Ambre is the last person to sign up for testimony this afternoon.
MS. ROSS: Aloha ka kou. My name is Melissa Ross, I'm the Executive Director for Big
Brothers Big Sisters of Maui County and I will be brief, I know it's lunchtime. So I just
wanted to thank you for your past support including us in a line item with the budget and
continuing to support us with, in our mentoring programs in the proposed budget. I just
wanted to touch briefly on what your funding went to within the past year. We have been
able to successfully grow our programs on the island of Molokai and grow our programs
in Hana as well which is very much needed.
We've extended our mentoring center hours, they are now four days a week. And we,
most importantly have been able to do an abundance of activities with our keiki that teach
them their civic and community responsibilities. I know a couple of you heard our littles
here last night talking to you and thank you so much for your patience with them. It was
a great experience for them to come here and be able to talk to you about how important
Big Brothers Big Sisters is to them and their family and their lives. But what you really
saw was a product of your generosity and support. So I just want to thank you again, it's
an absolute honor for me to be a part of Big Brothers Big Sisters and I hope it is for you.
So, mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier at this time? Seeing
none, thank you for your testimony. Ms. Ambre? And if there is anyone out there that
want to provide public testimony, if you could come up forward, sign up with our
Secretary so that you can provide public testimony? Ms. Ambre?
MS. AMBRE: Thank you, Council Chair Pontanilla. Aloha, Council Members, and thank you
for your patience and for listening to all that have come before you today. My name is
Paula Ambre, I'm here today wearing two hats. First I'll speak on behalf of The Maui
Farm. I am Executive Director at The Maui Farm, we have previously provided
testimony asking for your support, continued support for our Family Strengthening
program. Our program working in partnership with Women Helping Women and the
Family Life Center works with families who are homeless due to domestic violence and
economic challenges to help prepare them for a successful transition to self sufficient
living. We have been included in the Department of Housing and Human Concerns with
a line item and we would ask for your continued support for this very important program.
I am also here today as the President of the Maui Nonprofit Directors Association. The
Maui Nonprofit Directors is an association of over 70 nonprofit agencies for Maui
County. Our association represents health and human services, environmental concerns,
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arts and culture, animal welfare, domestic violence and substance abuse, employment and
education programs, youth programs, senior programs, family strengthening programs
and housing programs. From prevention to early intervention to treatment, from keiki to
kupuna, from the mountain to the ocean, for the less fortunate and our most vulnerable
populations, in good times and in bad the nonprofits are there. Earlier this year we
provided a presentation to the Budget Committee on the nonprofits in Maui County,
which detailed how the nonprofit sector weaves our collective services into the fabric of
our community and creates a safety net. And we do so in such a way that brings
additional Federal, State and private foundation funds into our community. Our
presentation informs us that struggling individuals and families benefit from receiving an
array of services that help them to address their challenging areas and to meet their basic
needs.
The nonprofit sector collaborates and partners to prevent duplication of services while
helping the entire family, the children, parents and kupuna. For healthy families create
healthy communities. We should be proud of the fact that Maui County is recognized
throughout the State as a community that takes care of its own. The grants that you make
available through the Community Partnership Grant Program and the line item grants are
critical to this community, you've been hearing from consumers and our citizenry,
volunteers and representatives of nonprofit agencies throughout this budget process of
how our services are making a difference in their lives. Our nonprofits provide the safety
net and we do so more effectively and more efficiently than government can do by itself.
With recent business closing, with family breadwinners being laid off and families losing
medical benefits and income we anticipate that more people will be seeking out our
services just to meet their basic needs. And so I come to you today on behalf of the over
70 agencies represented by the Maui Nonprofit Directors to please ask for your
continued -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes

MS. AMBRE: --partnership between Maui County and the nonprofit sector by supporting our
request for grants today. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Ms. Ambre at this time?
Seeing none, thank you very much -MS. AMBRE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for your testimony. Is there anyone out there that want to provide
public testimony at this time. . .if you could come up forward and do so? Seeing none
rushing to the podium, Members, without any objections the Chair would like to close
public testimony.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, the Chair is going to call for our lunch recess
and then we'll reconvene at 2 o'clock. This meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:
ITEM NO. 1:

12:43 p.m.
2:07 p.m.

FY 2009 BUDGET (C.C. Nos. 08-55and 08-56)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we're going to be reviewing the grants from the Housing and
Human Concerns Department. Members, just let me say this, you know, because of this
morning's lengthy public testimony, we're kind of falling behind. So be expecting to go
a little longer next week in regards to reviewing the Departments' budgets as well as the
rates and fees. I know we do have one day that's available to all of us, which is
Wednesday, that you know we don't have anything scheduled. But as much as possible,
you know, this Chairman want to cover as much or as many grants as we can this
afternoon. The other thing, Members, in regards to the Corporation Counsel as well as
the Prosecuting Attorney Departments along with OCS and OSS [sic], if you have any
questions to their. . .Program Budgets as well as CIPs, if you can let this Chair know
about it so that if we don't require a review for those Departments, then at least we can
speed up the process? So--Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. If I could just make just a brief
comment on the testimony?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I think it's great we have public testimony on all the grant
requests and everything else, but as you know and the Members who have been showing
up to the night meetings and the day meetings, we've seen many of the same folks with
the same message. And for me, all I need is maybe to be told a couple of times--not
seven or eight times with the same message. And I, and I'll just state for myself, I think
it would be great if other people would be willing to come out as well instead of the
same folks 'cause today, this morning I saw some of the same folks that we've seen in
the evening hearings, the daytime hearings. And plus many of us have had
appointments with a lot of the folks who represent these organizations in our office with
the same message again. And I state this because the Committee needs time to
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deliberate and get to work and we also have other responsibilities in the community to
deal with it as well. So I just humbly ask and make that request for the various
representatives of the different organizations if you could take that into consideration. I
think we've been very well saturated with the message from a lot of these organizations
who are seeking funding requests from the body. So, just a, just a simple and
down-to-earth honest request, I think we've gotten the message already as it is and
please give us the opportunity to work and deliberate. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. And, and again this Committee will not
stop anyone from providing public testimony. Thank you for saying that, Mr. Molina.
Members, any more questions in regards to the Chair's request amongst the four
Departments? And if you could, if you do have any questions or any concerns, then
we'll bring those Departments forward in regards to their budget proposal.
. . . Okay, Members, we do have the review for grants in the Budget ordinance. And,
Members, you can turn to page, we'll start with page 4 on the Budget ordinance. The
proposed bill, page 4.

NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Members, you got your Budget ordinance? That's the one, yeah.
That skinny one. . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And then, we'll follow the sheet that was handed out to you
this morning. Okay, Members? We're going to start on the Housing and Human
Services, on page 4 as indicated in the Budget ordinance. And the first item on
the. . .on, on the list is the Affordable Housing and/or Supportive Living Housing. And
at this time, I just want to have. . .the Department to provide us with some comments in
regards to the grants.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, first, yeah, can you point out again which Budget
ordinance you're referring to?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
NOTE: Silence.

...

Can you help Mr. Medeiros?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . The big binders you have is, one of them is the Program and the
other one is the Detail.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(inaudible).
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . If not, Member Medeiros, on 10-24 -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . . Thank you, Chair. Yeah -CHAIR PONTANILLA: --of the Program . . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --I have a copy now. Thank you
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good
. . . Director?

MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. And happy Aloha Friday. I know it's going to be a long
Friday for you folks.

. . .(laughter). . . You know, I did have lunch today, so hopefully my tongue will be
untied . . .(laughter). . . as compared to yesterday. Thank you very much. With respect
to the grant line items. . .again, in total of its overall, I think that the Administration did
a very good job in showing you by category where grant line items are being spent. And
I think this really helps us in determining where we want to go, where are we heading in,
and where, uh, what issues in the community we want to support. In comparison
between the Fiscal Year '08 appropriation and the Fiscal Year '09 request, we've
actually dropped our, our request significantly. In '08, a total comparative appropriation
was 10,986,000 and some loose change. And our Fiscal Year '09 request, as you can
see, is 10,229,000. Most of the savings was, is the result of. . .last year or I should say in
the current fiscal period there were capital improvements or one-time. . .line items. . .and
so that, most of those have been eliminated. I think there's, there's one this year, which
is the Cameron Center. But other than that, again taking into account the tightening
budget and tightening revenues, we did our best to minimize the grant line item impact.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and Members, the numbers that you see is basically
from the Mayor's proposal for 2009. I know Members have been approached by some
other nonprofit organizations requesting for funding. During the decision-making time,
then we'll take up those issues. So, Members, the first one up is the Affordable Housing
and/or Supportive Living Housing grant. And the Mayor had proposed $400,000 in
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regards to that particular grant. Members, do you have any questions to that? Member
Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. If the Director can tell us the target
group and, and what difference will the 18,000 making in terms of assisting in this very
huge need?
MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you. And I'm sorry, I'm flipping through here. The Affordable
Housing, Supportive Living. . .monies, as I go through this and I have my list here. . .is
generally used to assist in, in helping us help agencies with their affordable housing
projects. This year as you are well aware the, out of the current fiscal year appropriation
we had allotted 220,000 towards Maui Economic Concerns of the Community to assist
them in their operations which would tide them over to June 30 of '08. We also are in
the process of assisting Habitat for Humanity with some predevelopment costs for their
Lower Main Street project. In Fiscal Year '09 in addition to assisting potential
affordable housing development and/or programs we also intend to use part of that
money with respect to the First Time Homebuyers program. One of the elements that
we're incorporating into that First Time Homebuyers First Down Payment initiative is to
ensure that the borrowers receive adequate counseling. So our intent is to have them go
through some form of financial literacy or homebuyer education.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, and the source of that, I'm sorry, can you tell me again
the source of the funds?
MS. MEDEIROS: It's that line item, the Affordable Housing, Supportive Living line item that
you see.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And the source of those funds are from?
MS. MEDEIROS : County General Funds.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
MS. MEDEIROS: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Chairman, are we going to go down
individually? 'Cause there's some that, you know, I don't have issues on, I just have a
couple that I'd like to go through.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. What I want to do is take care of the first bunch.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: The first two, four, five and then we continue so on down the line.
Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'd just like to make a request to facilitate this review. It
would be very helpful if we also knew more or less if this is being done by an agency,
who that is. Or if it's intended for somebody, so we know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. And I think when you look at your Program Budget, it
indicates. . .some of the agencies that are requesting this funding and you can start from
page 10-24.
NOTE: Silence.

MS. MEDEIROS: . . . I'm sorry. I wasn't sure you were asking me a question. In terms of the,
the line item Affordable Housing, Supportive Living line item that is, that is a pot of
money. So it's not necessarily that the same agencies will receive the same monies year
in and year out. It actually is a way for, for the Administration and the County to assist
different programs and/or agencies with affordable housing programs or projects.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Director. But I, I think what I was trying to do is to
make this fast. And the way we can do it fast is if you would say "Affordable Housing
and Supportive Living, we're going to use it for this and it's a pot of money people can
apply for". And then we're, we're clear. Otherwise, we're going to be flipping around
trying to figure out who had it, where is it going. Just trying to make quick. Thank you.
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Member Baisa -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --other than what you just said? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon, Madam Director. So this
affordable housing appropriation, this is the 400,000 related to the First Time
Homebuyers Fund? That pot?
MS. MEDEIROS : No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So that's a separate, has that, will that money for the First
Homebuyers be re-appropriated in the Budget?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well. . .the, the First Homebuyers Revolving Fund is not part of our budget.
So this money is not that revolving fund, this is a totally different pot of money.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. But so it's been left out of this year's budget then, the
400,000 for the Homebuyers, First Time Homebuyers Fund?

MR. PABLO: . . . No, it's not. It's in, it's another part of the Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh

MR. PABLO: It's in Appendix A, Schedule 2
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I just wanted to get that clarification to make sure.
Okay. All right. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Affordable Rental Housing programs. Director?
MS. MEDEIROS: Affordable Rental Housing program is the Rental Assistance program. And
as we had indicated to you last year, these monies is, goes to four agencies, Maui
Economic Opportunity, Maui Economic Concerns of the Community, Women Helping
Women and Family Life Center. And they all provide subsidized rental assistance, case
management and supportive services to families who are in need of assistance with rent.
We're asking for an increase of 25,000. And primarily because the, the monies that
have been allocated in the past does not go very far. It is a very, very small increase that
we're asking. We certainly would ask for more. . .and it could be used very quickly, but
again we're trying to be frugal as we can.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. And if the Department can tell us the numbers
that these monies accommodated in terms of families?
MS. MEDEIROS : Um.
. . . I'm sorry, I don't have that information in front of us, we can certainly get that for
you.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. And would you know how many more families
this 25,000 will accommodate?
MS. MEDEIROS: . . . It's, it's, it's probably not going to help, you know, I'm not talking about
huge numbers. It's not going to help 100 families. This is probably only going to help
about, you know, five to ten families.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And I think we know that. I think it would be important for us
to get a number because you're using monies that you need to be accountable for. And
you're asking us for an increase to provide you with the ability to help more families
when we don't know what number of families you've already accommodated. So that
kind of information, Director, is important. Thank you. Chairman, if we could request
that information in writing?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, we will. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Department, can you just repeat
the agencies this will go to? You said MEO.. .
MS. MEDEIROS: Maui Economic Opportunity, Maui Economic Concerns of the Community,
Women Helping Women, and Family Life Center. And just to let you know, we do
have representatives from Maui Economic Opportunity as well as the Women Helping
Women. And if you would like to have some information from them on their program,
I'm sure they would be able to assist with some of those numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: For me, I'm good with the list you gave me. Thank you,
Department. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions, Chair. My question was basically along the
same lines with Mr. Mateo--I'd like to see the numbers, how many families are being
helped with the current 400,OO and with the additional 25,000. So same request as
Mr. Mateo. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Housing and Land Enterprise of Maui dba Na Hale 0
Maui for a community land trust.
MS. MEDEIROS: Right. And if you, if in the Budget, in the Budget Details. Basically, last
year it was listed as Community Land Trust; and this year, it is being shown as
specifically to this one entity. And this, again, will continue their work. And I believe
they provided testimony on several occasions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: None for this. . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS : None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: NO.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next one up is Hale Mahaolu for Homeownership and Housing
Counseling program.
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes. This monies was inserted by the Mayor with respect to Hale Mahaolu
providing Homeownership and Housing and Counseling program.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

. . . None

for this area. Thank you.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Just so we can get this straight with Hale
Mahaolu. The counseling would be for clients 62 and over? The counseling
. . .(inaudible). . .
MS. MEDEIROS: To be honest with you, sir, I am not very clear. Hale Mahaolu provided a
little bit of information to us. I believe they provided testimony-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.
MS. MEDEIROS: --on what their intent is. We would, and I don't think that the intent of the,
and they can correct me if I'm wrong, I don't think the intent of the money is solely for
people who are 62 years and older. Hale Mahaolu, through its Housing and
Homeownership Counseling program, provide counseling services to first-time
homebuyers as well as homeowners who are delinquent in their mortgages or may be
close to foreclosure. The reverse mortgage counseling component is also a separate
component.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. And I know you mentioned with regards to the First
Time Homebuyers Fund and the counseling, so this would be the, I guess the program
that you would direct clients to, to get counseling for that, I guess that first line
appropriation, Affordable Housing?
MS. MEDEIROS: I would have to say not necessarily. And again these monies were inserted
by the Mayor as part of her budget and she may not have realized that we had asked for
additional monies in a different line item. Hale Mahaolu is not the only entity that
provides first-time homebuyers or homebuyer education services. And we would
certainly like to have the opportunity to be able to contract out services. Because there's
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different clientele. And different agencies provide their services for different types of
clientele.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you. In regards to this, we had a testifier this morning
testifying on the program that Hale Mahaolu provides and, and he had indicated that one
of the things that we don't talk about all the time is foreclosures. And that's something
that's very important. And we all understand that some of the developers are also
providing housing counseling programs as they propose development within here in
Maui County. Okay, Members, the next grant is Community Partnership grant, or
grants.
MS. MEDEIROS: . . . Oh, you want me to say something?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. MEDEIROS: Oh. Okay. Sorry. Again, Community Partnership grants, we're asking for
basically the same amount of money. Out of the Community Partnership grants, these
are, this is basically more a pots of money and this is the largest pot of money that is
reviewed by the Grants Review Committee. They. . .have, are going to be going into
their review process for the actual Fiscal Year '09 monies. So the listing that you may
have seen in the Budget is just a sort of showing you what was appropriated last year to
the different agencies for different types of programs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, Members, it's on page 10-26 of the Program
Budget that lists the individual nonprofit organizations that are requesting for funding.
Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. Yeah. If the Department can, I don't
know what their schedule is in terms of review, but the GRC. . .they'll be meeting to
finalize their requests for FY '09 when?
MS. MEDEIROS:
They are planning to meet in May and provide the funding
recommendations to the Mayor.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So by, by mid, by May. . .(end of tape 4A - 2:28
p.m.). . .more or less crafted. So the nonprofits had they been advised that they need to
come to us at this point just in case they don't make it through the GRC process or--I
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would hate to see those who normally get funding get stuck because the review process
doesn't happen until May or mid-May. And here we are, we should be about ready to
finalize the Budget by, way before then.
MS. MEDEIROS: Again and just, just to clarify and we, we've had, and we've been working
the GRC. And we unfortunately had a little bit of hiccup in working with them. These,
the Community Partnership grants, the Culture and Art grants, the Youth Center grants
and the Youth Program are allpockets of monies. They're all pots of monies. And. . .so
the pot of money is presented to the Grants Review Committee, and they're told okay
you have a pot of money of $1.5 million, so when you review your applications and you
make your funding recommendations, that's the maximum that you can recommend for
funding. I, I do know that the GRC has verbally indicated in the past that they would
like to ask for money. And this is an issue, number one, we will be working with them
on. It's one thing to ask for more money, but you also have to provide a justification for
why you're asking for more money. And secondarily, we also will be working with
them on starting our process much earlier because it is also difficult for us. So we're
looking at trying to start our process much earlier so that we actually have a better idea
as to what their funding recommendation is before we even come to this point.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: What has been the track record, then, for the GRC in approval
of funds for those who apply?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, again, they make funding recommendations. It is the Mayor that
approves the funding recommendation. And primarily what we have see with the past
and as it is written in Chapter 3.36, first priority is given to those who have already
received in the past. And then if there's any money left, then they may make a
recommendation for any new programs. And this has been, may be a little bit of a
difficulty because what happens is that the same people are really getting the same
money over and over again and it does not allow us or even the GRC to provide a
funding recommendation for new programs or to incubate new programs that may come
along. And this is another issue that we are also working on in terms of recommending
amendments to Chapter 3.36.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I think, I think my question really goes, I'm going to go back
and just ask again. My concern is that because this process will not be initiated until
May, and our process with the Budget requests are ongoing now especially with grants,
and I'm concerned that some of the people who go through the GRC process and if they
may not be funded, they may find themselves stuck looking for last-minute pleas for
funds, just because of the lateness in the review process. So my question is, had all
these applicants been advised to look for additional sources, including like many others
who have already come through requesting lines?
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MS. MEDEIROS: Well, yes, they have been, they have been notified. They have, in fact I
believe that some of the agencies who missed the deadline for one reason or another
may have come to you asking for, for funding. The, the GRC, the CPG process is, is a
competitive process. And, and really there is no guarantee that every applicant is going
to receive monies. We, it, the way they've done it in the past is that they've given
everybody a little bit of something and sometimes it doesn't really help the agencies to
receive a quarter of the money and be expected to do 100 percent of the program. I do
hear what you're saying. And like I said, this is something that we're working on in
terms of timing to try and get the process and the information done much earlier.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And, and just with your comments about usually when
they, you know, the, the more history they have with, with the Department the more, the
more often they are funded--I, I think that in itself takes away the word "competitive"
that you just used. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, as everybody knows this is my favorite subject. The CPG
has been limping along ever since it was created. And one of the issues is that it's in the
law itself that it states that you need to fund current programs rather than new programs
as long as those programs, you know, meet their requirements. So that takes away a lot
of the discretion when you've got a limited pot of money. The other, of course, is the
timing--because this will be completed when we're completing the Budget. And like
Member Mateo says, it then leaves an agency with no alternative. Whereas, if it was
done earlier, then they would know that they need to come to us. And on this list, I see
people who have come to us. And I remember at the end of last year. . .when we were
completing the Budget, we had a little bit of a problem with an agency that had received
a line item as well as a CPG grant. And I remember the discussion about being sure that
it would be in the instructions to the agencies this year that they could receive one or the
other and not both. And I hope that was done. But the problem is we don't know. So
we may be here trying to arrange a line item for an agency that will get funding or not
arranging for one and, and they do get one. So it's kind of a bad situation. I don't know
how, how we fix this. And I wish you lots of luck, Director, because it's been going on
for a long time. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions at this time. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Just a question on, on the listing on page 10-26, have there been
any organization that. . .already been rejected?
MS. MEDEIROS: . . . No. The process has not even started yet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Not even started . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. MEDEIROS: They have not started yet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I see one that has
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
MS. MEDEIROS: The, the Grants Review Committee has not, has not started their review
process yet, so they have not gotten to the point of being able to make funding
recommendations for those pots of monies.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I see one that's here. . .that is requesting for funding through a CPG
and also got a line item in the Mayor's Budget.
NOTE: Silence.

MS. MEDEIROS: Oh, okay-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't know how many more going get-MS. MEDEIROS: I'm sorry. In. . .just to, just. . .okay. And, and this has been a very
confusing part. In terms of when the Budget was being put together, if you look at the
Community Partnership Grant recipients, the Culture and Arts recipients, Youth Center,
and Youth Programs, you'll. . .you'll see in FY '09 there's an appropriation. We were
instructed by the Budget Office that we had to put a number in there. And what they did
was they copied over the same number from FY '08 to FY '09. However, it is asterisks
showing that it is a GRC that has not yet made their funding recommendations. So you
may see, again it's a copy over. But the GRC has not made its funding
recommendations yet. So they may totally change, there may be different applicants
that will actually. . .be funded depending on what they. . .they select or recommend.
NOTE: Silence.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . So the asterisks is for the total amount. . .that's shown on the top
of the page, 2009?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes, the asterisks--and if you look down at the bottom, the explanation of
the asterisk, it says "grant funding pending further review of GRC". So the GRC has
not made their funding recommendation yet. But we were, we were advised by the
Budget Office that for the column for Fiscal Year '09, that we had to put an amount in
there. And what they did was they simply copied over the same amount from Fiscal
Year '08 to Fiscal Year '09.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: . . . SO-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Where is the asterisk?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That, the GRC hasn't-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: The bottom
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --approved any of those items as yet. And I think it goes back to
Member Mateo's question, you know, what happened to those nonprofits that are listed
and all of sudden find out in May that their. . .you know, request is not being funded.
You know, that's a question that I think most of us have in regards to how do we fund
these nonprofits if the review hasn't been done. And, and when you look at this thing
I'm sure there's some duplication because of the "just in case".
. . . So if you could take a look at that and, you know, take a look at all of the nonprofits
that's listed on that particular page. You know, I know you do have some that's on the
line item. So it's got to be reviewed.

Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
Members, any more questions regarding this item?
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. . . None?

Thank you.

The next grouping is the Grants and Disbursements for Culture and the Arts. The
first one is Culture and Arts grants, and it's on the Details page 10-27. . .of the Program
Budget.
. . .

NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

. . . Member

Mateo?

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
...

Thank you. The next one is the, the Maui Choral Arts Association.

Director?
MS. MEDEIROS: Maui Choral Arts Association, again, this amount of money was placed in
the Budget by the Mayor. And I believe you have received testimony from, in fact I
understand they sang for you last night during their testimony.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank, thank you. Department, is this going to be, is this a
one-time request or do you know otherwise?
MS. MEDEIROS: Unfortunately, we do not receive. . .information as to whether this is
considered to be a one-time or is expected to be more than one time.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm just kind of wondering, I noticed that there's a 25,000 in
'09, and it says '09 versus '08 and there's no figure. I'm assuming this is 25,000 more
than last year 'cause there was nothing . . .(laughter). . . I think it was just left out by
mistake?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I believe it's a new grant
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). .
MS. MEDEIROS: No, this is a new line item.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, that's what I mean, there was nothing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, but on the others that are new, they've showed the addition.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So when you start adding up, you're short 25,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(laughter). .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Just a follow up, then. Can we get that in
writing from the whomever, the Maui Choral Arts Association or the Department if this
is a one-time request or-CHAIR PONTANILLA: We can do that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you. Grants and disbursements for Health, Human
Services, and Education. Again, Members, on 10-24, you get the nonprofits that are
listed. Director, the first program, Homeless Programs?
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay. Homeless Programs is a p o t of money
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. MEDEIROS: . . . and. . .those monies. . .in the past has been given to
uh, Maui Economic Concerns of the Commune, Community, excuse me. And
basically most of those monies is actually going to Maui Economic Concerns of the
Community and the Ka Hale A Ke Ola for various programs. . .and outreach service.
. . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. Perhaps. . .when you look at the, the funding source
from '07, '08 and what's being requested in '09, these are over half-million-dollar
requests for each of those Fiscal Years. Madam Director, are you able to tell us if we're
actually making a dent in the battle against homelessness? Or, you know, what has been
accomplished in terms of cumulative over $1.5 million to this date?
MS. TSUHAKO: Councilmember Mateo, I'll answer your question. The funding that the
County provides to Maui Economic Concerns of the Community, which funds the core
life services, homeless outreach, facilities. . .shelter operations, and other programs, do
make a difference. They do make a difference in, in getting homeless people to
transition from their current situation into something that's better. The shelter program
does provide transitional housing and a good deal of education and support services that
are wrapped around the actual homelessness. . .to improve the overall condition of
peoples lives. And I. . .I can. . .I can say with a fair degree of certainty that they've
made a different in many peoples lives. And I think one of the things that I appreciate
the most about Ka Hale A Ke Ola and Maui Economic Concerns of the Community are
that they've partnered very well with the County, as well with the other homeless
service providers to meet gaps in service and to contribute to what I explained yesterday
as our continuum of care for homelessness. . .and has contributed a lot to process of, of
building a stronger system for the entire community.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah--
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MS. TSUHAKO: I appreciate their help.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. We, we do, too, Deputy Tsuhako. With this
particular. . .program, as mentioned earlier in another discussion, there's reports that you
require from the grantees. In that report, are they required to indicate the numbers that,
that they serve. . .based on the allocation allotted to them?
MS. TSUHAKO: They provide reports to our Grants Management Division about the numbers
that they serve, in their quarterlies as well as in their annual reports.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Could you provide the, the annual numbers to us?
MS. TSUHAKO: I would be happy to
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Deputy. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions here. Thank you
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: My question was answered from Member Mateo's
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

. . . Thank you.

Self Sufficiency Programs, Director?

MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you. Self Sufficiency Program, in the past, those monies have been
used to fund M E 0 B.E.S.T. program, the Reintegration program, they had some
programs. In this year, we're utilizing a portion of those monies, we're actually
attempting to put into place to assist with the situation on Molokai, with the Molokai
Ranch and the Aloha Airlines'. . .shutdown as an emergency program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . Could you tell us, maybe, a little bit more or is it too
preliminary to discuss what you're planning to do?
MS. MEDEIROS: It's still preliminary, we are still in the process of gathering data. I think
what's happening is. . .and my understanding is, is we're trying to determine as a
County what, where, where we can play a role. And so the monies that we have in this
account will allow us to hopefully act faster. And I know we've been in some
discussions with Maui Economic Opportunity about a similar program I believe was
done in 9. . .uh, 911 1. So we're looking at some, potentially similar programs. We
understand that there's been some talk about possibly an emergency fund request. And
that will take some time. So we were hoping that this money, it's a small amount, but it
may help us bridge between getting from here to there.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm very familiar with the HELP program--that's what it was
called then, I don't know what you're going to call it now. But it does take a lot of
money. I think our fund was, like, 1% million. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?

. . .(laughter). . . Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you. . .(laughter).
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS : . . .(laughter).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next program, American Red Cross.
MS. MEDEIROS: . . . Thank you. I'm sorry. The American Red Cross, this again is a line
item that was in. . .inserted in by the Mayor and is part of her Budget. The American
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Red Cross is, as you well know, is there in times of need. They were there during the
storm of, in December '07--which I'm sure we are all familiar with. They are
there. . .during the big fires. They're there. . .at, at every juncture providing services.
What they have asked for, and I believe last year they had several major. . .in fact, I
remember last year in January, we started off with one disaster and it kind of went for
the whole year. And they're asking for some support from the County in terms of
providing some monies that can be used for this assistance that they received.
And, I, I'm sorry, sounds like I'm not explaining this correctly.
. . . Basically, they're asking, they had some shortfalls because of all the disasters last
year, and they're asking the County for some assistance in providing them some
monies. . .for, for future disasters.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have no, no discussion with American Red Cross. But I think
what we're talking about, is this a reimbursement?
MS. MEDEIROS: No, it's not.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's not?
MS. MEDEIROS: No, it's not. This is monies again, in terms of. . .local death, disaster
response and preparedness, they've been using their monies for disasters that are taking
place. And what they're asking the County to do is to help support by providing some
monies for them. You know, disasters are like, are like fires, you know, like having a
fire department. They're there if you need a fire--we certainly don't wish to have a fire,
but in times of, of, of emergency, they're called out to do their job. This is not to pay
them forpast, this is to assist them in providing a fund that they can help County should
there be a disaster.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I don't have any problem with that. I mean, we realize how
much the Red Cross does, but it's nice to know that it'll be a pot of money that's there
when we need it. And as long as that's what it is, that's good. Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So this is a, a one-time grant. . .and this is mainly to kind
of help replace their shortfall or what they spent on disasters for. . .locally?
MS. MEDEIROS: It's not to replace a shortfall. Again, it's to provide them with some funds
that they can tap into. . .you know, in case of a disaster. And again the, the disasters that
they respond to is not necessarily just fire, and is not necessarily just flood. I'm sure
they stepped up to the plate when ATA. . .went down and, and people needed shelter.
So they're there at every juncture. And this is a way to, to assist them--especially for
our local families, to assist with the services that they provide.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And I understand that. And certainly, yeah, like
Member Baisa, we know the importance of the American Red Cross. But, again, you
didn't answer the first part of my question. Is this a one-time or is this as they use this
available funds we're going to also put more funds so that's it available again?
MS. MEDEIROS: I cannot tell you with surety whether this would be a one-time funding or
whether this is. . .again, the Mayor put this into her Budget, and we are attempting to
support what the Mayor has put in.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So there was no. . .description or. . .statement by
Red Cross, the intent of the funding?
MS. MEDEIROS: They did provide some information, but they did not indicate as to whether
this was simply a one-time funding or not.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So why isn't this request under Civil Defense?
Why is it under Human Concerns?
MS. MEDEIROS: I can only say very simply because this is where the Mayor put it.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

. . . Thank

you, Chairman.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
The next. . .item is Community Work Day program.
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes. Under Community Work Day program and. . .you have to forgive us
with some of the information on the line items. Normally, we would have our Grants
Administrator here, and he would be able to provide us with a wealth of information.
Unfortunately, his father passed away and he was also a victim of the ATA shutdown.
So he's on the mainland right now. And if there's any information that, that we cannot
provide you with, we will certainly, I'll be able to work with him. He's supposed to be
back next week and get that information to you. In terms of Community Work Day
program, there is a. . .a significant decrease in the program. And part of this is we were
looking at what they do. They were also receiving monies through the Old Maui High
School Fund for certain items of work, and they also receive monies separately through
a, I think it's a Highway Beautification Fund. So when we started to look at what they
all do, the different areas, we felt that they were sort of receiving monies in two places
for the same thing. So we had reduced the, the funding a little bit so that we were very
clear in what the purpose of this funding was for.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And I think this is a classic example of
if it's not broken don't fix it. Community Day Work program has been a tireless
champion for Maui County. They have done a lot of work that this County cannot do.
And this, it's a little disturbing for me to start to see reductions. We encourage our, we
encourage people to go out and get funding. . .additional funding and find those sources.
And then when they do, we cut them. Maui High School was a separate project all
together that was in addition to the work that this organization already do. So. . .I have
problems with this reduction, and it will be my intent to restore it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I second the motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I agree with Member Mateo because of the work they do,
even along East Maui. Its been, without that work, we wouldn't have the roads as
beautiful as they are. So I, I will support Member Mateo's intent.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. You know, this entity has proven itself
over the years to do a great job cleaning this community up. And to suddenly reduce
their budget, I look at it aspunishing them for their good work. And, besides, . .I think
we heard from Ms. Dapitan, out in Paia the other night, and who's going to help
maintain the Old Maui High School? She's got all this connections and she can bring in
a lot of these people. I think for the money we invest, we get back a lot more, you
know, in return. So I'm like the other Members, I'm definitely, would be supportive of
restoring their. . .funding, their FY '08 level, funding for '09. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And. . .and when we go into decision making then, you
know, again this is just a review of the Mayor's proposal. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would make it unanimous, Chairman, and I'll be happy to
recommend where we can cut.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next program is Disabled Services for the frail and
the elderly.
MS. MEDEIROS : Um-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Director?
MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you. These monies. . .which was put in the Fiscal Year '08 Budget,
is primarily used by our Office on Aging. And it was intended for and has been used to
provide additional services to our elderly.
As you remember, last year in
their. . .indication that one of the services--and I'll, I'll list down the services that that's
used for. was for instance, like personal care where, currently, because of the monies
that. . .that they receive through Title 3, that in some cases the elderly could only receive
a. . .a bath once a week. And this monies was to assist in increasing that so they can at
least have a bath twice a week. . .and, and not just on Saturdays. But types of programs
that these monies has been used for is personal care, congregate meals, home-delivered
meals, transportation, adult daycare, respite for families, chore services which is
provided primarily by Maui Economic Opportunity, friendly visiting. So this is a way
of, so we have a whole network in the community that, that provides services to our frail
elderly. Frail elderly are the people who, who don't get out of the house very much.
And, and these monies were used to, to. . .in addition to the Title 3 monies to, so we're
able to provide more services.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: . . . Chairman, I, I'll pass.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm very familiar with this pot of money. And I've got to tell
you, it's probably about half of what we need. Every year. . .the, the seniors, the senior
population continues to grow, and the need grows bigger and bigger. And it really
doesn't do it. You know, when you can provide an hour of chore service a week to an
elderly person, as the, our Director said, it's really not acceptable. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

. . . Thank you.

Next one is up is Hana Human Services.

MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you. This, this line item apparently was put in several years ago by a
former East Maui representative. And it is, it is essentially is a pot of money that has
been used in the past to provide. . .funding for specific services in the Hana community.
And my understanding is in the past. . .the East Maui representative has provided
information to the Department on where they would like the monies to go. In the Fiscal
Year '08, we used actually--and I had mentioned yesterday, we actually use this money
to tandem with the monies to Hale Mahaolu in terms of the Affordable Housing and
Services Study in Hana because a part of it was human services related and a part of it
was actually housing related.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions. I'm familiar with the fund
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
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NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

. . . Member

Mateo?

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next one up is Hui Malama Learning Center.
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes. Hui Malama Learning Center we, we did decrease their line item by a
little, I believe--and I really know how difficult . . .
And I'm trying to look at their information. I realize how difficult our, our funding
is. But this is one of the areas when we looked overall and what they were requesting
and what they were using the money for, we felt that this portion that we decreased was,
was not. . .part of a program that would be acceptable.
. ..

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

. . . Thank you.

Member Mateo?

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, a question. I am really concerned about the cut to this
agency.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS : Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know this is a very tiny agency, but an agency that does a
tremendous thing in this community. You know, they're the ones who take the children
that don't fit in the school. . .(end of tape 4B - 2:59 p.m.). . .provide them with
alternative education and provide them with GEDs and all kinds of supportive services
so that they make it. In fact, there's been members of our my family that have gone
through it--you know, kids that got into trouble in school, who didn't fit. Who, Hui
Malama was very successful with and today these kids have decent jobs because of Hui
Malama. So it concerns me that we're cutting an agency with a tiny budget, that there is
no other person doing what they do.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS : Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. And I agree with Member Baisa. This
organization has a really dedicated staff. And the success of their program, as
Member Baisa has mentioned, is really done only by them--as far as taking the children.
So I, I, I don't support the cut and, hopefully, we can restore the funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Again, this is the Mayor's proposal. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. I kind of had the same feelings along the
lines of Members Baisa and Medeiros. The organization's grown over the years and,
you know, they provide a service that, you know, I don't know if we can find any other
entity that does this. They work with kids that, you know, have a difficult time with the
traditional school setting. So. . .this might, this cut might be a little deep. If we have to
cut, I'd like to see it a little shallower or maybe restore it to, maybe, the '08 level
funding. But I'm really on the fence with this cut. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next one, Lanai Women's Center
MS. MEDEIROS:
. . . If you'll

. . . Yes, thank

you.

permit me, I need, you know, to make a statement overall in terms of, of the
grant line items. It certainly pains all of us to make any kind of cut to any nonprofit.
We would certainly have preferred to have left everything status quo. But at the same
time, it is the Council themselves who, who told us last year that times were going to be
tough and that we would have to make tough decisions. One of the things that we did
was to request information from the nonprofits. And I'm sure most of you remember
receiving complaints about the very quick turnaround time that we gave nonprofits to
provide us information. And we did actually review that in tandem with our Grants
Management Division. So in areas where we, we may have recommended. . .some cuts,
it was because we had looked at their. . .their budget and there were some areas that we
felt. . .was. . .that there may have been costs that they were using that it was
inappropriate for the County to fund. I realize that some programs are near and dear to
your hearts and it's very difficult for us to make those decisions. And in the end. . .you
know, we are basically just reporting to you. . .the Mayor's proposed Budget. In terms
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of the Lanai Women's Center, again, this money is for their program on Lanai. And
they serve. . .women's health. . .and that's about all I can say about that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, Chairman. The intent is to eventually broaden the scope
whereby it would be a community health center program, not just a women's. . .program
our residents on Lanai. And I appreciate the Mayor's consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No comment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next one is Maui Adult Day Care Center.
MS. MEDEIROS: Again, the Maui Adult Day Care Center there was, it was basically flat
funding. And as you are aware, Adult Day Care Center provides. . .day care services for
our elderly, for our parents so that we can, we can work. And they also
provide. . .respite programs in the evenings so that family members or family caregivers
can spend a few hours and go to the movies or go to dinner with their spouse.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes. Department, can you tell me how many centers this
fund. . .goes to or helps?
MS. MEDEIROS: Maui Adult Day Care Center--and I have to try and remember this. . .I, it's
located in Kahului. I. . .I do know that they have a partnership with the .
and I forgot what's--the Nisei Veterans Center. . .and they are also located in
Lahaina.
. . .

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Do, do you know if they also have a partnership
with Hana?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes, I believe they are working with Hana on adult day care.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and they do. . .work in Hana, too. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
Education program.

Thank you.

Maui Community College for Cooperative

MS. MEDEIROS: . . . Again, this is the Cooperative Education program with Maui Community
College. It provides. . .and, and I have to say that I, that actually I participated in
Cooperative Education when I was at MCC. It's a great program. It allows the students
to work in businesses. And we actually do have some students who work in our Office
on Aging, and, and assist them and to learn business skills or, or office skills.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. So the, the 50,000 is used for stipend?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And. . .you know how big this program is? How many kids
we, we providing stipend for?
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MS. MEDEIROS: I don't have that information with me right now, but we can get you that
information.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I would. . .be giving scrutiny for all State agencies that
are asking for County dollars. And for me, 1 am. . .requesting that those specific
departments or agencies of the State give us a written assessment of what is
their. . .ability to get their own State money from the Legislature.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . . Maui

Food Bank.

MS. MEDEIROS: Maui Food Bank. . .again, flat funding is being requested. Certainly you're
all aware of what the Food Bank does. They. . .provide, they take in donations of food
and disperse it to families in need, especially the homeless families. They are located,
they provide services on all three islands.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Department, so this amount of money goes to
administrative and overhead costs?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: For services that they provide-MS. MEDEIROS: It's, it's for the services that they provide. It's the work, part of it
is. . .operations, it's funding for employees to do the work that they do and provide the
services.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Department. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
...

Thank you. Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. for Enlace Hispano program.

MS. MEDEIROS: Again we requested flat funding. I do understand that the. . .Executive
Director of M E 0 has requested additional funding. The Enlace Hispano program is
similar in concept to our Immigrant Services Division, except they focus their services
primarily on the Hispanic population and they provide basically more services than what
our Immigrant Services Division does.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maui Family Support Services.
MS. TSUHAKO: . . . Maui Family Support Services is one of the, the County's largest
providers of early intervention care. I think, how much is it?
The line item we're talking about now is for $50,000.
. . . Excuse me. It's for Early Head Start Program which serves income-eligible families
with children who are 6 weeks to 36 months old and also serves expectant mothers. The
program provides year-round home visiting and center-based services, provides families
with information and support to develop safe and development. . .developmentally
enriching family environments to promote physical, mental, social and emotional
growth. And the children through this program receive developmental and health
screenings to help assess their strengths and their needs as they begin the progression
into formal educational settings.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . That's it?
...

Thank you. Member Mateo?

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Maui Farm, Inc
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes. The Maui Farm. . .an increase of 50,000 was requested for Fiscal Year
'09. I'm sure you've heard testimony from Maui Farm. Basically, Maui Farm
collaborates and, and has, has. . .has basically, I, I would say adjusted their, their
business plan over time. They are now a collaborator. They collaborate with Women
Helping Women, Family Life Center, and the Homeless Resource Centers in terms of
family strengthening. And what they have done in, is, is basically filled a void. So you
have families who are going to Women Helping Women and Family Life
Center. . .which is an emergency situation, and then moving into the Maui Farm which
provides them stabilization for their family. And after that stabilization is done they're
actually transitioned out to Family Life Center or the Homeless Resources center with
the intent of finally moving in to their own, their own residence.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And the $50,000 represents that ability to be a connection with
the other two organizations?
MS. MEDEIROS: It not only provides for that. . .it provides for them to provide more family
strengthening programs. So they're, they're sort of like the bridge between the
emergency and crisis intervention and the, the traditional transitional housing. So
they're the bridge between.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And when they, when. . .Women Helping Women. . .I mean
what is the third organization? I'm sorry.
MS. MEDEIROS: Family Life Center
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Family Life Center, Women Helping Women, and Maui Farm.
Is Maui Farm looked at as the third component of the process of providing the service?
MS. MEDEIROS: Actually, Maui Farm is the middle component in the, in this continuum of
services.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Okay. And, but they spin the individuals off to the
other two agencies then?
MS. MEDEIROS : No.
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. . . I, you know what, I actually have Paula Ambre, who's the Executive Director
who. . .and if you want specific information, she's able to provide it to you. Yes, they
do. They, they, they are a bridge. They do receive. . .referrals of families from the
emergency shelter through Women Helping Women, through Family Life Center. They
go through their program, which is more a family strengthening to help them to sort of
calm down and get back to a, a normal way of life. When you're in crisis, sometimes
you can't think, you can't do things. So they. . .they sort of help in the stabilization
process--provide life skills training, short term housing, parenting training, help them
with employment education. And then from there, they transition into more transitional
housing which would be through Family Life Center, Homeless Resource centers.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So the $50,000 is going for a salary?
MS. MEDEIROS: . . . I believe that the monies, is not necessarily going for salary, it's going
for the program to be able to provide more services to more families.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: None. Thank you
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mental Health Association in Hawaii
MS. MEDEIROS: The Mental Health Association . . .(cleared throat). . . excuse me. We're
requesting flat funding. As you know, Mental Health Association is an advocacy
association. And. . .they, this is actually, in the current Fiscal Year, I believe, is the first
that they've ever received government funds. They've been steadfast on not receiving
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government funds in the past. Their primary focus is in advocacy and bringing the
issues of mental health to our community to help our citizens.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . National Kidney Foundation.
MS. MEDEIROS: National Kidney Foundation, as you heard from Sally Barron this morning,
they actually, they actually themselves requested a reduction in, in the Fiscal Year '09
monies. They have found someway through their donations and through their other
programs of receiving additional monies and they were willing to basically give up
5,000 of their proposed appropriation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions. But I remember Ms. Black-Barron [sic]
indicating that she actually requested 50 and they could still use the addition. So, thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No question. It's always interesting that somebody would
request a reduction. Maybe they been, had a good year with kidney cars or fundraisers
or something. But, you know, this is a very important organization. This is why we
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have this problem with all these dialysis patients--a lot of it is because of, you know, not
understanding the disease or diabetes, and that's how it leads to the dialysis.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I understand that she works heavily with the Hana
community. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes. And I'd just like to make a comment on that, yeah.
Because, you know, we hear. . .a lot about the increase of diabetes and, you know,
dialysis services, the needs for it. So I'm kind of surprised that they've voluntarily, you
know, asked for a reduction. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Open to deletion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Salvation Army.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The funding request for Salvation Army remains
steady at $150,000. Salvation Army provides, I think, one of the most critical pieces in
our continuum of care for homelessness--and that is outreach services to those members
of our community who are considered chronically homeless. They, so they deal with the
very, very most difficult and challenging of clients who have grown accustomed to
living on the streets and who for whatever reasons choose to not engage in the variety of
mental health or other healthcare services that might be available to them. They do a
wonderhl outreach program. We've supported this, them this year. . .in addition to this
with partial payment on a outreach van that was damaged during the December floods.
And their staff is exceptionally hard working. And I appreciate the leadership that
Commander Merritt has brought, I think he started about a year ago. And has made
some really good contributions to the community. They've also come back to the
continuum of care, and so we're working more closely with them to coordinate services
with other agencies.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Why wouldn't you fold this into the homeless program category?
MS. TSUHAKO:

...

That's a good question.

. . . I think that the Salvation Army has gotten line item grants for a long time to do that
specific program. And we see that as separate from the other pots of money that we can
take for the, for the rest of the homeless needs.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . Well, that would work if we still had the same kind of money
we had when we. . .initiated the start of funding for this programs. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Women Helping Women.
MS. MEDEIROS: . . . Yes. Women Helping Women, again we're requesting flat funding for
them. And you heard earlier this morning. . .the Executive Director. . .Stacey Moniz
speaking about their program. And, again, they are the primary provider in terms of
domestic violence services for women.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 11,2008

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Page two, these are grants and disbursements for Early
Childhood. The first one is Early ChildhoodIChild Care programs. Director?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Previously the Early Childhood program, also known
as the Maui County Childcare subsidy which several people spoke about this morning,
was funded in the amount of $75,000. This year, we are making a request to increase
that funding by $20,000. This program is overseen by a specialist with Good
Beginnings Maui County, and Maui Family Support Services serves as a fiscal agent for
this program. The focus of the program is to provide childcare subsidy funds to gap
group families. And I think one of the testifiers this morning described what that is. In
Fiscal Year '09, we would like to expand the definition of gap group to include retired
grandparents who are raising their grandchildren, and those families that have selected
to place their child with a family member or neighbor and. . .and who also demonstrate
financial need. Another focus of the program is to serve, to serve as a resource for
parenting information to promote quality early childhood care. Just to give you an
example of how many people use these funds, during Fiscal Year '07, a total of 14
families, 12 each month for 10 months across Maui County benefited from this subsidy.
And during Fiscal Year '08 through March, a total of 22 families, 15 each month for 10
months have benefited from this subsidy. And the reason that we've seen that increase
is because our Early Childhood Coordinator had been able to. . .fashion the use of the
money to spread it across so that more families could take part. And also capitalizing
more on the availability of other funding to supplement the childcare expense.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Deputy, so this is no longer a. . .virtual County-run program?
This has been more or less in conjunction with Maui Family and Support Services?
MS. TSUHAKO: It's the, Maui Family Support-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: . . .(inaudible). .
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MS. TSUHAKO: --is the fiscal agent. Our, our Early Childhood Resource Coordinator
participates with the Program Specialist from Good Beginnings to, to figure out the
budget, to determine eligibility.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: For that-MS. TSUHAKO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: For the Childcare program what is, what is the capacity?
What is the maximum?
MS. TSUHAKO: The maximum number of, the maximum amount that people can receive?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. The. . .if there is such a thing as. . .average.
MS. BORACORSI, FROM THE AUDIENCE: . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. TSUHAKO: Okay.
MS. BORACORSI, FROM THE AUDIENCE: . . .(inaudible).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Could you come forward please?
MS. TSUHAKO:
Coordinator.

. . .

This is Kaina Boracorsi who's our Early Childhood Resource

NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

. . . And

please identify yourself.

MS. BORACORSI: Okay. My name Kaina Boracorsi, and I am the Early Childhood Resource
Coordinator. The year, the subsidy was a range of 225 or 250 dollars maximum that
each family could receive.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. And when you say "each family", the services
extended to the entire family or the individual that's enrolled?
MS. BORACORSI: The, the actual funding goes straight to the providers. And. . .in order so
that we, in order to. . .spread the help out to as many people as we could, it's limited to
one child per family. So if they have two children who need childcare, unfortunately,
we only, at this point, help one child.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just to be sure we're all straight here. That means monthly?
MS. BORACORSI: Each month for ten months-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
MS. BORACORSI: We use the summer months to. . .qualify the families for the most part,
though they are qualified year round.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. No question. No additional question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Boracorsi, in this, well in, in
'08 or '07 whichever you have complete statistics on, did the funding run out on the
subsidies where you still had people on the list requesting funding?
MS. BORACORSI: Yeah. We currently have 15 families that would have qualified for a
subsidy. But at this point, we. . .we don't have the funding to assist them.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So in '08, Fiscal Year '08, have you used, utilized all of
your funding for subsidies?
MS. BORACORSI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So the rest of the year there's no, I mean the rest of the
Fiscal Year there's no funding left?
MS. BORACORSI: No. We were able to provide. . .two families with emergency funding
where they needed it just at the end of the year. . .in, where the situation was. . .a parent
was laid off and the child was going to turn five and the family had removed the child
from school because. . .they could not afford the thing. So we, we were able to provide
the funding for that to extend it through the year. But. . .we're maxed on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. And finally, when this does happen. . .are there any
other sources of funding that you can go to, to supplement your funding?
MS. BORACORSI: Not to my knowledge, they don't qualify for the State or Federal funding
opportunities that are available.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Boracorsi. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next program is the E Malama I Na Keiki 0 Lanai
Preschool.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
E Malama is a preschool on Lanai. And the recommended funding remains flat at
$85,000.

. . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, it is an accredited preschool that takes care of the service
requirements of an entire island. I appreciate the. . .inclusion in the budget proposal.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Kansha Preschool.
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Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: Kansha Preschool is a program that's housed at the Nisei Veterans Center.
We're asking for $25,000 in the budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes. Department, so does the funding go to subsidize
tuition or is it for operations?
MS. BORACORSI: . . . It goes to the preschool, it. . .some of it is for operations, some of it is
for salary, and some of it is for a little bit of food-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, so there's no-MS. BORACORSI: --food items.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So there's no tuition subsidy or assistance?
MS. BORACORSI: No. Not through, not through this particular-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS : Okay.
MS. BORACORSI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
NOTE: Silence.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. for Head Start
Afterschool programs.
. . . Department?

MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you very much
. . . Maui Economic Opportunity's Head Start Afterschool programs. . .provide for
centers in Makawao, Kahului, Wailuku, and Lahaina. Funding provides extended day
services to 80 children from ages three to six years in the program. Federal Head Start
provides funding from 7:30 a.m. to 12:OO noon only. So the program funding from the
County allows the program to provide services from noon to 3:OO. It provides children
with lunch and afternoon snack.
The curriculum is designed to promote
developmental. . .development in cognitive, motor, speech, language, and
social/emotional skills. Extended hours, which this grant is for, allows for parents to
work full-time or to attend school without having to worry about childcare for the last
half of the day. Our request for this item in the Budget is for $209,500.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I have no questions with this
one as well as the other M E 0 Head Start programs. But I would like to somehow get a
number to see how many kids we're actually serving.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you. I'll get that for you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, no questions on any of it, and I support Member Mateo's
request which will be very simple because most of these centers have a set number of
children.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes. Just clarification, so the Afterschool program did you
say would extend it to 3:00 p.m. or later?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: To 3 :00 p.m.?
MS. TSUHAKO: Three p.m.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And that allows parents to work and then pick up their
children at 3:00 p.m.?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. Just the, the extra three hours -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Three hours.
MS. TSUHAKO: --helps a lot of people, especially those who are going to school.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So normally that. . .program is just to 12:OO noon?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah. The Federal Head Start program only funds until noon.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Just a question. Do you know how many locations. . .in regards to
this particular program or just the main location?
MS. TSUHAKO: Makawao, Kahului, Wailuku, and Lahaina.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. for Head Start
Summer program. Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I believe Head Start Director Debbi Amaral spoke
about this, this morning. The funding from the County, which we've requested in the
amount of $1 18,000, allows for extended year services for 80 children in the Head Start
program to allow continuity of educational services so that there's no break for these
kids before they head into a formal educational setting in the DOE. It's also good for
the parents who are, who can maintain their employment and don't have to stop working
just to take care of the kids over the summer break.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. Department, so you're saying that they
transition from the summer program right into the DOE program? So these children are
four year olds?
MS. TSUHAKO: It be ready-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Or some are five?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS : Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: --up to six, actually, who can transition.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Nothing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, next program is, up is Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.
InfantIToddler Care program. Department?
NOTE: Silence.

MS. TSUHAKO: . . . Thank you, Mr. Chair. The M E 0 InfantIToddler Care program is known
as Kahi Kamalii. It provides childcare services for children who are 12 months to 3
years of age . . .(end of tape 5A - 3:30 p.m.). . . to 5:00 p.m.. It offers quality
infantltoddler care. The primary focus of the program is on early intervention and
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prevention, building parental knowledge of child development and concrete
understanding on the value of family literacy. This program is a program that's licensed
by DHS, it provides childcare services to a maximum of 20 children. The target group
of ten impacted by the funding includes low-income children and teen mothers in need
of services for their children. We are making a budget request in the same amount as
last year. . .of $75,500.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. So all these programs for the children,
there's income criteria or some kind criteria for them to qualify?
MS. BORACORSI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Just more of a request if, I guess if
M E 0 could provide us the numbers as far as how much families are accommodated with
the current level of funding; as well as, you know, if, if there's a waiting list of people
that need these services. And, you know, I ask this simply because you know how hard
it is, how tough it is on folks who have to work two jobs and for folks who don't have
the grandma and grandpa at home to watch baby. So, anyway that's something that, you
know, really concerns me, and as our population continues to grow, yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
...

Thank you.

The last item on the, the Early Childhood area is Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.
for Molokai Summer program.
. . .
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MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The description of the Molokai Summer program
mirrors what I said earlier about Maui, I won't repeat that. It allows for 20 children to
receive that extra. . .participation in programming over the summer months.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I have no questions.
ALL: . . .(laughter).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You sure? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions. Except this is the same as the Head Start
summer program--they go through summer and then transition into DOE?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, they do. Just happens in Kaunakakai.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you. And the reason why I smile at Gladys
because. . .when she was Executive Director at that location . . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(laughter). . . she and I worked hard on some of these.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Excuse me, Chair. You will always be remembered by the
people in our community for helping to fund that first program. Thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Grants and disbursements for substance abuse prevention
and treatment. Members, Program page 10-24. The first one up is Substance Abuse
programs. Department?
MS. MEDEIROS: Substance Abuse programs is a pot of money. These monies have been used
to fund Aloha House, Community Clinic of Maui, the M E 0 Reintegration program,
Malama Na Makua Keiki. . .and this is providing services such as . . .
. . . ice--I'm sorry, I have all these, these codes here and I'm trying to remember what
they are. Aloha House In Custody program, Substance Abuse programs, Ice Epidemic
programs, these are all programs to help people. . .basically detox and get back to, to
normal.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, once again this is a program that I would like to see
the impact of the 750,000. We have seen some of the recipients come up and testify
before us throughout the last couple of days. I'd like to see what 750,000 for the last
number of years, what that does in terms of trying to address the, the battle we need to
continue to wage. So if the Department can provide us those stats? Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, Department, also if, I don't know how many
organizations does substance abuse programs here in Maui County, if we can have those
organizations also listed, I would appreciate that. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions. Very important money in our community.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It is, yeah. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes. I'd like to ask the Department, so this pot of money
is available to agencies or is it specified for certain agencies? I mean, can any agency
doing that kind of program apply for the money?
MS. MEDEIROS: Basically, the way, and my understanding how this has been handled is
there's actually a consortium of agencies that deal with substance abuse--for instance
Aloha House, Community Clinic, Neighborhood Place of Wailuku. So there is already a
consortium of agencies that, that are providing services in this area. And they get
together and they discuss their programs, number one to ensure there's no duplication of
services. And we discuss with them the potential funding they need for their programs.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Yeah. That was my question about agencies that do
this kind of programs. Not any other agency. But. . .so coming further down and we'll
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get to that, but Ohana Makamae in Hana does that. But are they still available to try and
supplement their funding with this pot of money in substance abuse programs?
MS. MEDEIROS: Certainly they could. I mean, they have never approached us with the
information, but certainly we, you know, we could discuss that with them.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Because they just recently, last week opened up a
sober living house, so they may need supplemental funding. But thank you,
Department, for the information. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I know that you have one for Lanai, and. . .I guess Ohana
Makamae is on, in Hana. Got any programs on Lanai [sic]? To take advantage of this
particular program?
MS. MEDEIROS: Essentially, there's the Coalition for Drug Free Lanai. And they actually
receive monies through a, a separate line item.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry. Molokai
MS. MEDEIROS: Oh. I'm sorry. On Molokai
MS. TSUHAKO: . . . Molokai agencies are not reflected in this list. And I, and I had a meeting
with them on March 24th. And part of what I learned during that meeting is that Molokai
agencies receive a lot of their funding through the Alcohol and Drug Abuse Division
from the Department of Health and they go directly after that funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And none through Maui County?
MS. TSUHAKO: Not so much from the County. There's, there's a pending strategic
framework. . .State incentive grant that may entice a few Molokai agencies to apply for
prevention funds. But their treatment money looks like it largely comes through ADAD
directly.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Chair, I guess I'm just looking forward to the response
from the Department related to Member Mateo's request as far as substance abuse.
Because I notice the funding's been flat from '07, '08. And I don't know if the drug
problem is continuing to escalate, but I'd like to, you know, hear comments from the
Department and to see when the Department would look at expanding the services if
need be. So that would be my request, Chair. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Willing to adjust
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next one up is Coalition for Drug Free Lanai.
MS. TSUHAKO: The Budget request for the Coalition for Drug Free Lanai remains stable at
$50,000. My understanding is that the Coalition does a lot of work within the
community to do drug prevention and advocacy for people. Most of the time I think
their services revolve around bring the needs together with the service provision
that. . .that's there. Aloha House does treatment on. . .on Lanai, I believe. And I think
the Coalition has a relationship with them in terms of referrals.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No questions, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. When it comes to, to rural
communities, it has been consistent in the last number of years that the primary
issues--of especially ice-- runs, runs rampant. This community, no different from any
other, has been flat in terms of the amount of monies going to that community. And I'd
like to be sure that $50,000 is really what's needed to help battle this problem we're,
we're experiencing. And for the simple fact, just like Molokai. . .one organization
services an entire island. And, you know, because we're separated by water, I'd just
like to be sure that this community has the opportunity to fully deal with the island's
substance problems and abuse problems that they may have. And, Chairman, for your,
your question, Molokai has Alu Like on a line and Ka Hale Pomaikai that also is
currently with the CDBG program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The last item, Ohana Makamae, Inc.
MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you. If I can just go before, on the Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai,
just to let you know, they do receive Federal monies. So this County portion is
leveraging for Federal monies.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. MEDEIROS: Ohana Makamae--and I believe they, they provide testimony to you, we're
recommending flat funding. I'm, I'm sure they could, you know, they could take more
money, I know they just opened up a new portion of services. Ohana Makamae has
been a great leader in the Hana community in the services that they provide.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. No questions except the
comments that I want to thank the Mayor for again including Ohana Makamae in Fiscal
Year 2009. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Let's see
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next item is grants and disbursements for Youth Centers and
Programs. First item up--and again, Members, it's on page 10-27, and on your Budget
Proposal it's on page 6. Youth Centers. Department?
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MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you. The Youth Centers and Youth program--and I should take both
of them. Again they're separate pots of monies and they are reviewed by the Grants
Review Committee. So the Grants Review Committee will be making funding
recommendations to the Mayor with respect to the pots of money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
. . .(inaudible). . . for the overall Youth Centers
. . .(inaudible). . . 50,000 increase. . .being requested by the Administration. . .being
requested by the Administration--that increase. . .is expected to. . .provide a service, part
of the program, is it salaries? Could you tell me that 50,000 represents?
MS. MEDEIROS: Pretty much it's for operations. I'm sure that you heard in testimony from
the Boys and Girls Club, and I believe they were actually requesting for an increase in
200,000. Their operation, number one, their operational costs has increased. Primarily
they have attempted and have been attempting to provide competitive wages for their
staff so that they can retain their staff. They've had difficulty in retaining staff because
they don't pay as much and the staff, and then you basically have this constant revolving
door of, of people coming through and that is not, is not healthy and it's not good for the
kids that are involved in the programs. So we weren't able to. . .to support them with a
$200,000 increase, but we attempted to try to increase it by 50,000. Again trying to be
mindful of the difficulty of the budget.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And we will be consistent with the youth centers that are not
Boy and Girls Club run as well?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So they, too, will be able to experience the same kind of
increases?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, again this would be part of a pot of money in which the Grants
Review Committee would have the opportunity to make funding recommendations
based on the applications they received.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
I certainly understand. . .the revolving door theory.
Unfortunately, it applies to everybody. County seems to have the same problem. Thank
you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I, with regard to how all the recommendations that we
have here already--and I apologize if somebody already asked this. But the
recommendations that we're reviewing were done by Administration or were these
recommendations that were reviewed by Grants Review Committee?
MS. MEDEIROS: We actually went through this at the beginning of the session.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. MEDEIROS: But just as a reminder, the Grants Review Committee has not yet completed
their review and funding recommendations for the Fiscal Year '09 monies. However, in
the Budget it was reflected and we were advised to provide the information to copy over
the same dollar amount and same agencies as the Fiscal Year '08.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, so essentially what you did is you prepared and
then you basically did what you. . .I guess what Administration's recommendation is,
and then Grants Review will look at anything again once the final pot of money is
determined?
MS. MEDEIROS: Right. When. . .basically. . .we have already gone through the application,
we have already received the applications. And the applications are in the process of
being. . .provided to the Grants Review Committee, and they are in the process of. . .and
will be in the process of reviewing the applications and going through their deliberations
in terms of funding recommendations. So, and they're scheduled to do that in May.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And the final determination, though, as to who gets
the grant money will not be made by the Grants Review Committee?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, they make funding recommendations to the Mayor, and the Mayor
then can either accept the funding recommendations--and it has been my understanding
that in previous years, the Mayor has always accepted the recommendation by the
Grants Review Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. 'Cause I, I know there was one item, because I did
have an opportunity to visit. . .there was some concerns on the part of people in the
Grants Review Committee. And I know one thing in there for certain. . .they did not
recommend. And so, you know, I'm not going to say which agency . . .(laughter). . .
that was, but they were disappointed that in that particular situation their
recommendation or at least--and I guess, and this could have been from last year, I'm
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not sure. But anyway. . .there was a little bit of concern about whether or not the work
that they were doing was, I guess, actually meanin&ul in terms of the review or the
analysis. So I, I realize you can't accept everything that every single person on Grants
Review wants, but I just want to make sure that, you know, there's no double dipping or
other things and, you know, that was one of the concerns.
MS. MEDEIROS: I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson.
. . .(laughter). . . the double dipping.

We covered that, as far as

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: 'Cause, and you covered the one that there is a double dip
on?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Yeah. I, I, I think the Administration is going to double check as
far as the list that is shown here against the line items to make sure.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Just some clarification, maybe for
the Budget Director. It shows that the 50,000 is an increase for the '09 Budget?
. . . Because

the '08 shows. . .1,750,000.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: It is
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So in the Budget Proposal, on 10-27, why is it
balanced out in '08 to be the same amount as '09?
MS. MEDEIROS : Um
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . . Why is 50,000 added to the '08?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. PABLO: Okay. I believe there's an error on the, on the. . .excuse me. I believe there's an
error on that last item for 50,000. I mean, it shouldn't have been included on that listing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: On the Fiscal Year --

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 11,2008

MR. PABLO: Yes
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS : --2008?

MR. PABLO: . . . It should have been zero.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So then that, that'll be, so the total amount for '08
would go back to 1,750,000?

MR. PABLO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. Thank you, Budget Director. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We go to the youth programs.
MS. MEDEIROS: . . . Again youth programs is same thing, it's a pot of money and that is also
reviewed, the applications are reviewed by the Grants Review Committee and they do
make recommendations. . .to the Mayor. We are asking for a $5,000 increase. And
again this, this is not much. I'm sure they would prefer to have more money. But this
increase was based on. . .an ability for them--and this is something they've been asking
us--is to be able to provide them with more money in those pots that they review so that
they can provide more funding to agencies.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: With regard to the increase for youth centers, one of the
problems that they face is, of course, the same problem we face, which is employee
turnover. And that was one of the points that was made by the Boys and Girls Club at
the Lahaina meeting--that the employee retention is really critical. So. . .if we were to
add, you know, money into this particular pot and then specify . . .(laughter). . . to
Grants Review Committee, let's say that this was to be used to improve salaries or
whatever, is that a possibility? Or do we not have discretion over that? Like ordinarily,
we'll. . .put in for something specific so they can't be spent for something else. If, if
employee retention is a critical problem in youth centers, then I don't want the money
that we're putting in to help improve employee retention be used for sports equipment.
MS. MEDEIROS: Uh. . .I suppose you could. And, and I'll just be very honest that it may
present a potential difficulty, especially for the '09 run only because we've already
received and accepted applications. So we, we did an RFP back in February, and we
requested applications from agencies. And within that application, they would have
provided us their budget and their proposed program and what they're going to use it
for. So. . .you could, if you put it as a proviso. . .what will likely happen is because we
won't get the final information on the Budget until possibly May 3 1" and the GRC will
have made their recommendations prior to that, it, there's a possibility that we may have
to go back to the GRC and they may have to review that whole segment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah
MS. MEDEIROS: Because, and they would have to divvy up between what you can use for it
and what you can't use it for.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and, you know, my only reason for looking at
that is because I feel it's really important for the children and the youth that participate
in these programs to know that they have that stability. Because having been, you know,
an executive director at West Maui Youth Center before it became Boys and Girls Club,
we had the problem all the time. And we have it here in the County. But it's even more
difficult in the youth centers because you know it, it's just, I think for young people,
they want that same person there. They develop a really strong bond. So, you know, for
me I just, I recognize the problem, but if there's some other way that we can address it,
that's fine.
MS. MEDEIROS: If, if you do put that in as a proviso-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh
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MS. MEDEIROS: --then our options would likely be that we would either hold up the review
of those applications and following--if it ends up being that's the final answer on the
Budget--then as the fairness to those applicants, we may have to go back to them and
ask them to resubmit their budgets to us based on, on your directions and your proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Usually what we would do is--and this is just a suggestion
because I used to work, doing the grants myself. What we would do is sometimes we
would have a budget. . .that we would have an amendment or there was something
unusual that came up. The first quarter, everything gets processed, and then there would
just be a budget amendment to the main contract which would be processed, like, during
the second quarter.
MS. MEDEIROS: Uh-huh
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So I mean, that's a practical thing. Instead of making it
more complicated, I would rather make it more simple. But if that's what you're going
to do, I don't want to hold up their contracts.
MS. MEDEIROS: No, it's just, I'm just saying that's an option. I really depends on what the
final, what the final answer is going to be in terms of if you put a specific proviso, then
we would have to. . .in fairness, go back to the GRC and look at what their funding
recommendations were for and we would likely have to ask them to make adjustments
. . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Well, I hope members of the GRC are watching this
so that they can understand and perhaps even in their interviews. . .have they gone
through the interviews?
MS. MEDEIROS: No, not yet
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. MEDEIROS: That's going to be done next month.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Well, perhaps this subject, you know, would be able
to at least be one of the topics that might be discussed when Grants Review does their
interviews. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. Yeah. Maybe two things. On the Ma
Ka Hana Ka Ike which is a program that really benefits the students, school and the

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 11,2008

community, I, I think, I know the agency had testified that they had requested more.
And I don't know if it was by error that it was arrived at this amount. But I'll be trying
to work to see what can be restored. And then, Budget Director, again on the '08 totals,
that 5,000 shouldn't have been added?

MR. PABLO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS : Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Alcohol-free graduation program for Maui County.
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes. For, for this line item, in the previous--and if you look, actually, at the
Details--there were actually two separate line items. One was Project Graduation which
provided for a $55,000, and then there was a separate line item for Molokai High School
Alcohol Free Graduation. And basically, they're all the same thing. So all this line item
does is to ensure that we put all the money into one pot so that it's very easy to track.
And. . .our recommendation as a proviso that you can make is that, you know, 5,000 be
provided to Molokai High School for their program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. One quick question. This is, what
is the State's participation with this? I, I presume this is for our public high schools,
related to that. And do we get participation from the State Department of Education?
MS. MEDEIROS: No. This, this is the graduation program and there's no involvement by the
State at all.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Has the County every approached the State? Because I
presume this is for our public high schools which come under the jurisdiction of the
State. am I not correct?
MS. MEDEIROS: Although it comes under, the high school comes under the jurisdiction of
the State, the graduation programs. . .I should say after graduation because the
commencement services itself is part of the high school. But the program after--which
this is, basically the party--has nothing to do with the State.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So they don't have, they have the graduation parties that
night right after graduation or is it just held like a week later or two weeks?
MS. MEDEIROS: In some, in some schools it is held that same night. For some schools, its
held on a separate night.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. On the school premises?
MS. MEDEIROS: No. No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh
MS. MEDEIROS: It's never held in school premises.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, I would ask, I don't know if there's a way to get
the communication out to the State because I think it's a darn shame, you know, that the
State Department of Education, Board of Education not get themselves in this. I mean
they're their kids, too, you know. So. . .I'm just state my strong disappointment with the
State. I know we've had these programs now for several years and there's been no, the
State has not taken the initiative. Department of Education, Board of Education, they
have not shown any initiative to get involved with the County, then, to your knowledge
at this point?
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MS. MEDEIROS: I have not seen anything to that nature.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I don't know if the Department would like to initiate a
letter or, you know, I'd be very happy to initiate a letter to the Department of Education
to get, get themselves involved with this, Mr. Chairman. Typical State-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --don't want to get involved. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina, I think it would be best if you wrote it to our
Legislators on Oahu. . .the Representatives, as well as the Senators. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Open to delete.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . . Director,

would you know how much a school spend on a graduation night?

MS. MEDEIROS: How much the school spends?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not the school, but, you know, to, to get this celebration. . .going.
MS. MEDEIROS: I don't have the information, I, but, but the cost can vary. You know, for
instance our, our high school on Molokai, it's, it's going to cost them more to do their
graduation, their post-graduation function because the costs there are higher. Especially
if they, they bring in entertainers from off-island, it's going to cost them more. For our,
our Maui-island schools, their cost may be the location--if they go to a hotel, that may be
a large chunk of their cost.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wild guess, 20,000?
MS. MEDEIROS: Do you have any information?
MS. TSUHAKO: Well, if, if I may, Mr. Chairman? Let me give you some additional
information. There's six schools currently receiving funding in the amount of $5,000.
Some of them are public schools like Baldwin, King Kekaulike, Maui High, and
Lahainaluna; and private schools like Seabury Hall, St. Anthony, and Kamehameha.
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Kamehameha receives. . .only $2,500 which is what they applied for. So the volunteer
coordinator has done a really good job of doing outreach to the schools in trying to
encourage more of them to use this fund. And, unfortunately. . .some of the, some of the
schools have not generated enough interest or enough impetus from the facility or from
the community to take advantage of the availability of the fund. So we, we could use
some help with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I understand that some of the schools spend about--well,
not the school, themselves, but to do a celebration, between 20 and 25 thousand dollars
for that one single night. So. . .for your information.
MS. MEDEIROS : If I may add
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MS. MEDEIROS: . . . to that? Again, under these monies, there has been a proviso that these
monies can only be used for those students who are in financial need. So there is a
limitation in terms of how these monies could be used. One other point of information
is that quite unfortunately our Molokai High School has never used their monies that has
been appropriated for them. And our, I know our volunteer center coordinator has been
attempting to work. . .(end of tape 5B - 4:Ol p.m.). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Just for clarification purposes. Molokai High
School their, their traditional practice is when the luaus-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --start. We, the, we're not a traditional type of a school where
you can get together and have a party separately. So years ago when this body helped
establish that fund, it was made real clear then. So it's a matter of, you know, just
continuing the follow-up and following intent. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next program up is Alcohol Free Graduation--I'm
sorry. . .we already completed that.
MS. MEDEIROS: No, we just did that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Alu Like - Kahua Ola Hou - Molokai.
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MS. TSUHAKO: This Alu Like program is run on, on. . .the island of Molokai. Its Program
Director is Wade Lee, and the program is a quasi-residential program for at-risk teens.
They do a variety of interventions, not just with the teenagers themselves, but also with
the families to try and heal. . .old hurts. They deal with substance abuse, they deal with
violence, they deal with all kinds of issues that impact families and children. Mr. Lee's
program accept. . .accepts children from Molokai as well as from Maui County, and are
begin, is beginning to accept children from other corners of the State. He's not, he's
not. . .licensed as a treatment provider, so the service is considered to be a
preventionlintervention program. The Department is requesting continued funding in
the amount of $150,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions . . .(laughter). .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You sure?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(laughter). . . Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No question. We heard a lot of very good testimony about this
when we went to our Molokai hearing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Nope.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . Do our money supplement non-Maui County participants?
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MS. TSUHAKO: No. Excuse me, Chair. I forgot to say that, that the. . .the money that we
give to this program provides only for those children who are from Maui County and
we're not subsidizing children from other jurisdictions. Thank you. Thank you for your
question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's it?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next program, Best Buddies.
MS. TSUHAKO: . . . Thank you, Mr. Chair.
. . . Earlier this morning, you heard public testimony about the Best Buddies program.
The Best Buddies program has been inserted into the Department's budget in the amount
of $75,000. It's a program that, that is meant to provide mentorship between an ablebodied and a challenged. . .high school student with a hope that the relationship can lead
to, you know, a growing system of support for those children.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, perhaps at a later time, if the Deputy can. . .provide
additional information to myself regarding what percentage of this is actual salary versus
the program? Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No comment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
program. Thank you.

I've gone through this and, so I'm familiar with the

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I, too, am familiar with the program. No questions.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . What is the Department's understanding for this funding
request? This is going to be a continuous request?
MS. TSUHAKO: I. . .do not know, but we can certainly ask the program people who submitted
this. . .request to us, what their intentions are. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Tsuhako, are you aware whether or not the State puts money in
their educational budget for similar types of programs?
MS. TSUHAKO: I am not aware that any other programs are available to students in high
school that would reflect what is being proposed by Best Buddies.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So this initial 75 is basically a high school program? This is
not intermediate or other grade levels, this is specifically being targeted, at this point, for
the up. . .upper division or high school grades?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe so
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next program, Lahaina. . .Big Brothers Big Sisters of
Maui. Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: Big Brothers and Big Sisters of Maui also provided testimony for you this, in
this morning's session. We are requesting an increase in funding in the amount of
$6,000, to a total amount of $106,000 for the next fiscal year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, I like their t-shirts. I have no questions.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know it . . .(laughter). . . Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 11,2008

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good program. No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: This the first non-purple shirt I noticed Mr. Mateo likes
. . .(laughter). . . Chairman.
ALL: . . .(laughter).
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question for the Department. I understand
that. . .out of the total amount, that $6,000 would be for. . .tutoring at Lihikai School?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes. Again this was a, again another combination that the Mayor had
recommended--rather than having separate line items, that we would incorporate that
$6,000 for the Lihikai School tutoring into the Big Brothers Big Sisters line item. And
you can actually put that as a proviso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . . Next

item up is Lahaina Tutoring project.

MS. MEDEIROS: . . . Again, this is a. . .continuing funding for the Lahaina Tutoring
project. . .based on flat funding in the amount of $6,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And this serves about, currently I think they're up to
200 children, and their program has been used a model. In fact, I think that's how the
Lihikai program started. So this provides something for their transportation. It's a small
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little percentage of their overall budget, but they have from over, I believe it's 125 tutors
now, adult tutors. And some of them are not adult, some of them are actually the high
school students, which is wonderful. So it's money well spent because the literacy has
dramatically improved, reading comprehension. And this will help serve, I think, many
of those students in good stead when they're making job applications here at the County.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maui Economic Opportunity Youth Bank.
MS. MEDEIROS : Um
Okay. I'm sorry. Maui Economic. . .Youth Bank, ME0 Youth Bank, basically
we're asking for flat funding. I believe they have provided you with testimony on this
program.
. . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Absolutely no questions . . .(laughter).
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(laughter). . . Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I just want to ask the Department. So this is an amount
that goes to Maui Economic Opportunity and then it's for them to divide it up on the
different Youth Bank programs in the different districts?
MS. MEDEIROS: This is what they, yes, that's, that's their Youth Bank program
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS : Right.
MS. MEDEIROS: Their operations.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIRO S :
Okay.
But I wanted to ask another
question. . .Mr. Chairman. In that some of the programs that we've been talking about
are first-time applicants. And is the application, does it have an inquiry on there
whether this, their intent is for a one-time application? Because we asked that about
Best Buddies and some others. Or there isn't a question on the application about that?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, in terms of line items, there has never been, essentially, a process
for. . .for, for agencies to, to request line items. Essentially, what they generally do is
they will either contact the Mayor's Office or they may contact our office, they may
contact OED, they will send a letter, sometimes they will attempt to meet with one or
more parties. So there's, there's not a succinct process. But I do know that this is an
area that the Mayor has been looking into, and a lot of it is for us to come to some
reasonable semblance in, with respect to line items and, and how they should be
reviewed and. . .put into the budget.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Department. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for
allowing me that question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair, actually no questions on the Youth Bank. But before I
forget and before we go on break and its been a long day, just a request to the
Department as it relates to the Alcohol Free Graduation program. It was mentioned that
not all the monies have been expended, if I'm correct. And if I could get a report from
the Department for the last two fiscal years, '07 and '08, how much monies have been
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expended related to this program? This will help me decide whether I support the
Mayor's increase in appropriation or consider another figure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay, I-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay
MS. MEDEIROS : If I may-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Director?
MS. MEDEIROS: --offer clarification to that? It is not an increase that we're asking for. All
we did was we basically combined two different line items into one.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Yeah.
MS. MEDEIROS: So it's not an increase.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you. So just for me, if I could reconsider
the 55,000 or not. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, the last item for Housing and Human Concerns
grants is the Cameron Center - Earthquake Repairs.
MS. MEDEIROS : Uh-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Director?
MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you. I'm just happy because this is my last line item. . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(laughter). . . A sigh of relief.
MS. MEDEIROS: Forgive me, my mom will be happy because I can still do her dinner
. . .(laughter). . .
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I believe the Cameron Center did provide you testimony on this. This is, this is
definitely one of those one-time line items, and it is to assist them with repairs
that. . .and, and damage that was done during the time of the earthquake.
. . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, I too am glad this is the Department's last item.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). .
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I have no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have no question, and I totally support this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: In the 35 year history of Cameron Center, I believe this is only
about the fourth time that they have ever asked the County for assistance. And this is a
safety issue that has be dealt with soon. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and any kind of structural damage--and this is
structural damage--I think it's. . .you know . . .(laughter). . . it needs to be dealt with
immediately. So I consider this part of an emergency repair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, that concludes the review for the Housing and
Human Services grants area. At this time, the Chair is going to call a short recess.
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. . .I

think we're going to be losing some Members and probably will not have quorum.
So at this time, I just want to call a recess to confer with Members. Recess.
. . .(gavel). . .

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

4:14 p.m.
4:21 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget. . .and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, just to let you know, we're going to be losing quorum at about
4:30. So just want to give you next week's schedule before we adjourn.
. . . For the review for OED, we're going to be, it's going to be next week Monday.
Mr. Taguchi, if you can provide us the schedule for Monday to the end of the week of
next week?

MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, at this point in time, we'll be convening at 9:00 a.m. on
Monday. We will continue and do the grants, the rest of the grants in the County--which
we'll be starting with OED. After the grants, we will be taking up rates and fees. . .hat
would be on Monday. On 15"', we'll continue the discussion on rates and fees. If we're
able to finish the discussion on rates and fees, we will move into the Departmental of
Personnel. On the 16"', Wednesday. . .at that point in time, we will either finish with
Departmental of Personnel and move into revenues. It is uncertain at this time. . .how,
how much you will need for rates and fees. However, there are significant changes in
rates and fees. And then, on the 17", we have, we will be receiving the real property tax
certification from the Director of Finance. The 17th, from 9:00 a.m. to 12:OO m is
.
scheduled for an evaluation of real property tax and the certification. On the 18tF.
, there
is a Council meeting. So Members are provided the afternoon of the 1 7 to~ work
~
on
their individual proposals to be submitted to the. . .to the Budget and Finance Chair on
Friday. And starting from the 21", we will be in decision making.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Questions, Members? If not.. .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Are you going to provide some parameters on, for proposals from
us?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um. . .not at this time. I'm going to provide the parameters on
Monday. . .or Tuesday of next week.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . Okay, Chairman. Thank-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Oh, one more please, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Rates and fees, I expect a. . .a long meeting on that one, Chairman.
So is it your intent to try and finish even if we go through the night?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, we have day. . .hopehlly day and a half to complete rates and
fees. We expect to go to. . .again, like Mr. Taguchi had mentioned, to finish up the
grants. And as soon as we finish up the grants, going to directly into rates and fees for
the rest of Monday and all day Tuesday.

MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Taguchi?

MR. TAGUCHI: Starting from Monday the 14~", we'll be, we have on the schedule
deliberations to start at 9:00 a.m. and end at 8:00 p.m. So there is additional time within
those days. And we do not have to go to any district meetings, so the anticipation is that
we will be spending. . .several more hours in deliberation than the normal day.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . Okay, Chairman. Whatever you need is what I'm able to
provide.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Again thank you very much, Members.
Any more questions? If not, the Chair is going to adjourn this meeting, and we'll
convene on Monday at 9:00 a.m. Members, have a real good weekend, enjoy your
weekend. Thank you. This meeting is adjourned. . . .(gavel). . .
. . .
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